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Mannai Group

Auto Group
 » Automotive Group, Qatar
 » Heavy Equipment Group, Qatar

Information Technology 
 » Information and Communication Technology, Qatar
 » Inetum S.A., Europe, Latin America
 » Gfi Informatique Pvt. Ltd., India
 » NYX Bilisim Teknolojileri AS, Turkey

Jewellery
 » Damas International LLC, UAE & GCC

Other Business
 » Gulf Laboratories Co. WLL
 » Travel Group
 » Energy & Industrial Markets
 » Manweir LLC
 » Qatar Logistics WLL
 » Home Appliances and Electronics Division 

Joint Venture / Associate Companies
 » Cofely Besix Mannai Facility Management LLC
 » Axiom Telecom, UAE

 Auto Group

 Information Technology

 Jewellery

 Other Business

 Joint Venture / Associate Companies
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Chairman’s
Report

I am pleased to report that 2021 was a 
year of recovery following the disruption 
in business in the previous year caused 
by the onset of Covid-19. Although the 
pandemic continued into 2021, lockdowns 
and other restrictions reduced, new ways 
of working evolved and demand for our 
goods and services gradually increased. 
As a result total sales grew by 16.3 
percent in 2021.

There was a notable increase in demand 
for our consumer products. Car sales 
in Qatar rose by 77 percent, and sales 
in Damas, our GCC jewellery business 
grew by 33 percent. In our Business to 
Business (B2B) segment in Qatar our 
largest business, ICT increased its Net 
Profit by 24 percent.

Group Consolidated Earnings before 
Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and 
Amortisation (EBITDA) was QR 1.24 
Billion. Interest costs were reduced by 
11 percent to QR 345 Million. Overseas 
taxation amounted to QR 125 Million.

The resulting Net Profit for the Mannai 
Group was QR 276 Million, compared 
with only a marginal profit in 2020, 
demonstrating the strength of the recovery. 

Earnings per share were QR 0.61 and 
the Board is recommending a dividend 
distribution of 30 percent of the nominal 
value of the share, equating to QR 0.30 
per share. The proposed 30 percent 
dividend will bring the total of dividends 
declared since Mannai listed on the QSE 
in 2007 to QR 2.2 Billion.

Qatar is the hub and the heart of our 
business and we value deeply the wise 
leadership of the Emir His Highness 
Sheikh Tamim Bin Hamad Al Thani, and 
we greatly appreciate the continued 
sound and stable economic environment 
in Qatar which has underpinned Mannai’s 
ability to grow as a Public Company since 
listing on the QSE almost 15 years ago.

I must express my appreciation to our 
people throughout the group for their 
support and achievements, particularly 
during the challenges of the Covid-19 
pandemic.

2021 was a year of recovery and our 
businesses enjoyed a positive trend in 
growth culminating in a strong fourth 
quarter which gives encouragement for 
the year ahead.

During 2021, the Mannai Board was 
reviewing whether it is the appropriate 
time to consider selling Inetum, its 
French ICT subsidiary. 

Towards the end of 2021, the Board 
decided it would seek the opportunity to 
divest its shares in Inetum if a suitable 
transaction was available, and on 20th 
January 2022, Mannai notified the Qatar 
market via the QSE of a proposed sale to 
a group of investors led by Bain Capital 
Private Equity, which includes NB 
Renaissance and the management team 
of Inetum.

The consultation of the relevant 
employee representative bodies 
of Inetum in France has now been 
concluded regarding the proposed sale, 
and Mannai shareholders are now asked 
to approve the proposed sale.

The sale is subject to the approval of 
the shareholders of Mannai at a general 
assembly and clearances from certain 
antitrust and regulatory authorities, 
mainly in Europe, which are expected to 
be obtained in the coming months.

The sale of Inetum will have no effect on 
Mannai’s domestic ICT businesses, which 
continues to build on its leading market 
share in Qatar, supported by its strong 
forward order book and skilled workforce.

Inetum, formerly GFI Informatique, 
was acquired by Mannai around 6 years 
ago for approximately Euro 561 Million, 
which was financed by a term bank loan 
in Doha.

Inetum has been a profitable and 
successful investment under Mannai’s 
ownership, which has grown enormously, 
both organically and by undertaking 
major acquisitions of complementary IT 
services companies in Europe.

In 2018, Inetum acquired a leading IT 
company in Belgium for Euro 196 Million 
and last year acquired a leading IT 
company in Spain for Euro 265 Million. 
Following this period of expansion, total 
sales of Inetum in 2021 grew to Euro 
2.22 Billion.

Inetum’s acquisitions and growth was 
financed by its banks in France, and the 
overall financing accordingly forms a 
significant part of the bank borrowings 
recorded on Mannai’s consolidated 
balance sheet.

The Mannai Board has determined that 
divesting Inetum at an enterprise value 
amounting to EUR 1.85 Billion, which 
could result in an equity value for Mannai 
in the range of EUR 1.03 – EUR 1.06 
billion, was advisable and in the best 
interests of the Mannai Shareholders and 
accordingly the Board has unanimously 
authorized the Company to proceed with 
the proposed sale, subject to the approval 
of the shareholders. An Extraordinary 
General Assembly was subsequently 
scheduled for 26th April 2022 to enable a 
shareholder vote on the proposed sale.

Should Mannai’s shareholders approve 
the proposed sale as recommended, the 
Company will proceed to conclude the 
formalities required in the sale process 
over the coming months.

H.E. Sheikh Hamad Bin Abdulla 
Bin Khalifa Al Thani
Chairman

“The proposed 30% 
dividend will bring 
the total of dividends 
declared since Mannai 
listed on the QSE in 2007 
to QR. 2.2 Billion.”
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Directors’
Report

It is pleasing to report that business 
across the Mannai Group greatly 
improved in 2021, compared with the 
unique set of challenges in the previous 
year following the onset of Covid-19 in 
early 2020.

Even so, business constraints continued 
to a certain extent in 2021, with travel 
restrictions, supply chain delays, 
increased logistics costs, and of course 
changes in the lifestyle and working 
conditions of our customers and staff.

Our main retail businesses benefited 
from increased demand from our 
customers in 2021. Car sales in Qatar 
increased by 77 percent, and sales in 
Damas, our GCC jewellery business, 
grew by 33 percent.

In our Business to Business segment, 
(B2B), the combined total revenues of 
our ICT businesses in Qatar and Europe 
jumped by 14.4 percent.

Overall Group revenues grew by 
16.3 percent in 2021 compared with 
the previous year. A positive trend 
in business built-up during the year 
culminated in a strong fourth quarter  
in 2021.

Performance Overall

• Group turnover  QR 14.4 Billion
• Revenue Growth  16.3 percent
• EBITDA QR 1.24 Billion
• EBIT  QR 745 Million
• Net Profit  QR 276 Million
• Earnings per share QR 0.61

Although the revenue breakdown 
comprised Inetum at 66 percent, Damas 
at 7 percent, and Qatar businesses at 27 
percent, notably, excluding the funding 
cost of Mannai’s original investment in 
Inetum, the combined Qatar businesses 
contributed a robust 66 percent of the 
overall Net Profit.

It is also notable that while total sales 
increased by 16.3 percent, across the 
Group there was no dilution in the 
overall Gross Margin, which grew by a 
healthy 16.9 percent.

The resulting Net Profit of QR 276 
million, compared with only a marginal 
net profit in 2020, demonstrates the 
underlying strength in the turnaround of 
our businesses in 2021.

In terms of the future outlook, the 
positive trend in our businesses in 
the fourth quarter of 2021 provides 
encouragement for the year ahead. 

PROPOSED SALE OF INETUM

The proposed sale of Mannai’s shares 
in Inetum, its French ICT subsidiary, 
was advised to the market via the QSE 
on 20th January 2022 and 17th April 2022 
respectively.

The sale process is proceeding as 
planned.

The shareholders approval of the sale 
is expected to result in a planned and 
positive change in the shape of Mannai’s 
Balance Sheet during 2022.

Naturally, there will be a reduction in 
Group revenue following the sale of 
Inetum, but importantly, resulting from 
a successful sale there will also be a 
very significant reduction in the level of 
Mannai’s bank borrowings, debt gearing 
and interest costs going forward.

The Inetum sale will have no effect on 
Mannai’s domestic ICT business, which 
continues to build on its leading market 
share in Qatar, underpinned by its 
strong and lengthy forward order book. 

Keith Higley
Director

”The resulting Net 
Profit of QR 276 Million 
compared with only 
a marginal profit in 
2020, demonstrates the 
underlying strength of 
the turnaround in our 
business in 2021.”
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Chief Executive 
Officer’s Report

Our Qatar businesses collectively 
posted strong growth and profits in 
2021 and had very solid operational and 
financial results, especially under the 
circumstances. There were still many 
challenges faced this past year brought 
about by continued business slowdown 
across many industries and government 
sectors still impacted by the pandemic. 
There were also serious supply chain 
issues faced throughout the year 
brought about by a global shortage of 
semiconductors in key industries and also 
rising shipping costs. However, despite 
these and other challenges, our collective 
Qatar businesses managed a remarkable 
turnaround, showing very good growth in 
both Revenues and Net Profit collectively 
while reaching many new milestones this 
past year.

Orders for our Information and 
Communications Technology (ICT) 
business in Qatar reached a record 
volume of QAR 3.2 billion in 2021, 
significantly higher than the year before 
and a new milestone, at the same time 
that our ICT Net Profit grew a healthy 
24% over the previous year. ICT continued 
to execute and deliver key strategic 
projects for our customers and solidified 
its position as Qatar’s leading systems 
integrator. With our comprehensive 
and diversified solutions and product 
offering, ICT remains the trusted partner 
for Digital Transformation of public and 
private sector companies in Qatar. With 
our Cloud offering and Digital Security 
Operations Center, along with many 
other innovations, we continue to lead 
the way in Qatar into new directions 
for cybersecurity, robotics, artificial 
intelligence and smart city solutions, 
among our other integrated end-to-end 
networking and other solutions. 

An exciting development for ICT this past 
year was our entry into a new business 

“Our Qatar businesses have continued 
to rebound from the challenges first 
faced in 2020 and have collectively 
delivered strong growth in 2021.”

segment providing electric vehicle 
chargers and end-to-end customized 
solutions for the related infrastructure, 
including chargers of different charging 
standards, charger installations, and 
charger management software platforms. 
In partnership with ABB, we will be 
delivering a large-scale project to build 
electric bus charging stations in Qatar in 
preparation of the FIFA World Cup Qatar 
2022TM. We are increasing our footprint in 
the area of green technology and will be 
contributing to Qatar’s strategic objective 
of lowering the country’s carbon footprint.

Despite severe supply chain 
disruptions brought about by the global 
semiconductor shortage, our Automotive 
Group along with the Heavy Equipment 
Group continued to be the best performing 
distributor in the GCC region for General 
Motors and many of our other partners, 
which number more than forty principals 
from across the globe. Our New Vehicle 
Sales, led by the successful introduction 
of the new 2021 Cadillac Escalade model, 
grew more than double the percentage 
growth recorded by the overall Qatar 
Automotive sector in 2021, with the new 
Escalade model delivering a phenomenal 
growth of more than 600%, almost eight 
times the growth in the remaining GCC 
region from other distributors. We also 
saw the successful introduction of the 
all-new 2021 GMC Yukon model and 
continued to be the leading seller of 
full-size pick-up trucks in Qatar. And the 
Heavy Equipment Group won the award 
as best overall dealer in the Middle East 
Region from the Volvo and Eicher Motors 
Joint Venture (VE Commercial Vehicles) 
for the second year in a row.

The Energy and Industrial Markets 
Group diversified and grew the business 
despite rising shipping costs as well as 
material costs. Through the varied and 
comprehensive offering from our partners 
around the globe, we continued to be a 
market leader in HVAC projects in Qatar 
and to provide products, materials, and 
supplies to numerous industries in Qatar 
in areas such as Oil & Gas, Building 
& Construction, Infrastructure, and 
Electrical & Mechanical. At the same 
time, we have diversified in areas such as 
Electrical, where we have substantially 
increased our offering in Lighting, and in 
Infrastructure where we have added MAT 
Filtration Technologies to our portfolio 
among many other examples.

Our Gulf Laboratories continued to be the 
leader in Qatar for geotechnical services 
with ground investigation, borehole 
drilling and also laboratory testing 
services. In addition to its physical and 
chemical laboratories, Gulf Laboratories 
has continued to expand its food analysis 
laboratory capabilities, and has also 

maintained approval as the Kahramaa 
transformer oil testing laboratory, one 
of only 10 in the world and the only one 
in the GCC region. At the same time, 
our Manweir Engineering business is 
continuing its efforts to turn around 
and grow that business, gaining local 
and global approval this past year from 
major national and international oil 
companies as an approved workshop for 
manufacturing and repair services.

The Mannai Travel Division has been 
impacted most heavily by the pandemic. 
But with many of the travel restrictions 
still in place, the turnaround last year 
has been quite remarkable. The Travel 
Division managed to more than double 
the Revenues from the year before while 
bringing the business to a profit, after 
suffering significant losses the year 
before. Qatar Logistics also delivered 
solid results under difficult circumstances 
given the rise in shipping costs and 
the related slowdown in both Freight 
Forwarding and Warehousing, growing 
both Revenues and Net Profit over the 
previous year. And lastly, our Home 
Appliances and Electronics Division, 
representing a variety of premium brands 
in Qatar in categories such as Televisions 
and other Electronics, Small and Large 
Domestic Appliances, Air Conditioners, 
and Watches, among other consumer 
categories, also delivered growth in both 
Revenues and Net Profit despite the 
continuing pandemic challenges and 
rising supply chain costs.

Mannai Corporation is a conglomerate 
operating within a single set of values that 
we call the “Mannai Way”. We work with 
an array of leading, globally recognised 
brands and international partners across 
our businesses. We sincerely appreciate 
the recognition accorded to us by our 
multinational principals for our on-going 
commitment to service and quality and 
have once again received many awards in 
2021.
 
We have been able to continue to 
collectively grow our Qatar businesses 
despite the ongoing supply chain issues 
and pandemic challenges this past 
year and look forward to this journey 
continuing in 2022 and beyond. We will 
continue to aim to provide a platform for 
future profitable growth, listening and 
responding to the changing needs of our 
customers and clients while staying true 
to our core values of service and quality, 
creating customer trust and value.

Michael Deeter
Chief Executive Officer
Mannai Qatar
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To create an environment which will attract 
and retain a committed team of talented 
professionals who will place Mannai at the 
forefront in our chosen markets.

OUR
VISION

OUR
MISSION

Through exceptional service 
and added value, build Mannai 
to be the most dependable 
business partner in the region.
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14.4
REVENUE

QR BILLION

745
EBIT

QR MILLION

1,242
EBITDA
QR BILLION

Total
Revenue
QR Billions 

2007 2011 2021

1.6

9.7

93.0

2007 2011 2021

1.0

6.8

16.2

Total
Net Profit
QR Millions 

2007 2011 2021

 101

941

4,220 Total
Cash Dividends
QR Millions 

2007 2011 2021

48

568

2,226

16.2
TOTAL

ASSETS

QR BILLION

Total
Assets
QR Billions 

Financial Highlights
2021

Financial highlights since listing 
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Board
of Directors

Sheikh Hamad Bin Abdulla  
Bin Khalifa Al-Thani
Chairman

Sheikh Tamim Bin Abdulla 
Bin Khalifa Al-Thani
Director

Mohammed Ali M.K. Al Kubaisi
Director

Sheikh Suhaim Bin Abdulla  
Bin Khalifa Al-Thani 
Vice Chairman

Sheikh Khalifa Bin Abdulla  
Bin Khalifa Al-Thani
Director
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Keith Higley
Director

Khaled Sultan Al Rabban
Director

Abdulla Mohammed Ali
Mohammed Al Kubaisi
Director

Ali Yousef Hussein Ali Kamal
Director

Mohammed Yousef Hussein
Ali Kamal
Director

15Annual Report 2021



Mannai
International

Sheikh Suhaim Bin Abdulla  
Bin Khalifa Al-Thani 
Chairman of the Executive Committee

Alekh Grewal
Managing Director

Keith Higley
Director

Santhosh Krishnamoorthy
Chief Financial Officer
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Mannai
Qatar

Khalid Mannai
Vice Chairman 
of the Executive Committee

Michael Deeter
Chief Executive Officer

Sheikh Suhaim Bin Abdulla  
Bin Khalifa Al-Thani 
Chairman of the Executive Committee

Ivor D’Cunha
Group General Manager,
Automotive

Santhosh Krishnamoorthy
Chief Financial Officer

Juan Leon
Group General Manager,
Information and Communication 
Technology
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Awards and Recognitions 2021

Information & Communication Technology

• Informatica Cloud Data Channel Partner of the Year Award 
for the EMEA and LATAM region 

• Huawei Digital Transformation Partner - Gulf North Region 

• Huawei Cloud and AI Partner of the Year - Gulf North Region 

• Huawei The Fellow Traveller - Gulf North Region 

• Huawei Gulf North Partner of the Year - Gulf North Region 

• Cisco Partner of the Year - MEA 

• Cisco Customer Experience Partner of the Year - MEA 

• Cisco Software Partner of the Year - Gulf North Region 

• Cisco CX Partner of the Year - Gulf North Region 

• Cisco Partner of the Year - Qatar 

• Milestone Systems Best Channel Partner - Qatar  

• NetApp The Value Creator - Qatar 

• Algosec Partner Excellence Award - Qatar 

• Axis Communications Partner of the Year - Qatar 

• Panduit Partner of the Year - Qatar 

• Microfocus Channel Partner of the Year - International 

• Aruba Best Enterprise Partner of the Year - Middle East & 
South Africa 

• Fortinet Partner of the Year - Qatar 
 

• Fortinet Strategic Deal of The Year - Qatar 

• HP Compute & Print Reseller of the Year -  
Egypt, Gulf & Levant 

• Beacon Medaes Aftersales Award - Qatar 

• SAP Top Partner of the Year - ME 

• Palo Alto Networks Partner of the Year - MEA 

• Dell Excellence in Vmware sales - Gulf 

• Tripwire Gold Certified Partner - Qatar 

• Ricoh CIP Business Partner - Qatar 

• Ricoh OP Strategic Partner - Qatar 

Automotive

• The Highest AMEO Lead Conversion Award  

• VECV Eicher Best Dealer Award of the Year 2021 

Energy & Industrial Markets

• Untes Excellence in Sales from Untes Heating Air-
conditioning Company, Turkey 

• Trane Partnership Appreciation Award Certificate 

• Ravago, Turkey Partnership Excellence and Appreciation 
Award Certificate 

• Lama Jordan Bituminous Products Center Partnership 
Excellence and Appreciation Award Certificate  

• QUDS Paints Jordan Partnership Excellence and 
Appreciation Award Certificate 

• Geosource India Partnership Excellence and Appreciation 
Award Certificate 

• Celeros Gold Award
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The Mannai Way

We want Mannai to be clearly recognised 
as the standard of excellence.

CUSTOMERS

Delighted customers are our future and 
we are judged by how well we:

• Exceed our customers’ 
expectations through listening and 
understanding

• Earn our customers loyalty and trust 
through honesty and courtesy

• Commit to the highest standards 
in quality of customer care, timely 
delivery and after sales service

• Become the customers first choice 
each and every time because of our 
passion for excellence

• Anticipate and respond to customer 
needs

LEADERSHIP

Everyone in Mannai is a leader. 
Leaders are judged by the standards 
they set for themselves. Leaders in 
Mannai:

• Share knowledge and ideas openly
• Treat everyone equally with fairness 

and integrity
• Motivate and inspire to get results
• Embrace and adapt to change 
• Empower people to take 

responsibility

COMMUNITY

Mannai aims to promote the interests 
of the countries in which we operate 
and will be judged by:

• Our contribution to the local 
economy

• Our adherence to practices that 
protect and support our natural 
environment

SHAREHOLDERS

We aim to meet the expectations of our 
shareholders, and we will be judged by:

• Our ability to deliver consistent long-
term value

• Our high standards of corporate 
governance

BUSINESS PARTNERS

We believe in an open partnership with 
our suppliers and can be judged by how 
well we:

• Deliver our best in class solutions to 
our customers

• Develop our long-term relationships 
as partner of choice

• Build competitive advantage for the 
businesses we represent

TEAMS

Mannai is a team. Our team is judged by 
how well we work together. We aim to:

• Practice open and clear 
communication

• Help one another to deliver benefits 
for the whole group

• Show respect for each other and take 
pride in our achievements

• Treat mistakes as an opportunity to 
learn, not to blame

• Create a stimulating environment 
where people are proud to work

20 Mannai Corporation Q.P.S.C





With reference to: 
• The Governance Code for Companies 

& Legal Entities Listed on the Main 
Market (hereinafter referred to as 
the “Code”), issued on 10th November 
2016 by Qatar Financial Markets 
Authority (hereinafter referred to as 
the “Authority”) pursuant Authority’s 
Board Decision No. 5 of 2016 ; and 

• Provisions of Article (2) of the Code 
which provides for the application 
of the principles and provisions of 
the Code to all companies and legal 
entities listed on the main market 
unless there is a special provision on 
this regard stipulated in any of the 
Authority’s Legislations; and

• Provisions of Article (4) of the Code, 
which requires preparation of a 
Corporate Governance report to be 
signed by the Chairman of the Board 
of Directors, that includes Company’s 
disclosure on its compliance with 
implementation of the provisions 
of the Code and all the information 
regarding the implementation of its 
principles and provisions referred to 
in the said Article, which report shall 
be held as an inseparable part of the 
Annual Report of the company.

THEREFORE 

The Board of Directors of Mannai 
Corporation QPSC (hereinafter referred 
to as the “Board of Directors”) has 
prepared this Corporate Governance 
Report of Mannai Corporation QPSC 
(hereinafter referred to as the 
“Company”) for the period from 1st 
January to 31st December 2021, guided 
by the principles and provisions of the 
Code, the related laws and regulations, 
circulars issued by the Authority, 
Company’s Articles of Association, 
sound Corporate Governance practices, 
the Management’s sound applications, 
and Corporate Governance standards. 
Through this Corporate Governance 
Report, the Company will keep the 
shareholders, other stakeholders 
and the public at large abreast of all 
its policies and practices in order to 
enable them to assess abidance of the 
Company by the Code and Corporate 
Governance principles in general. 

1. PREAMBLE
The Board of Directors has complete and 
absolute belief that the sound application 
of Corporate Governance rules and 
procedures leads to achievement of 
high and continuous growth, quality and 
excellence in performance, and also 
results in increased trust in the Company 
and aims to protect the interests of 
minorities and small shareholders, 
in addition to generating profits and 
providing job opportunities, reducing 
risk, and increasing performance 
competency and accountability.

Hence, the Board of Directors, following 
listing of the Company in Qatar 
Stock Exchange in 2007, appreciated 
the importance of the principles of 
Corporate Governance and recognized 
the importance of their application 
- even before issuance of the first 
Corporate Governance Code in the State 
of Qatar- as it was mentioned in the 
Report of the Board of Directors for the 
year 2007, under the title - Summary of 
2007, and the way ahead: “… expansion of 
the Board of Directors and strengthening 
Corporate Governance in the Company.” 

The Board of Directors called for 
initiating the structuring of its corporate 
governance procedures in line with the 
principles of the Code. Believing in the 
importance of corporate governance, 
the Board of Directors formed an 
ad hoc committee assigned with 
overseeing matters related to Corporate 
Governance. On December 3, 2009, 
the Board of Directors assigned the 
Corporate Governance Committee with 
enabling the Board of Directors, through 
good Corporate Governance, to add 
value to the Company and its reputation 
among its shareholders, related parties 
and stakeholders, and to always keep 
Directors abreast with the latest 
Corporate Governance developments and 
best practices to ensure the Directors’ 
understanding of their roles in Corporate 
Governance process and to ensure that 
the Board of Directors complies with 
relevant laws, regulations and codes of 
practice. The Committee consults legal 
advisors of the Company from time to 
time regarding provisions of the Code.

Mannai Corporation Q.P.S.C.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
1st January – 31st December, 2021
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Mannai Corporation Q.P.S.C.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

In order to ensure Company’s full 
commitment in performing its 
responsibility by ensuring its 
implementation to the letter and spirit of 
the Code, the Board of Directors called 
for an Extraordinary General Assembly 
meeting of the Company held on 27th 
March 2019 to amend the Articles of 
Association, a process which the Company 
started in the Extraordinary General 
Assembly meeting held on 3rd December 
2017 to fall in line with the Code, whereby 
the Assembly approved all proposals of 
the Board of Directors in this respect. On 
19th April 2020, the Extraordinary General 
Assembly of the Company was held to 
finalize the process of the amendment of 
the Articles of Association.

2. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY 
ON CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance means the 
following to the Board of Directors:

1. Method by which the Company 
practices its power to manage all 
its assets, and human and physical 
resources,

2. Management’s appreciation of the 
shareholders’ rights in their capacity 
as the owners of the Company,

3. Compliance with the rules, 
procedures, values, and moral and 
professional behaviour in practice 
of management and business, and 
taking sound decisions regarding 
the affairs of the Company,

4. Distribution of the rights and 
responsibilities between the 
different stakeholders and related 
parties in the Company.

In light of the above, the Board of 
Directors believes in the sound 
application of Corporate Governance 
and continuous development of 
Corporate Governance practices to 
suit the changing requirements and 
commitment to continuously review the 
Corporate Governance practices. The 
Board of Directors strongly believes 
in following the fundamental values 

of Corporate Governance in managing 
the Company, which are discipline, 
transparency, disclosure, independency, 
accountability, responsibility, fairness, 
social responsibility and accuracy in 
financial statements. The Board of 
Directors also tries to concentrate on the 
pillars of Corporate Governance, which 
are moral behaviour, strengthening roles 
of stakeholders, related parties and risk 
management.

Moreover, the Board of Directors 
fully realizes that implementation of 
Corporate Governance in the Company 
in a correct way does not mean mere 
respect of a set of rules and provisions, 
but it is also a culture and method in 
controlling the relationship between 
the shareholders, Board of Directors, 
Senior Executive Management, 
employees, and everyone dealing with 
the Company, so that the shareholders 
ensure that the Management makes 
right use of their property to optimize 
profitability and achieve effective 
control. All this is reflected in what is 
called “The Mannai Way”. 

Towards promotion of the highest 
Corporate Governance standards and 
consolidation of principles of the Code, 
the Board of Directors passed a number 
of resolutions represented in various 
regulations, charters, procedures, 
controls, policies, mechanisms and rules 
which are as follows: 

1. Company Corporate Governance Code.
2. Board Charter.
3. Stakeholders’ rights Policy.
4. Procedures Manual for Implementing 

Strategy and Objectives.
5. Disclosure System.
6. Policies & Procedures of the 

Company’s Compliance with the 
Laws and Regulations & the 
Company’s Obligation to Disclose 
Information.

7. Procedures for Availing Financial 
Services, Financial Analysis, Credit 
Rating etc.

8. Procedures for Nominating & 
Engaging External Auditors.

9. Procedures for Orienting New Board 
Members.

10. Self-control and Risk Management 
Programs.

11. Foundations and Standards for 
Evaluating the Performance of 
the Board and Senior Executive 
Management.

12. Rules & Procedures Regulating 
Insiders’ Trading of Company 
Securities.

13. Policies and Procedures for Related 
Party Transactions.

14. Whistle-blowing Policy 
15. Dividend Policy.
16. Succession Planning Policy.
17. Internal Control System Framework.
18. Compliance Management Framework.
19. Risk Management Policy.
20. Risk Management Procedures.
21. Company Policy for Dealing with 

Rumors. 

In this respect, the Board of Directors 
confirms that the Company, going 
forward, will not spare any efforts towards 
implementing the letter and spirit of the 
Code provisions, guided by corporate 
governance culture and international 
standards. 

3. BOARD CHARTER 

As required in the provisions of Article (8) 
of the Code, the Board of Directors has 
adopted a “Board Charter” which sets out, 
among other things, the functions of the 
Board of Directors and the rights, duties 
and responsibilities of the Chairman and 
members of the Board of Directors in 
accordance with provisions of the Law and 
the Code. The Charter has been published 
on the website of the Company for ready 
reference of the public. 

4. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board Charter and the Articles of 
Association of the Company have provided 
for functions and responsibilities of the 
Board of Directors as it is responsible 
for managing the company, setting its 
goals and strategies, and monitoring their 
implementation by the Senior Executive 
Management in accordance with the 
aforesaid functions, responsibilities, 
powers and duties of the Board of 
Directors, and each of the Chairman 
and Board members in the provisions of 
the Code, Board Charter and Articles of 
Association of the Company.
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The Board of Directors is assisted by a number of committees formed by resolutions passed by the Board of Directors in 
accordance with provisions of the Code, which resolutions have outlined terms of reference, duties, and work procedures 
of such committees. These committees comprise the Corporate Governance Committee, Audit Committee, Remuneration 
Committee and the Nomination Committee. 

a. MISSION AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

In compliance with the provisions of Article (9) of the Code, the provisions of Articles (30) and (31) of the Company’s Articles 
of Association provide that the Board of Directors is assigned with the responsibility of managing and supervising the 
Company. It has the broadest scope of authorities for the same and shall be entitled to assume all activities required for such 
management in accordance with the law, the Company’s Articles of Association, and resolutions of the General Assembly, in 
addition to appointing the senior executive management. Moreover, the Board of Directors may sometimes delegate some 
of its functions to undertake specific operations and constitute ad hoc committees, and in this event, the Board of Directors 
remains liable for the functions it has delegated.

b. DUTIES OF THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Chairman of the Board of Directors is the head of the Company and shall represent it before third parties, and his 
signature shall be held as signature of the Board of Directors in the Company’s relations with third parties, and he shall 
execute resolutions of the Board of Directors as provided for in Article (28) of the Company’s Articles of Association. In light 
of Article (III) of the Board Charter, the Chairman is responsible for ensuring the proper functioning of the Board of Directors, 
and has the right to call for Board meetings in accordance with provisions of Article (32) of the Company’s Articles of 
Association ensuring the discussion of all important points, approving the agenda of every meeting of the Board of Directors, 
promoting constructive relations between all the Board members, encouraging Board members to effectively participate in 
dealing with the affairs of the Board of Directors, and facilitating timely receipt of complete and accurate information by Board 
members. The Chairman of the Board of Directors is not a member in any of the Committees of the Board of Directors and 
does not combine Chairmanship of the Board of Directors and any executive position in the company. 

c. BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ OBLIGATIONS
 
In compliance with the provisions of Article (12) of the Code relating to obligations of Members of the Board, each Board 
Member shall observe all provisions of the said article. The Board of Directors constantly invite, in accordance with provisions 
of Article (36) of the Company’s Articles of Association, some of the Company’s senior executive managers, employees or other 
experts to attend the Board meetings in order to provide some information or explanations to enable the Board of Directors 
to act effectively to fulfill their responsibilities towards the Company on the basis of clear and sufficient information, in good 
faith, with due diligence and care, and in the best interests of the Company and all shareholders. In accordance with provisions 
of Article (12/8) of the Code, the Board of Directors has appointed Mr. Santhosh Krishnamoorthy, Acting Chief Financial Officer, 
as an official Spokesperson of the Company.

d. BOARD COMPOSITION

In the presence of representatives of Ministry of Commerce & Industry, the Board of Directors is elected by the General 
Assembly of shareholders in accordance with the requirements and rules set forth in the Code, the Commercial Companies 
Law and provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association, in particular provisions of Article (26) thereof. The current term of 
the Board of Directors expires by holding the annual General Assembly in 2022.

The Board Members have adequate expertise and knowledge to effectively perform their functions. The current Board 
of Directors composition includes executive and non-executive directors and the majority is non-executive, in addition to 
independent directors.
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The present Board composition, 
however, ensures non-control by one 
or more Board members in issuing 
decisions, in accordance with Article (6) 
of the Code. 

The Directors are qualified in various 
specializations. The Board efficiently 
shoulders its responsibilities and 
follows up the laws and regulations 
passed from time to time by the official 
regulatory and supervisory authorities 
to ensure Company’s compliance with 
such laws and regulations.

In 2021, the Chairman and Members 
of the Board of Directors submitted 
Acknowledgments in which each of 
them confirmed he doesn’t combine 
positions prohibited by the Code and 
the Law to be combined. Copies of such 
Acknowledgments are kept by Board 
Secretariat and the External Auditor 
reviewed such Acknowledgments.

Below are names, capacities and titles of the Chairman and members of the Board of Directors:

 S# Name Entity Represented Title Category

1 HE Sheikh Hamad Bin Abdulla  
Bin Khalifa Al Thani

Qatar International Real Estate Investment 
Co. WLL

Chairman Non-executive 

2 HE Sheikh Suhaim Bin Abdulla  
Bin Khalifa Al Thani

Qatar Investment and Projects Development 
Holding Company (QIPCO) WLL

Vice 
Chairman 

Executive 

3 HE Sheikh Khalifa Bin Abdulla  
Bin Khalifa Al Thani

Himself Director Independent 

4 HE Sheikh Tamim Bin Abdulla  
Bin Khalifa Al Thani

Himself Director Independent 

5 Mr. Mohammed Ali M.K. Al Kubaisi Specialized Projects Co. Director Non-executive 

6 Mr. Ali Yousuf Hussein Ali Kamal Al Sakhama Trading & Contracting Co. WLL Director Non-executive 

7 Mr. Khalid Sultan Al Rabban Qatar Investment Authority Director Non-executive 

8 Mr. Mohammed Yousuf Hussein Ali Kamal Himself Director Independent

9 Mr. Abdulla Mohammed Ali Mohammed 
Al Kubaisi

Grand Business Services Co. WLL Director Non-executive 

10 Mr. Keith John Higley Qatar Investment and Projects Development 
Holding Company (QIPCO) WLL

Director Executive

According to the provisions of Article 
(32)(1) of the Company’s Articles of 
Association, the number of Board 
meetings shall not be less than six 
meetings in a fiscal year in compliance 
with the provisions of Article (14) of the 
Code. The Board of Directors held 6 
meetings during 2021 on the following 
dates: 17th March 2021, 28th April 2021, 
16th June 2021, 11th August 2021, 27th 
October 2021, and 22nd December 2021.

In accordance with the provisions of 
Article 32 of the Company’s Articles of 
Association, and in compliance with 
provisions of Article (13) of the Code, 
the Board meets upon invitation by 
its Chairman or at least two Board 
Members. The invitation for the Board 
meeting and agenda are communicated 
to each Board Member at least a week 
ahead, noting that any Board Member 
may add any item to the agenda.

In compliance with the provisions of 
Article (17) of the Code and according 
to the provisions of Article 32(5) of 
Company’s Articles of Association, a 
Secretary complying with all mandatory 
regulatory requirements for the position 
has been appointed for the Board of 
Directors, whose functions include 
recording and safekeeping the minutes 
of all the Board meetings, and ensuring 
that the Board members have access to 
all the meeting minutes, information, 
documents and records of the Company. 
The Secretary of the Board carries out 
all the tasks mentioned in the said 
Article.
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5. OTHER BOARD 
FUNCTIONS & DUTIES 

In compliance with provisions of Article 
(9) of the Code, we would like to point 
out to the following: 

a. The Board carries out its duties in a 
responsible manner, in good faith and 
with due diligence towards realizing 
Company interests.

b. Directors have absolute access 
to all necessary information and 
documents relating to the Company.

c. Members of the various committees, 
the Internal Auditor, and External 
Auditor always attend General 
Assembly meetings.

d. The Board decisions are based 
on sufficient Information from the 
executive management. 

e. A Board member represents all 
shareholders. 

f. The Board has set out procedures for 
orienting the new Board members of 
the Company’s business. 

g. The Board of Directors from time to 
time provides training courses for 
Directors in order to enhance their 
skills and professional knowledge. 
The Company not only provides such 
courses to Directors, but also to 
members of the Senior Executive 
Management team. 

h. The Corporate Governance 
Committee at all times keeps 
Directors updated about the 
latest developments in the area of 
Corporate Governance. 

i. In accordance with provisions of 
Article (14) of the Code, Article (33) 
of the Articles of Association of the 
Company contains rules governing 
Directors’ unauthorized absence from 
Board meetings.

 

6. CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER’S FUNCTIONS 

The Board of Directors has appointed 
Mr. Michael Deeter as CEO for Qatar 
Operations, replacing Mr. Alekh Grewal, 
with effect from 1st July 2020. 
The CEO, represents the link between 
the Board of Directors and the Executive 
Management and he is entrusted, 
among other tasks, with the following:

1. Ensuring that the resolutions of 
the Board of Directors are properly 
implemented.

2. Reviewing and discussing company 
strategies and plans submitted by the 
Executive Management.

3. Ensuring that work directives in 
general are in conformity with 
the goals set out by the Board of 
Directors.

4. Providing the Board of Directors with 
periodical reports on performance of 
the company.

7. SENIOR EXECUTIVE 
MANAGEMENT 
RESPONSIBILITIES 

The Senior Executive Management is 
entrusted with the responsibilities of 
carrying out the functions as directed 
by the Chief Executive Officer. Their 
responsibilities are clearly described in 
the job description with the company. 
They are empowered to do all such 
acts and deeds as may be deemed 
essential by them in discharging their 
responsibilities, subject to restrictions 
as specified in the operational manuals 
of the company such as the Authority 
Matrix, Employee Handbook, etc. 

8. CONFLICT OF INTERESTS 
AND INSIDER TRADING

a. The Board of Directors has adopted 
and announced the rules relating 
to the Company’s entering into any 
commercial transaction with a related 
party, to ensure that all transactions 
that involve potential related parties 
or conflicts of interest are determined 
on a fair, reasonable and consistent 
basis. According to the provisions of 
Article 35(5) of the Company’s Articles 
of Association, the Board of Directors 
shall provide to the shareholders, 
before holding the General Assembly, 
the operations in which the Chairman 
or a Board member or a manager 
may have interests in conflict with 
Company interests. 

During the period from 1st January 
to end of December 2021, Company 
sales to Related Parties amounted 
to QR 74.33 million, while Company 
purchases from Related Parties 
amounted to QR.1.33 million.

b. The Board of Directors has adopted 
and announced the rules relating 
to transactions of insiders and 
to prevent leak of any internal 
information which were not published 
to all shareholders, and these rules 
cover Board of Directors, Senior 
Executive Management, managers 
and all employees of the Company, 
and the families of those persons. 
The purpose of this is to:

1. Maintain equality between all 
shareholders in receipt of internal 
information of the Company.

2. Raise the transparency and 
disclosure level and increase the 
shareholders’ trust in the Company.

3. Avoid any suspicion on insiders 
benefiting personal gains from use of 
internal information. 

The Policies and Procedures of 
“Related Party Transactions” and 
“Insider Trading & Conflict of Interest” 
have been published on the Company’s 
website.
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9. METHOD OF SETTING 
REMUNERATION OF 
MEMBERS OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
AND SENIOR EXECUTIVE 
MANAGEMENT

The remuneration of the members 
of the Board of Directors shall be set 
by the shareholders in the Ordinary 
General Assembly of the Company 
according to the provisions of Article 
(37) of the Company’s Articles of 
Association which was amended in 
the Extraordinary General Assembly 
meeting held on 27th March 2019 to be 
in line with provisions of the Code. The 
total Board of Directors remuneration 
shall not be estimated at more than 5% 
of the net profit of the company after 
deduction of legal reserves, deductions 
and distribution of dividends in cash 
and kind to the shareholders. 

The policy of determining remuneration 
of the Board of Directors and the 
senior executive management takes 
into account the responsibilities and 
scope of the functions of the Board 
Members and members of Senior 
Executive Management as well as 
the performance of the Company. 
Compensation may include fixed and 
performance related components and 
such performance related components 
may also be related to the long term 
performance of the Company. The 
Company’s Remuneration Policy was 
approved and adopted at the Ordinary 
General Assembly held on February 17, 
2010.

In addition, the provisions of Article 
(35)(1) of the Company’s Articles 
of Association require the Board of 
Directors to provide to shareholders 
before holding the General Assembly all 
the amounts received by the Chairman 
and members of the Board of Directors 
of the Company during the fiscal year, 
including wages, charges, salaries, 
and consideration for attending Board 
meetings, and sundry expenses, in 
addition to amounts received by each of 
them as a technical or administrative 

employee or in consideration of 
any technical or administrative or 
consultative work rendered to the 
Company.

An amount of QR.12.93 million has been 
allocated as Directors’ remuneration 
subject to approval by the Ordinary 
General Assembly of the Company, 
while an amount of QR.11.57 million 
has been allocated as Executive 
Committee remuneration during 2021.
 

10. COMMITTEES OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

While most of the important affairs 
are discussed in the meeting of the 
Board of Directors, the Board of 
Directors, in accordance with the 
provisions of Article (8) of the Code, 
has passed resolutions forming a 
number of committees in accordance 
with Provisions of the Code and 
outlining their responsibilities, duties 
and work provisions and procedures, 
which committees are assigned with 
some responsibilities to support the 
Board of Directors in performing its 
functions in the best way. The ultimate 
responsibility, however, remains with 
the Board of Directors at all times. 
Committees submit annual reports 
to the Board of Directors including 
works rendered and recommendations 
reached. 

These committees are as follows:

a. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE

This committee is comprised of the 
following members: 

1. Mr. Keith Higley, Chairman 

2. Mr. Abdulla Mohamed Al Kubaisi, 
Member

3. Mr. Khalid Al Rabban, Member 

This committee was referred to in 
the beginning of this Report in the 
Preamble. We add here that the 
committee, periodically and from 

time to time, performs review of the 
Company’s Corporate Governance 
system, updates the Board on the 
developments in this regard and 
presents recommendations to the 
Board of Directors. 

b. REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is formed 
in accordance with the provisions of 
Article (18) (Second) of the Code. It 
consists of the following members:

1. HE Sheikh Suhaim Bin Abdullah Bin 
Khalifa Al Thani, Chairman

2. Mr. Mohammed Ali Mohammed 
Khamees Al Kubaisi, Member

3. Mr. Keith John Higley, Member

This committee shall oversee the 
Remuneration principles and policies of 
the Company, including remuneration 
of the Board of Directors and Senior 
Executive Management, and keep the 
Board advised accordingly. 

The remuneration policies and 
principles were presented before the 
shareholders in the General Assembly 
held on February 17, 2010 and 
were approved and published in the 
Company’s Annual Report.

The Remuneration Committee held two 
meetings during 2021 on the following 
dates: 10th March 2021 and 22nd 
December 2021.

Works of the Committee during the 
year included review of the annual 
performance reports on the Senior 
Executives for the year ended 31st 
December 2020. It also reviewed a 
proposed structure to form the basis 
of recruiting a CEO for the company’s 
domestic business in Qatar as part of 
the company’s Succession Planning.

The Committee recommended levels of 
Senior Executives remuneration to the 
Board following the closure of the 2020 
financial statements.
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c. NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee is formed in 
accordance with the provisions of Article 
(18) (First) of the Code. It consists of the 
following members:

1. Mr. Mohammed Ali Mohammed 
Khamees Al Kubaisi, Chairman

 
2. Mr. Ali Yousuf Kamal, Member

3. Mr. Keith Higley, Member 

The Committee, during the year 2021, 
held two meetings on 15th March 2021 
and 28th December 2021.

The main role of the Nominations 
Committee is to ensure that nominations 
and appointments of Board Members 
shall be made according to formal, 
rigorous and transparent procedures, 
and to conduct self-assessment of the 
Board’s performance from time to time.
 
The Committee also sets principles for 
selection and nominations to the Board 
of Directors in compliance with the 
provisions of Article 18(First) of the Code.

The Committee prepared an Annual 
Report on Board performance for the 
year 2021. It ensured that the Directors 
were advised to attend Board meetings.

As per Article (18) (first) 3, the 
Committee recommended and advised 
necessary coordination for development 
of a succession plan for managing 
the company to ensure the timely 
alternatives to fill any vacant positions.

In accordance with Article (18)/7 of 
the Code, the Nomination Committee 
submitted a report to the Board 
including appraisal of the Board 
performance for the year 2021. 

The Nomination Committee had 
circulated a questionnaire headed 
“Board Effectiveness Review” to the 
Directors in which they were requested 
to consider various areas such as 
corporate strategy, Board meetings, 
risk management, succession & 
development, Board composition and 
training, and Board effectiveness.
 

We can certainly confirm that the report 
concluded that the Board effectiveness 
was positive as the Board structure fully 
complies with the Code and applicable 
laws regarding composition of the Board. 
The attendance level at Board meetings 
in 2021 including representation 
and proxies reported average 97% 
throughout the year. Chairpersons 
and members of Board committees 
also performed well with respect to 
attendance of Committees’ meetings and 
delivering their tasks and duties. Board 
agenda are appropriate and circulated 
on timely basis. Presentations by the 
Management are professional and 
succinct. Directors are also granted the 
right balance of support and challenge 
to management. Every director has a 
voice at the meetings and the right level 
of discussion takes place on key issues 
and potential investment decisions. In a 
nutshell, the Annual Report prepared by 
the Nomination Committee expressed 
satisfaction with regard to compliance 
of the Board members in achieving 
the company’s interests, doing the 
Committees’ works, and their attending 
of the Board and Committees’ meetings.

d. AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is formed in 
accordance with the provisions of Article 
18(Third) of the Code. It consists of the 
following members:

1. HE Sheikh Khalifa Bin Abdulla  
Al Thani, Chairman 

2. Mr. Abdulla Mohamed Al Kubaisi, 
Member

3. Mr. Mohamed Yousuf Kamal, Member

This committee does not include any 
person who is or has been employed 
by the Company’s external auditors as 
per the provisions of the said Article 
of the Code. The Committee meets at 
least every three months and keeps 
minutes of its meetings. The Audit 
Committee held six meetings during 
2021 on the following dates: 15th March 
2021, 27th April 2021, 15th June 2021, 11th 
August 2021, 27th October 2021, and 22nd 
December 2021.

The Committee during the year reviewed 
adequacy of the system of Internal 
Controls and Risk Management System, 
periodic audits performed and work 
done by the Risk, Compliance and 
Internal Audit Activity. It also reviewed 
the contract and nominations of external 
auditors besides review of dealings 
in the related parties and relevant 
controls. The Committee further 
reviewed the accuracy and validity of 
financial statements, related notes and 
disclosures, the External Auditor’s report 
and financial and accounting policies.

Major recommendations of the 
Committee included the following: 

1. Based on the review of offers 
and credentials, KPMG were 
recommended to be the external 
auditors for 2021.

2. Recommendations for financial 
statements, accounting policies 
and procedures, related note and 
disclosures.

3. Appointment of Head of Risk, 
Compliance and Internal Audit.

4. Approval of the Internal Audit plan for 
2022.

11. INTERNAL CONTROL 
AND RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Company has long established 
internal control procedures and 
processes for Risk Management. These 
processes are reviewed regularly and 
modified to meet the growing challenges 
in a dynamic business environment. 

The Board of Directors is responsible 
for the Company’s internal control, the 
overall aim of which is to safeguard 
the Company’s assets and thereby 
its shareholders’ investment. Board 
of Directors and its Audit Committee 
oversee the actions of management and 
monitor the effectiveness of the internal 
control systems that have been put in 
place. In this regard, we can mention the 
following:
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(1) The Company’s compliance with all 
the provisions of the Code, relevant 
laws and regulations, and the 
Company’s Articles of Association, as 
Article (30) of the Company’s Articles 
of Association provides that the Board 
of Directors’ authority to manage 
the Company is not restricted except 
by provisions of the law or the 
Company’s Articles of Association or 
resolutions of the General Assembly.

(2) The Executive Committee reviews and 
updates the professional conduct rules 
setting forth the Company’s corporate 
values and other internal policies and 
procedures that should be complied 
with. These rules include Employee 
Manual, Audit Committee Charter, 
Company Regulations, Related Party 
Transactions Policy, Insider Trading 
Policy, and other circulars issued by 
the Senior Executive Management 
from time to time.

(3) The Company has adopted the 
Internal Control System Framework 
that includes five components of 
internal control system: control 
environment, risk assessment, 
control activities, information and 
communication, and monitoring.

(4) The company has adopted a Risk 
Management policy and Procedure. 
The policy provides guidance on 
the risk and resilience framework 
in place to support the Company’s 
strategic and operational objectives. 
The procedure integrates the process 
for managing risk into overall 
governance, values, and culture in 
line with strategic and operational 
objectives.

(5) The Company integrates the 
principles of problem identification 
and continuous improvement into 
its business operation process 
and makes continuous efforts to 
train employees who will put these 
principles into practice. 

(6) The Internal Control systems are set 
under clear lines of responsibility, 
accountability, and audit throughout 
the Company’s departments and 
divisions.

(7) The Board of Directors continuously 
evaluates the information provided 
by the Senior Executive Management 
and the Audit Committee. The Audit 
Committee’s task of monitoring the 
efficiency of internal control systems 
by the management team is of 
particular interest to the Board. This 
work includes checking that steps are 
taken with respect to any problems 
detected and suggestions made by 
auditors to rectify them.

(8) Internal control has been developed 
under following policies:

a) Systems to ensure that the 
Management executes their 
responsibilities in compliance with 
relevant laws and regulations and the 
Company’s Articles of Association;

b) Rules and systems related to the 
management of risk of loss;

c) Systems to ensure that employees 
conduct business in compliance 
with relevant laws and regulations 
(including the Code) and articles of 
association;

d) Systems to ensure appropriateness 
of business operations;

e) Systems to ensure that all 
transactions that involve potential 
related parties or conflicts of interest 
are determined on a fair, reasonable 
and consistent basis. The Company 
has established a number of control 
processes relating to conflict of 
interest between the Company and 
related parties.

(9) The Senior Executive Management 
continuously evaluates the adequacy 
of its systems, processes and 
controls to ensure that the deviations 
and risk are minimized.

(10) The Head of Internal Audit submits 
to the Audit Committee a periodic 
internal audit report which includes 
a review and assessment of the 
internal control systems of the 
Company.

In respect of the current period, the 
Board considered the internal control 
systems effective and adequate. 
No significant areas of concern 
which might affect shareholders 
were identified. During the period, 
minor control deviations have been 
adequately dealt with through 
appropriate corrective actions. There 
have been no significant internal 
control failures affecting the financial 
performance of the Company.

The Company monitors and manages 
the risk relating to operations 
through risk reports devised by the 
management. These reports are 
discussed in the monthly business 
review meetings. 

The financial risk management 
aspects are disclosed in the annual 
audited report of the Company.

(11) The general risk policy and the 
basic principles underpinning it 
are implemented by means of a 
comprehensive risk control and 
management system based upon a 
proper definition and allocation of 
functions and responsibilities at the 
operating level and upon supporting 
procedures, methodologies and tools, 
suitable for the various stages and 
activities within the system. The risk 
factors to which the Company is 
subject are set forth generally below:

a) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE RISKS
 
Possibility that requirements of the 
Code/laws are misinterpreted/not 
complied with.

b) MARKET RISKS

Impact on company’s operations and 
results due to fluctuations in prices 
of its commodities traded and market 
prices of financial assets, among 
others. 

c) CREDIT RISKS

Possibility that a counter party fails 
to perform its contractual obligations, 
thus causing an economic or financial 
loss to the Group.
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d) BUSINESS RISKS

Uncertainty as to the behavior of key 
variables inherent in the business. 

e) REGULATORY RISKS

Resulting from regulatory changes 
made by the various regulators.

f) OPERATIONAL RISKS

Direct or indirect financial losses 
caused by inadequate internal 
processes, technological failures, 
human error, or as a consequence of 
external events. 

g) REPUTATIONAL RISKS

Potential negative impact on the 
Company’s value resulting from 
business performance not living up to 
the expectations created among various 
stakeholders.

(12) In compliance with Article (22) 
of the Code, the Internal Auditor 
periodically submits a report to the 
Audit Committee, which includes 
a review and assessment of the 
internal control system of the 
Company. The Report covers all what 
is provided for in the Article (22) of 
the Code. It is noteworthy that the 
Internal Auditor has access to all 
documents to review all aspects and 
activities of internal control, and to 
carry out comprehensive audits of 
practices, procedures and internal 
controls of all business and support 
units and subsidiaries on regular 
basis.

(13) The Audit Committee regularly 
studies all important and 
extraordinary items contained in 
the reports prepared by the internal 
and external auditors by taking 
appropriate decisions and conducting 
continuous assessment of the 
information submitted by the Audit 
Committee or the Internal or External 
Auditor, so that the internal control 
systems are implemented effectively 
and correctly.

(14) The key practical measures and 
precautions taken by the Company to 
mitigate risks and material mistakes 
are represented in the following: 

a. Concerning disclosing appraisal 
of the Senior Management’s 
implementation of the Internal 
Control and Risk Management 
System, the Audit Committee, as 
per Article 18(Third) of the Code, 
submitted an Annual Report to the 
Board that satisfactorily covered 
the performance assessment of 
Senior Executive Management in 
implementing Internal Control and 
Risk Management System and is 
well supported by periodical Internal 
Control Reports and External 
Auditor’s Report as per Articles (22) 
and (24) of the Code respectively.

b. The Authority matrix clearly defines 
limits of authority within the 
organization and covers all functions 
like recruitment, procurement, 
contracts etc.

c. Comprehensive Accounting Manual 
is available which lays down policies 
and rules applicable for all financial 
and accounting matters relating to 
the Company.

d. Board approves and passes 
resolutions for establishing 
relationship with banks and 
authorizes two signatories to jointly 
execute all documents required for 
availing any facility with the banks.

e. No single person at the Company 
has the absolute authority to make 
decisions. The Company’s Board 
composition, further, ensures that 
no one member or more dominate 
issuing the Board decisions, as per 
Article (6) of the Code.

f. The Company has an independent 
Internal Audit department headed by 
General Manager – Audit, which is 
under the direct supervision of the 
Internal Audit committee chaired by 
an independent board member. 

g. Insurance is professionally managed 
by the Group, and annual review of 
all insurance policies, insured values 
etc. is made in consultation with 
business units and Group Finance.

h. Monthly meetings are held with all 
business unit heads to review the 
operations, financial performance 
of the businesses and address any 
issues immediately. Performance 
review pack is circulated in advance 
which is discussed in detail at the 
review meetings attended by the 
CEO, Qatar Operations and CFO.

i. Financial statements prepared and 
published in accordance with IFRS 
and in compliance with QE and 
QFMA regulations.

j. All related party transactions are 
carried out on arms-length basis 
and related party transactions are 
reported in published financial 
statements.

In brief, internal control weaknesses 
and failures are reported to the 
management and the Board through 
various external and internal audit 
reports. 

An annual Internal Controls over 
Financial Reporting (ICOFR) assessment 
is performed by the management to 
test the design, implementation and 
operating effectiveness of key financial 
controls, which is subsequently reviewed 
by the external auditor. Management 
and the external auditor did not identify 
any material weaknesses and concluded 
that ICOFR is appropriately designed, 
implemented and operated effectively as 
of 31st December 2021.

For the year 2021, no major internal 
control shortcomings or failures were 
identified that could materially affect the 
company’s financial performance.

12. EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The External Auditor is appointed 
by the General Assembly upon 
recommendation of the Board of 
Directors. During the General Assembly 
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meeting held on 7th April, 2021, the 
shareholders appointed M/s. KPMG as 
the external auditor for the financial 
year of 2021 M/s. KPMG are qualified 
and independent of the Company and 
the Board of Directors.

The External Auditor also carries out 
independent annual audit and semi-
annual review aimed at ensuring that 
the financial statements are prepared 
in accordance with the international 
standards. The half-annual financial 
statements for the year 2021 were 
issued on 11th August 2021 and the 
annual financial statements were 
presented to the Board on 17th March 
2021. All the financial reports are 
published in Arabic and English 
newspapers. The shareholders and 
public may also log on the Company’s 
website for the financial results and 
other related information. The External 
Auditor attends the Company’s annual 
ordinary General Assembly and answers 
any queries raised by the shareholders. 

13. TRANSPARENCY AND 
DISCLOSURE

As we have mentioned before, 
Transparency and Disclosure are 
fundamental values in Corporate 
Governance, and they are two sides to 
a coin: if one is not available, the other 
becomes absent, as they are considered 
powerful tools in having effect on 
the behavior of the Company, and to 
protect the shareholders and investors 
and support them in evaluating the 
competence of the management, and 
taking appropriate decisions that 
are based on sufficient information 
regarding evaluation of the Company.

Based on the provisions of Chapter 
(V) of the Code on Disclosure and 
Transparency, the Company has 
complied with all the disclosure 
requirements mentioned in the Chapter, 
in addition to market listing and 
disclosure rules. A Company website 
was developed that contains all the 
important and basic information of the 
Company, including but not limited 
to the financial reports, the various 
Committees formed by the Board of 

Directors and their Terms of References, 
and the résumés of each member of the 
Board of Directors.

The Company carries out timely and 
accurate disclosure of the financial 
statements and other important 
information. The Board of Directors 
ensures that all disclosures made by 
the Company provide accurate and true 
information which is non-misleading. 

Also, according to the provisions of 
Article 3(g) of the Audit Committee 
Charter, the committee is assigned 
with the supervision of compliance 
with disclosure rules and any other 
requirements. 

It is important to mention here that the 
Company provides all the necessary 
information to the External auditors 
so as to enable them to prepare 
the Company’s financial reports in 
accordance and compliance with 
the IFRS and ISA standards and 
requirements. It is clearly stated in 
the external auditor’s report that 
the Company conforms to IFRS and 
that the audit has been conducted in 
accordance with ISA. The Company’s 
audited financial reports are published 
in newspapers, announced on the 
website, and copies are distributed to 
shareholders in the General Assembly.

The company is also subject to all the 
applicable laws in the State, particularly 
laws, regulations and circulars issued by 
the various regulatory authorities such 
as but not limited to the Authority, Qatar 
Stock Exchange, Ministry of Commerce 
& Industry, Qatar Central Securities 
Depository, etc. which jurisdictions the 
company is subject to and for which the 
company is accountable. The Company 
has in place a Compliance Framework, 
which clearly mentions the procedures 
formulated by the Company to monitor 
and ensure compliance.

The Board of Directors, from time to 
time, makes the necessary amendments 
to the Articles of Association, 
regulations or internal systems of the 
company as may be required by such 
laws and regulations.

The Legal Department keeps the Board 
of Directors at all times abreast with all 
these laws, regulations and circulars, 
most importantly, the Commercial 
Companies Law and the Code. 

Pursuant to Article (27) of the Code, Any 
Related Party, which is a party, has a 
relation with a business dealing, or has 
a relation with or a transaction entered 
into by the Company, shall not attend 
the Board meeting while discussing that 
dealing, relationship or transaction. 
Such Related Party shall not be entitled 
to vote on such resolutions issued by the 
Board regarding these relationships or 
transactions.

The Audit Committee reviews related 
party transactions and relevant controls.

The Policies and Procedures of Related 
Party Transactions approved by the 
Board of Directors referred to all the 
aforesaid provisions.

14. SHAREHOLDERS 
RIGHTS

The Board of Directors and the Senior 
Executive Management recognize 
their responsibilities to represent 
the interest of all shareholders and 
to maximize shareholder value. The 
Board of Directors ensures respect 
of the shareholders rights in a way 
that achieves fairness and equality in 
accordance with provisions of the Code, 
relevant laws and regulations and the 
Articles of Association of the Company. 

The Company’s Articles of Association 
includes provisions that ensure non-
discrimination between shareholders. 
For instance, Article (18) states that 
“Each share shall entitle its holder to a 
portion equal to that of others without 
any discrimination…,” Article (16) states 
that “Any shareholder can own any 
number of shares in the Company…,” 
and last but not least, Article (40) states 
that “Each shareholder shall be entitled 
to a number of votes equal to the 
number of his shares….” 
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Moreover, according to the provisions of 
the Code and the Company’s Articles of 
Association, the shareholders have the 
right to:

1. Attend the General Assembly 
Meetings.

2. Vote personally or by proxy in the 
General Assembly Meetings.

3. Look into and approval of the 
Board of Directors’ proposals 
for distribution of dividends. On 
February 17, 2010, the General 
Assembly approved the policy of 
distribution of dividends based on 
the recommendation of the Board of 
Directors including background and 
rationale of such policy in terms of 
the best interest of the Company and 
the shareholders simultaneously. 
As per extract from the dividend 
policy: “The Company believes that the 
payment of dividends is an important 
element in creating shareholder value 
for its investors and subject to the 
above, it is the policy of the company 
at this time, which may be subject to 
changes in the future, to propose to the 
shareholders cash dividends generally 
in line with the market”.

4. Invitation to General Assembly 
meeting and the right to place items 
on the agenda, discuss matters listed 
on the agenda and address questions 
and receive answers thereupon.

5. Elect members of the Board of 
Directors. The Board members were 
elected in the General Assembly held 
on March 27, 2019.

15. OWNERSHIP RECORDS

As the Company is listed on Qatar Stock 
Exchange, the record that contains 
the names of the shareholders shall 
be with Qatar Central Securities 
Depository in its capacity as in-charge 
of follow up of shareholders’ affairs, 
and it is considered authorized by 
the Company to keep and regulate 
this record. The Company requests 
Qatar Central Securities Depository 
on monthly basis to provide updated 

shareholder records to be kept at the 
Company in accordance with article (30) 
of the Code.

16. STAKEHOLDERS’ 
RIGHTS (NON-
SHAREHOLDERS)

In accordance with the provisions of 
Article (38) of the Code, the Board 
of Directors ensures that the rights 
of stakeholders and related parties 
such as employees, creditors, clients, 
customers, suppliers, investors etc. are 
all protected and respected, and they 
have complete freedom in obtaining 
correct and sufficient information. The 
Company’s Management maintains 
open and transparent communication 
channels with stakeholders, and also 
the information is published through 
the Company’s website and the daily 
newspapers.

The Company’s Management follows 
a principle of fairness and equality 
among the employees and workers, 
and there is no discrimination based on 
race, gender or religion. It is mentioned 
in the Employee Manual that “The 
Company policy is not to discriminate 
in its activities or with respect to 
employment terms and conditions on the 
basis of age, gender, race, colour, national 
origin or religion. Such a policy ensures 
that only relevant factors are considered, 
and that equitable and consistent 
standards of conduct and performance 
are applied.” 

The Management also provides 
incentives and remuneration according 
to specific policies and principles. 
On February 17, 2010, the General 
Assembly, upon recommendation of 
the Board of Directors, approved the 
Remuneration policy which aims at 
remunerating fairly and responsibly 
in light of performance related 
components and scope of the functions 
at all levels, and to link rewards to 
corporate and individual performance 
and shareholders’ interests.

On the other hand, the Board of 
Directors has adopted a Whistle 
Blowing Policy providing protection and 
confidentiality when any suspicious 
behavior is reported to the Management, 
where such behavior is unethical, 
illegal, or detrimental to the Company’s 
and shareholders’ interests, and ensure 
protection of the reporter from any 
harm or negative reaction by others. 
The Management is committed to taking 
cognizance of and investigating all cases 
of reported misconduct or wrongdoing. 
The Board of Directors has adopted a 
Rumor Policy to discourage and, where 
possible, prevent any unethical, illegal 
or false information which may harm the 
Company’s or stakeholders’ interests.

17. SOCIAL & SPORT 
CONTRIBUTION FUND 

In compliance with Article (39) of the 
Code concerning social responsibility 
of companies and Law No. (13) of 2008, 
amended by Law No (8) of 2011 Which 
provides for collection of 2.5% of the 
annual net profits of shareholding 
companies listed in Qatar Stock 
Exchange in support of sports, cultural, 
social and charitable activities, and 
according to the audited financial 
statements of the Financial Year 
2021, there are no outstanding amounts 
payable to the Social and Sports 
Contribution Fund (DAAM) for the year 
2020 and an amount of QR.6.90 million 
has been allocated for the DAAM Fund 
contribution for the year 2021.

18. SUITS & DISPUTES IN 
WHICH THE COMPANY IS A 
PARTY

Suit No. 3374/2020 was filed by Al 
Khoury sons, the Landlord of the 
former Head Office premises of the 
Company, initially against Al Emadi 
Enterprises, developer and lessor of the 
premises claiming rent amounting to 
QR12,100,000. The Company was added 
as a party to the suit. Litigation is in 
progress and the suit has been assigned 
to an expert.
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19. VIOLATIONS

During 2021, the Company did not 
commit any violations nor did it receive 
any penalties imposed whether by the 
Authority, Qatar Stock Exchange or the 
Ministry of Commerce & Industry.

20. INVESTOR RELATIONS 

During 2021, the Company held 4 
Earning Calls following publication of 
the quarterly, half-annual and annual 
financial statements during which 
queries by participants were answered. 
Investor Presentations were published 
on the website of the Company. A 
dedicated IR Section was created on the 
website of the Company.

21. COMPANY 
ENVIRONMENT 
PRESERVATION 
PROCEDURES 

The Company is fully committed and 
has a host of environmental system 
and procedures in place which are 
represented in the following: 

Environmental Responsibility and 
Sustainability: 

Related Policies and Frameworks:

• Group Health, Safety & Environment 
(HSE) Policy

• E.g., ICT IMS Policy and HVAC QHSE 
Policy

• E.g., ISO 14001:2015 certification 
of ICT Division since 2016 and ISO 
14001:2015 implementation ongoing 
for HVAC department (planned 
Certification audit mid-December 
2021)
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Environmental Risks & Emergencies:

• Emergency Preparedness Procedure
• Mock-drills (e.g., chemical spills)
• Environment trainings
• Integrated Risk assessment Review 

(IRAR)

Communication & Awareness:

• Toolbox talks on environment
• Employee awareness emails
• Environmental statement on all ICT 

purchase orders to suppliers
• Environmental statement on all ICT 

delivery notes to customers

Waste management:

• Wastewater (sewage) is collected in 
dedicated in tanks (separate from 
rainwater) and regularly hauled 
by a licensed waste management 
company

• Office and operational waste is 
segregated by category (e.g., 
paper, cardboard, wood, glass, 
metal, electronics, used oil, etc.) 
and collected by a licensed waste 
management company. Waste types 
that are suitable for recycling are 
processed for recycling by that 
service provider

Energy Preservation:

• New Mannai head office is equipped 
with all high-efficiency equipment 
(e.g., lights, AC, etc.)

• Other offices and operations buildings 
such as warehouses and workshops 
are already or will be upgraded to all-
LED lighting.

• Largest non-government solar plant 
is planned on the roof of Mannai’s 
Auto Service Center after its 
renovation to energize air-condition 
and charging station for electric 
vehicles.

22. COMPLIANCE WITH 
THE QFMA’S RELEVANT 
REGULATIONS INCLUDING 
THE CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE CODE
 
In accordance with Article (2) of the 
Code, the Company carried out an 
assessment on its compliance with 
the Authority’s relevant regulations 
applicable to the Company including the 
Code.

As a result of the assessment, 
management concluded that there is a 
process in place to ensure compliance 
with the Authority’s relevant regulations 
and it is in compliance with provisions of 
the Code as at 31st December 2021.

pp. Hamad Bin Abdullah Bin 
Khalifa Al Thani
Chairman of the Board of 
Directors.
16th March, 2022
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APAC (Macau), BRAZIL (Sao Paulo)

COLOMBIA (Bogota)

FRANCE (Lille, Lyon, Meudon, Nantes, Toulouse)

INDIA (Pune)

MOROCCO (Casablanca)

ENGAGEMENT 
We keep growing yet stay close 
to our clients.

INNOVATION 
We are constantly co-inventing 
the technology-based business 
of our clients.

SOLIDARITY
We have a united 
entrepreneurial spirit.

AMBITION 
Our local power fosters 
our global success.

EXCELLENCE 
Our culture of excellence 
is a product of our daring.

Business Review 2021
Inetum Group

MORE THAN

27,000
CONSULTANTS

26
COUNTRIES

FRANCE
SPAIN
PORTUGAL
BELGIUM
MEXICO
LUXEMBOURG
POLAND
MOROCCO
ROMANIA

SWITZERLAND
BRAZIL
TUNISIA
COLOMBIA
CÔTE D’IVOIRE
PERU
USA
ANGOLA
CAMEROON

SINGAPORE
UK
U.A.E.
REP. OF PANAMA
CHILE
COSTA RICA
DOMINICAN REPUBLIC
ARGENTINA

2021

€ 2.2
BILLION
IN REVENUES

SPONSOR

Top Sponsor of 
Paris Saint-
Germain Handball

Top Sponsor of 
Lointek Gernika 
Bizkaia 
(women’s basketball)

Top Sponsor of 
Sporting Clube de 
Portugal Futsal

5
VALUES
& PRINCIPLE OF ACTION

21SERVICE 
CENTRES

POLAND (Warsaw-Poznan-Lublin)

PORTUGAL (Lisbon-Covilha-Braganca)

ROMANIA (Bucarest-Constanza) 

SPAIN (Alicante-Bilbao) 

TUNISIA (Tunis)
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PARIS, NANTES, LYON, GHENT, 
LISBON, MADRID, CASABLANCA 
(Warsaw in 2022)

INNOVATION 
CENTRES

FINANCIAL SERVICES

INDUSTRIES

PUBLIC-HEALTHCARE

TELECOM-MEDIA-TECHNOLOGIES

ENERGY-UTILITIES-CHEMICALS

RETAIL- CONSUMER GOODS

TRANSPORTATION –TRAVEL SERVICES

DEFENCE-SECURITY

BUSINESS 
SECTORS8

7

10
DIGITAL BANKING

DIGITAL INSURANCE 

DIGITAL RETAIL 

DIGITAL UTILITIES 

E-HEALTHCARE 

INDUSTRY 4.0 

SMART CITIES 

DIGITAL TELECOM 

DIGITAL TRANSPORT 

SMART DATA & AI

GROUP 
PRACTICES

ACTIVITIES6 + CONSULTING

+ APPLICATION & INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES

+ SYSTEM INTEGRATION
 (Business Solutions, ERP, CRM, PLM…)

+ OUTSOURCING

+ VALUE ADDED RESELLING

+ SOFTWARE:
 > 4 vertical solutions:
  Local Government, Insurance, Healthcare & Social, Retail

 > Crosscutting Solutions:
  Time Management (Chronotime), DDM (Business Document)

GROUP 
ALLIANCES
> SAP, Microsoft, Oracle, Salesforce

> AWS, IBM, Sage, HRAccess, Google

> PTC, Siemens, Dassault Systèmes

+ MORE

For more information:

inetum.com
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Information and 
Communication Technology 
2021 has been a very 
successful year for 
Mannai ICT Group 
despite challenges 
resulting from the 
COVID-19 pandemic 
aftermath, especially 
owing to global supply 
chain bottlenecks.

Orders for the year reached a record 
volume of 3.2b QAR, significantly above 
2020 results. As such, Mannai ICT’s 
order book is in a very healthy state, 
encompassing the expected revenue 
of more than a full year. Mannai ICT’s 
book-to-bill ratio of 1.27 augurs well 
for the future expansion of Mannai ICT’s 
business.

This achievement entails that Mannai 
ICT Group has grown from strength 
to strength its share in the Qatari ICT 
market and that it is solidly upholding 
its leadership role in the ICT segment. 
Digital transformation, cyber-security, 
cloud offerings and IT managed services 
(ITMS) continue to be the main drivers 
of growth. Again, Mannai ICT has been 
honoured to be entrusted to deliver 
many important digital transformation 
projects to public and private entities. By 
successfully executing these strategic 
projects, Mannai ICT Group continues to 
be Qatar’s leading systems integrator 
and contributes to Qatar’s growing 
knowledge-based, diversified economy. 

In 2021, Mannai ICT has renewed its 
certification for the following 
quality standards:

• ISO 9001:2015 > Quality 
 Management System

• ISO 14001:2015 > Environmental 
Management System

• ISO 45001:2018 > Occupational
 Health & Safety

• ISO 27001:2013 > Information Security 
Management System

The ICT Group is organised into the 
following business units: Networking 
& ELV provides CISCO based voice and 
data solutions, structured cabling, 
storage and CCTV to key customers 
in Qatar; Mannai InfoTech with its 
key principal ORACLE is in an ideal 
position to add value to its customers’ 
businesses by providing optimally 
integrated end-to-end solutions. The 
division is leaving a distinct mark 
with its excellent professional skills 
relating to application development 
and implementation. The Integrated 
IT Solutions division provides 
comprehensive hardware, storage, 
virtualization and security solutions 
from DELL-EMC, SAP, VMWare, Palo 
Alto Networks, Symantec and a host of 
other vendors; Mannai HP Solutions is 
not only representing the portfolio of HP 
Enterprise and HP Inc. in Qatar but is 
also providing a host of Cybersecurity, 
Digital Transformation and IT Managed 
Service solutions from world-class 
developers like MicroFocus, Veeam, 
RedHat, Nexthink and many others.

In 2021, Mannai Microsoft Solutions 
has successfully established itself as 
an independent business unit, providing 
Microsoft-based solutions, particularly 
around the MS Azure Cloud to 
customers in Qatar. By doing so, Mannai 
has aligned itself with Qatar’s vision to 
become a regional hub for ICT and a 
destination for international investors in 
datacenter cloud offerings. Mannai and 
Microsoft are bringing together their 
complementary strengths to deliver 
high-value add solutions in the area of:

• Secure Modern Workplace
• Secure Cloud Infrastructure & Cloud 

Services
• Business Applications, Data and AI
• Devices and Peripherals
• Managed Services

Mannai ICT’s Networking & ELV 
division provides innovative next 
generation technology solutions for IT 
infrastructure based on industry best 
practices to address needs of small 
and medium enterprise, government, 
defense & service-provider customers. 

The business unit is focused 
successfully to provide integrated end-
to-end solutions that involve networking, 
cyber-security, unified collaboration, 
computing, virtualization, storage, 
backup, recovery, DR automation, 
managed services, which are provided 
by market leaders like Cisco, F5, 
Infoblox, Gigamon, Splunk, IBM, McAfee, 
Nozomi, Netapp, Vmware, Rubrik, 
Veeam, Frequentis, VOSS, Adeya and 
many others. 

The Networking & ELV division also 
specializes in state-of-the-art integrated 
IT passive and structured cabling & ELV 
technology solutions and has extensive 
experience in supplying, installing and 
commissioning a range of ELV and 
physical security systems in a variety 
of sectors encompassing ISP and OSP 
cabling (both fiber and UTP), pathways 
design and assessment, datacenter 
solutions, intelligent infrastructure 
management cabling, DC infrastructure 
management solutions, CCTV networks, 
integrated command & control center 
solutions, AV systems, IP-based public 
address systems, access control 
systems, high-end meeting/conference 
rooms and various other IP-based smart 
solutions. 

The Networking & ELV division has 
started a new line of business (LOB) 
that provides end-to-end customised 
solutions for back-end power 
infrastructure, electrical vehicle 
(EV) chargers of different charging 
standards, charger installations 
and charger management software 
platforms. In partnership with ABB, 
the division is delivering a large-scale 
project to provide electrical bus charging 
equipment in preparation for the FIFA 
World Cup Qatar 2022™. Through 
this new line-of-business, Mannai is 
increasing its footprint in the area of 
green technology and is contributing to 
Qatar’s strategic objective of lowering 
the country’s carbon footprint.

Mannai InfoTech offers a broad 
spectrum of IT services including 
application implementation, bespoke 
application development, systems 
integration, mobile applications, master 
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data management, data warehousing, 
enterprise information management, 
enterprise resource planning (ERP) and 
customer relationship management 
(CRM) using on-premise and cloud-
based architectures. Mannai InfoTech, 
with its key principal Oracle, has 
established itself as the most 
sophisticated next generation IT service 
provider in Qatar.

Mannai InfoTech takes pride in being 
Huawei’s Value Added Partner, Esri’s 
Strategic Business Partner and sole 
distributor in Qatar for geographic 
information systems (GIS) solutions, 
OpenText’s Platinum Partner for 
Enterprise Information Management 
(EIM), and the country’s only Gold 
Partner of Kony for delivering mobile 
applications. Additionally, Mannai 

InfoTech is ideally positioned to benefit 
from the global expertise of its sister 
company, and is leveraging the large 
pool of resources and intellectual 
property of Inetum in various projects in 
Qatar and beyond. 

Mannai InfoTech has been recognised  
by its key partners and holds the 
highest partnership status in the 
region and globally. Mannai InfoTech 
has diversified its portfolio to include 
product/service offerings from principal 
partners like UiPath, Google, SoftBank 
Robotics, Digital Guardian, Appian, 
OutSystems, Paladion and other 
cybersecurity partners. This initiative 
has further helped in expanding its 
footprint in the IT sector within domains 
of cybersecurity, robotics, artificial 
intelligence and smart city solutions.

Mannai IT Solutions (ITS) division 
is a multi-vendor solution provider 
integrating innovative technologies to 
provide digital technology services and 
beyond. Mannai ITS division focuses 
on next gen IT requirements, skilled 
around a core set of best-of-breed, 
cross domain IT solutions. Collaborating 
and partnering with technology global 
leaders enhanced by competent and 
multi-skilled resources with more than 
two decades of core IT experience. 
 
2021 performance of Mannai ITS division 
was very strong with strategic projects 
in IT infra, security, and applications 
across both the public sector and 
private customers. Major global 
vendors of Mannai ITS division are Dell 
Technologies, PaloAlto, Symantec, 
Forcepoint and SAP. 
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institution in Qatar. The division, along 
with providing technological solutions 
from various global technology leaders 
in their respective spheres, is also 
involved in training, application support, 
service and maintenance support for its 
customers.

Having firmly established itself as 
leader in the pharmacy automation, 
medical engineering and research, 
microscopy among other things, the 
division is set to expand into new areas 
like emergency & critical care devices, 
consumables and disposables, lab and 
bulk chemicals, advanced oncology 
solutions, surgical solutions, healthcare 
IT solutions and laboratory information 
systems in partnership with market 
leaders in their fields. As part of Qatar’s 
humanitarian relief efforts around 
the globe, Mannai Medical was glad 
to be chosen by the Qatar Fund for 
Development (QFFD) as a supplier of 
life saving medical equipment for India, 
Pakistan, Nepal and Sri Lanka.

GFI Informatique India (GFI India) is the 
offshore delivery arm for all Mannai 
ICT Business Units, providing both 
managed services and manpower 
services. Beyond serving its parent 
company, GFI India is also directly 
supporting customers across the globe. 
By positioning itself as a provider of 
emerging technologies - for example 
robotic process automation (RPA), 
artificial intelligence (AI) etc. – GFI India 
is significantly sharpening its profile.

Value additions to Qatar’s cyber security 
initiatives from Mannai dSOC
• Innovative solutions to address 

evolving threat landscape
• Providing services to sectors in Qatar 

not covered by regulatory authorities
• Providing cyber security services for 

industrial systems and networks
• Managed Security Services (MSS)

Mannai HP Solutions remains the only 
Platinum Partner in Qatar for both 
HP Enterprise and HP Inc., with vast 
experience in designing, implementing 
and supporting end-to-end datacenter, 
hybrid-cloud, network, security, 
monitoring, automation and end-user 
devices infrastructure solutions. Mannai 
HP Solutions compliments its services 
and solutions portfolio with leading 
technology vendors like Aruba, Arista, 
MicroFocus, Dynatrace, Ivanti, Nexthink, 
Redhat, SentinelOne, Veeam, Fortinet 
and Trendmicro. Mannai HP Solutions is 
also an authorized reseller of Apple.

One of the key differentiators of Mannai 
HP Solutions is its extensive expertise 
in providing Infrastructure as a service/
technology leasing/consumption 
solutions, which resulted in having 
more than 90+ enterprise references 
within the past 7 years, with successful 
network as a service, device as a service 
(DaaS), print as a service (PaaS) and 
software as a service (SaaS) satisfied 
customers.

Mannai HP Solutions has been 
recognised regionally several times 
within 2021 for its solutions and services 

excellence among other solutions 
providers in Qatar and the Middle East 
region.

Mannai’s Travelport division has 
recovered well from an extremely 
difficult year 2020 and the disruptions 
the pandemic has brought to the 
global travel industry. In 2021, Mannai 
Travelport has returned into the profit 
zone based on a recovery of the travel 
market. Customer satisfaction and 
operating efficiency remain a core focus 
for Mannai Travelport in order to ensure 
continuing success as Travelport’s 
national distributor.

Mannai ICT’s Office Equipment division 
(OFES) was heavily impacted by the 
disruption brought about by COVID-19. 
With a return to school and the office, 
OFES printing business is seeing an 
improvement in profitability. Once again, 
Mannai OFES has been honoured by 
Ricoh as its Strategic Business Partner 
for Office Printing in Qatar. Going 
forward, the division is well poised to 
benefit from an increase in demand for 
digital solutions through developing 
its enterprise content management 
solutions portfolio.

The Mannai Medical and Scientific 
Equipment division has consolidated its 
position as one of the leading players 
contributing to the success of Qatar’s 
growing healthcare and scientific 
research sectors. With its large portfolio 
of technological solutions, the division 
has made inroads into every major 
healthcare and scientific research 

Information and Communication Technology... 
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Automotive Group
Mannai Automotive 
continued its stellar 
performance in full 
size SUVs and Pick-ups, 
launching the all new 
Cadillac Escalade.

Mannai Automotive Group in Qatar has 
two broad segments - the Passenger 
& Commercial Vehicles segment and 
the Heavy Equipment & Construction 
Machinery segment. Over the decades, 
the Group has been successfully 
representing more than 40 principals 
from across the globe.

Mannai Automotive Group has been 
consistently delivering exceptional 
products and service - with clear focus 
on customers’ convenience, speed of 
execution, quality of service and adding 
value - in line with Mannai’s Vision 
Statement to ‘Build Mannai to be the 
most Dependable Business Partner’ 
and Automotive Group’s motto to ‘win 
customers for life’.
 
New Vehicle Sales

Mannai Automotive Group is the exclusive 
franchisee for General Motors’ leading 
vehicle brands, Cadillac and GMC, and 
is also the sole distributor in Qatar for 
Subaru vehicles, the premium Japanese 
manufacturer. 

Despite the dampening effects of 
COVID-19 pandemic on the global 
markets and industries, 2021 witnessed a 
noticeable growth for Mannai Automotive. 
New Vehicles Sales grew more than 
double the percentage growth recorded 
by the Qatari Automotive sector.

The growth was fueled by the successful 
launch of the all-new Cadillac Escalade. 
Cadillac, the premium segment brand, 
sold more than two and a half times 
the volumes sold in the previous year (a 
growth of more than 150%). The flagship 
vehicle Escalade had an astronomical 
growth of more than 600%. The sales of 
Escalade grew at a pace of almost eight 
times the pace with which it grew in the 
GCC region.

The increased volumes were also 
attributable to the consolidation of the 
position of the all-new Yukon, which 
was launched in Q4 2020. GMC Yukon 
gained an increased market share in 
Qatar, thanks to innovative designs, 
futuristic features, valuable content (off-
road capable AT4 trim) and competitive 
pricing when compared to the market’s 
traditional leaders. It registered a growth 
of approx. 50%; even the percentage 
growth was almost one and a half times 
the average GCC regional growth.

The global pandemic had an avalanche 
effect on the automotive industry globally, 
resulting in cancellations and delays 
in production; the semi-conductors’ 
shortage affected General Motors, as it 
did the other vehicle manufacturers in 
the world. The situation led to a limited 
supply of vehicles, constraints on certain 
vehicle trims as well as limitations on 
certain options. In spite of this situation 
in the supply chain, Mannai Automotive 
Group managed to achieve the annual 
sales targets of all its brands. 

Mannai Automotive’s Japanese partner 
Subaru was equally hit with the global 
issue of semiconductors shortage, 
leading to cancellation of several orders 
and allocation of very limited orders to all 
markets and dealers. Notwithstanding 
this adverse situation, Mannai managed 
to keep its sales steady without any drop 
in volumes.

With the launch of the all-new Escalade 
and Yukon, coupled with a steadily 
performing Sierra in the Pick-up 
segment, Mannai Automotive will 
increasingly play a key role in these 
segments, consolidating and reinforcing 
its market position.
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Despite the above challenges, Automotive 
Group has been devising innovative 
solutions to mitigate such risks, amidst 
strict adherence to safety protocols, 
and focusing on serving its loyal base of 
customers – efficiently and conveniently. 

With the industry leaning towards 
eco-friendly vehicles to reduce, if not 
eliminate, the emissions of gases, 
General Motors has an aggressive plan to 
launch its Electric Vehicle models in the 
near future, beginning in 2022. Mannai 
Automotive Group, in close tandem with 
General Motors, is fully equipped to take 
advantage of this leap.

Looking optimistically at the years to 
come, Mannai Automotive expects to 
continue its performance in full size 
SUVs and Pick-ups with a very promising 
outlook, by increasing not only the sales 
volumes but also the market share.

Aftersales

Aftersales operations, being heavily 
dependent upon skilled technicians, faced 
very challenging times due to COVID-19 
restrictions on workforce strength, in the 
interest of public health and safety.

Besides impacting the vehicle 
manufacturers plants and factories, the 
global pandemic had negatively impacted 
ancillary industries also, thereby 
resulting into scarcity of parts as well.

With the stage set for Qatar to host 
the prestigious FIFA World Cup 2022, 
Automotive Group is fully ready to take 
advantage of the coming opportunities.
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VE Commercial Vehicles, 
Volvo Group and Eicher 
Motors Joint Venture, 
conferred “Best Dealer” 
Award to Mannai Heavy 
Equipment Group for the 
second year in a row.

Heavy Equipment Group (HEG), a 
business segment within Mannai 
Automotive Group, caters to the 
construction and industrial sector 
and has fortified its position over the 
years as a premium provider of Heavy 
Equipment & Construction Machinery – 
sales as well as aftersales. 

We have a high-end array of many 
reputed world class OEMs including: 
1. JCB – Construction & Power 

Generation Machinery
2. Grove – Mobile Cranes
3. Thermoking – Refrigeration Units
4. TCM – Forklifts
5. Massey Ferguson – Agricultural 

Tractors & Farm Equipment
6. Elgin – Vacuum & Mechanical 

Sweepers
7. Dulevo – Scrubbers & Street 

Sweepers
8. Mathieu – Street Sweepers, Washer & 

Scrubber
9. Eicher – Pickup Trucks, Staff Buses & 

Mini Buses
10. Daewoo – Luxury Buses
11. Comp Air – Air Compressors
12. DAF – Tractor Heads 
13. Chevron – Oils & Lubricants
14. Chalwyn – Engine Shutdown Valves
15. Allison Transmission – After sales 

service of transmission systems

Already very well reputed within the 
Qatari market, HEG in constant pursuit 
of enhancing complete customer 
satisfaction and convenience by 
investing in facilities and manpower 
modernized showrooms, parts 
warehouses, specialized state-of-the-
art workshops and service centers in 
the Industrial Area and Barkat Al-
Awamer and periodic staff training 
for development of technical and soft 
skills to provide customized solutions to 
customers. 

Despite a market that seems to be 
going through a slowdown over the last 
five years, HEG has been continuously 
overcoming such hurdles serving 
its expanding customer base. HEG 
continuously strives to provide top-
notch solutions to the construction, 
maintenance and utility sectors in Qatar.

Mannai Heavy Equipment Group wins 
Parts supply contract with 
Government Ministry
Testament to HEG’s long-standing 
professional business relations with 
the Ministry of Municipality and 
Environment, the annual contract 
for the delivery of Elgin Parts was 
successfully extended. The high-quality 
industrial sweepers, supported by 
quality aftersales, were instrumental 
in maintaining hygiene and cleanliness 
in Qatar - keeping pace with the huge 
efforts being taken by the Ministry of 
Public Health in interests of public 
health.

Heavy Equipment Group
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VE Commercial Vehicles (VECV) 
conferred “Best Dealer” Award to 
Mannai Heavy Equipment Group for the 
second year in a row
HEG, official dealer for VECV Trucks and 
Buses in Qatar, received “Best Dealer” 
award amongst all VECV Dealers in 
the Middle East Region for exemplary 
performance, keeping customers at 
the forefront. Over the years, HEG 
has been consistently achieving VECV 
Sales & Service targets, meeting their 
expectations while receiving customer 
accolades. 

Furthermore, HEG’s Key Accounts Sales 
Manager was selected as “Best Sales 
Person” across the Middle East region.

HEG hands over the first batch of latest 
Eicher Skyline Buses
Mannai HEG concluded a major deal 
for VECV Buses with one of the leading 
transport suppliers in Qatar; achieving 
increased sales volume of more than 
300%. HEG will continue to strive 
towards maintaining this trend in the 
upcoming years and increase market 
share in this segment.

Mannai Heavy Equipment Group and 
JCB Power Products team up ahead of 
the 2022 World Cup
HEG collaborated with JCB Power to 
deliver optimal solutions to one of the 
leading Equipment rental companies 
in Qatar. HEG successfully delivered 
over one hundred JCB Generators in 
a very short timeframe to support the 
upcoming sports events. 

It was a privilege and great honour for 
HEG to be able to play its role in the 
ongoing projects leading up to the FIFA 
World Cup 2022.

HEG is committed towards Qatar’s long-
term development strategy, in line with 
the Qatar National Vision 2030.
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E&IM Mechanical & Construction 
Materials, one of our vibrant segments 
that keeps growing by supplying: Copper 
Pipes & Fittings (Plumbing, ACR and 
Medical), Pumps (Plumbing, HVAC & 
Firefighting), Pressurization System, 
Expansion Tanks & Air Separators, 
Seamless & ERW Steel Pipes, Cast Iron 
Pipes & Fittings, CPVC Pipes & Fittings, 
PPR pipes, Silent pipes, Water Heaters & 
Calorifiers, Vitrified Clay Pipes & Fittings, 
Floor and Roof Drainage System, Building 
Maintenance Units, Roof Supports, 
Access Panels, Hatches & Ladders and 
many other construction materials.
This segment has further reinforced its 
offering by adding vitrified clay pipes and 
fittings from Naylor UK, Cast Iron Pipes 
and Fittings from Preis Cast Iron, and 
Austria and Peerless Firefighting Pumps 
systems from USA to its supply portfolio.

Energy and Industrial 
Markets Group

Reputed for being “A Trusted Partner” as 
well as “Strategic Reliable Partner”, our 
professionals and well-trained engineers, 
strive for the utmost satisfaction of our 
clients and partners alike. 

E&IM Infrastructure has successfully 
added MAT Filtration Technologies to 
its portfolio. The company is a leading 
provider of Filtration Solutions, Water 
Treatment equipment / applications for 
Municipal water treatment, Aquaculture– 
Fish Farming, and Water Treatment 
Equipment for Sewage Treatment Plants 
to its portfolio.

E&IM Infrastructure was able to win 
and deliver along with its Principals: 
ductile iron pipes, fittings, valves, 
pumps, wrapping tapes and heavy-
duty Manhole covers for various local 
prestigious projects, Facility E Associated 
Transmission Pipeline/ pipes & fittings, 
Messimer Pumping Station Out Fall 
Project (MPSO), D Line TSE Pumping 
Station & Transmission Mains, Design 
& Build (D&B) for TSE Seasonal Storage 
Lagoon Phase (1) CP832, AL EBB & 
LEABAIB Package 1&2 and 4, Doha 
Port STP, Barwa City STP, Semaisma 
PS Project, Road for Al Wukair project, 
Roads and Infrastructure project in Umm 
Slal Mohammed, Construction of TSE 
Transmission Pipeline along Dukhan 
Highway, and TSE Main Orbital Road 
Between Dukhan Road and North STW 
and Al Thumama Stadium.

E&IM Mechanical & Construction 
Materials was able to supply its products 
to many prestigious projects like: The 
View Hospital, HIA Passenger Terminal 
Expansion Works, HIA - Al Mourjan 
Lounge, Mozoon Towers, Lusail Plaza 
Towers Plot 1 & 2, Ooredoo Data Center, 
Marina Mix D12, Energy Center and 
Car Park on Plot Q – 557 Infrastructure 
Works, Alar Hotel Development, Giardino 
Mall, Kahramaa Substations Phase 13, 
GWC Warehouses, Qdata Center, Various 
Bus Stations, and more.

E&IM Electrical, another segment of 
E&IM Group that keeps growing year-on-
year, has diversified its offering by adding 
to its portfolio: Lighting Fixtures, Cable 
Management Systems, PVC Conduits & 
Fittings, GI Conduits & Fittings, Earthing 
& Lightning Protection System, Cable 
Joints & Terminations Accessories, Bus 
Bar System, Central battery systems, 
cable glands & lugs, metal isolators, Low 
voltage switchgear components, wiring 
devices & Ceiling roses, and EV Charges.

E&IM Electrical supplied to many 
prestigious projects such as: Labor 
Accommodation Project at Al Wakra, 
Family Accommodation Project at Al 
Wakra, Giordano Mall Project B+G+1, 
EPIC for LPG supply from NGL complex 
to WOQOD - mesaieed, EPIC for common 
cooling seawater system (CCWS) phase 
III, design & build of equestrian facility 
at zone 15 (CPC-11A)-ISF, R6 tunnel, 
KAHRAMAA Projects, and more.

Energy & Industrial 
Markets Group (“E&IM”) 
has been able to maintain 
its market position during 
this challenging year. With 
its varied and distinctive 
offering through partners, 
E&IM Group has succeeded 
in providing world-class 
products and technologies 
that serve different sectors 
of Qatar’s economy. 
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E&IM HVAC SOLUTIONS, a leading 
supplier of HVAC systems in Qatar, 
provides expert solutions for HVAC 
requirements. This mindset coupled 
with professional and experienced 
teams in engineering, sales, after-sales 
and customer service have made our 
HVAC segment a leading solutions’ 
provider in Qatar. Its range of products 
includes major manufacturers within 
the HVAC world notably: Toshiba, Untes, 
Climaveneta, Novenco, Trane, Munters, 
UVDI, Grundfos pumps, and Lawton ACR 
copper pipes.

HVAC has further expanded its product 
portfolio by adding the world-class brand 
“AIRONN” for Central/Domestic/Car 
Park Ventilation Fans. 

HVAC was able to reinforce its 
Aftersales Services to include all 
industry HVAC Systems Services 
and Aftermarket Services: providing 
predictive and preventive maintenance 
programs, inspecting system’s 
components periodically and enabling 
failure identification before leading 
to breakdowns, lowering operative 
costs, maximizing equipment life and 
safeguarding investment.

The collaboration of Mannai and its 
partners ensure the availability of 
the largest range of HVAC equipment 
and accessories in Qatar: Chillers, Air 
Handling Units, Heat/Energy Recovery 

Units, Fan Coil Units, VRF, Packaged 
Units, Central Ducted Split systems, 
Swimming pool units, Mini and ducted 
Split Units, Window AC, Central/
Domestic/Car Park Ventilation Fans, 
Copper Tubes, Fittings & accessories, 
Field devices, valves & controls, 
Humidifiers and Dehumidification 
systems, Chilled water pumps, Air 
outlets, dampers, louvers, Sound 
Attenuators, HEPA Filter Boxes, Laminar 
Flow Units, CAV Units and VAV Units 
and Air Disinfection by Ultra Violet 
(UV) Technology, Precision units/Close 
Control units/Computer Room Air 
Conditioning units for IT COOLING and 
DATA CENTERS applications. 
 
E&IM HVAC SOLUTIONS successfully 
delivered many prestigious projects such 
as The Construction of Public Parks of 
ASHGHAL. The project includes Supply, 
Supervision of Testing, Commissioning 
of Air Handling Units for Rawdat Al 
Hamam Park as well as: Jery Al Samour 
Development, Animal Quarantine project, 
34 attached villas in Al Thumama, 
BUS Depots & BUS Charging Stations 
projects, Doha Expo, and many other 
high end Governmental projects.

E&IM’s Oil & Gas continue to execute 
Siemens gas turbines, and Siemens gas 
compressors maintenance contracts, 
as well as Celeros pump spares price 
agreements with major Oil and Gas 
companies like Qatar Petroleum and 
Qatargas. 

E&IM’s Oil & Gas Succeeded to deliver, 
install, and commission a  6.5 MW (11KV) 
Electrical Generator to Qatar Petroleum 
Development, deliver Qatar Petroleum 
with 2 Service Exchange of TB5000 PT 
and 2 Service Exchange of TB5000 GA, 
deliver 2 complete Alfa Laval’s Spiral 
Heat Exchanger to Qatar Petroleum. 
Mannai Oil & Gas also delivered: Qatar 
Petroleum with  Service inspection of 
Siemens Gas Compressors at PS-1 
and PS-3, Siemens Gas Turbine parts, 
Siemens turbine Gas Generator change 
out and annual inspection for Dukhan 
Project, NFA_MPG-A Gas Generator 
Change and MPG-B_PT auxiliary gears 
inspection, PS-1 (Offshore platform ), 
Howden’s compressors and blowers 
spares to Qatar Shell, Qchem, QAPCO, 
and Dolphin Energy, and pump spares 
order with Celeros Clyde union pumps to 
Qatargas, NOC, and Qatar Petroleum.

E&IM’s Oil & Gas strives to continuously 
upgrade its capabilities and provide 
value added services and products for 
its customers and Principals alike. 
Oil & Gas has further expanded its 
product portfolio by adding: the world-
class brand NB Group from the UK for 
Surveying services for the Oil, Gas and 
Utility sector; Jonell Systems from USA 
for Filtration & Separation Systems in 
Oil, Gas, Refineries, Petrochemicals, 
Chemical and Power processes; and 
Facet from USA for Aviation & Refined 
Fuel Filtration Solutions.
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E&IM Industrial & Construction 
Supplies deals with various types of 
Tools & Machineries catering to the 
industrial and construction sectors:

• Plumbing, air conditioning & 
refrigeration copper pipes & fittings.

• PVC, PPR, HTPP & HDPE pipes
• ERW Black Steel & GI Pipes - chilled 

water pipes, GI firefighting pipes (QCD 
Approved)

• Flexible elastomeric foam and 
fiberglass insulation

• Solar water heaters, boilers, storage 
tanks, calorifiers and heat pump 
systems

• Domestic water heaters
• Personal Protection Equipment 

“PPE”
• Pipe tools & pipe cutters, threading & 

grooving machines 
• Equipment for construction, bar 

bending & cutting machines, portable 
bender and cutters 

• Various consumables, cutting and 
grinding discs, flap wheels, flap disc, 
carbide burrs, abrasive material, etc.

• Air operated diaphragm pumps, 
Pneumatic Pumps and submersible 
pumps

• Various electrical winches used for 
construction and elevators’ erection 
contractors like Tirak Winches  
and Minifor

E&IM Machineries & Power Generation 
segment deals with Electrical and 
Engine Driven Mobile Screw Air 

Compressors, Nitrogen Generators with 
controllable purity as well as Diesel 
Generators & Tower Lights

• Electrical and Engine Driven Mobile 
Screw Air Compressors. Electrical 
Compressor Range from 1.1KW- 
132KW / Portable Compressor Range 
from 175 – 750 cfm

• Diesel Power Generators ranging 
from 10KVA up to 3500 KVA for 
prime & standby applications 
for commercial, industrial and 
construction purposes 

• A complete range of Tower Lights 
from the standard metal-halide to 
Hybrid / Hydro Lighting Towers. 

Our After Sales Services are provided 
to clients by dedicated, factory-trained 
service personnel. 

During the year, this segment was 
able to supply its products to many 
prestigious projects such as: The View 
Hospital, Dream Hotel, Al Rayyan, 
Industrial Area & Lusail Bus Depots, Al 
Yasmeen City – Crescent 1, Al Wakra 
Labour Accommodation and Family 
Housing, construction & fit-out Building 
for Doha Expo 2023 and Qatar National 
Library Renovation works.

E&IM BUILDING MATERIALS Division 
(BMD) caters to the requirements of 
local infrastructure & construction 
projects by supplying high quality 
waterproofing membranes and 
construction chemicals from renowned 
manufacturers from Turkey, Jordan, 
Italy, Poland, India. Additionally, it also 
offers many other products such as: 
Expansion Joint Fillers, non-woven 
Geotextiles, protection boards, and 
waterproofing equipment, etc.

We have continued investing and 
promoting our own Brand “BituMANN”, 
and have succeeded in becoming one 
of the recognised brands in the local 
market, which further strengthens our 
commitment towards the Qatar market. 

E&IM BMD has supplied our BITUMANN 
products to: Cargo Bridging Facility 
at Hamad International Airport 
Project, Al Waab Central District 
Phase 1, RIW Al Kharaitiyat and 
Izghawa- Phase 1, Construction of 
foul sewer and strom water networks 
for various catchments within Doha 
West (Package 3, 4, 5)-c821/3, 4, 5, 
foul sewer surface water roads and 
pedestrian connectivity in inner Doha 
Z27, Al Mearad and Southwest Muaither 
project, construction of Flood Prevention 
Scheme – Phase 03-C850/3 outer areas, 
onshore LNG facilities of the North Field 
East project, construction of link roads 
adjacent to Al Khor Expressway project.

A number of “Certificates of Excellence 
and appreciation” have been received 
for 2021 from Ravago (Turkey), Lama 
(Jordan) Bituminous Products Center, 
QUDS Paints (Jordan), Geosource 
(India). 

engineered by nature
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Gulf Laboratories Co. WLL

The business has provided its specialist 
services to a large proportion of civil 
engineering, water resource and 
development projects within Qatar for 
over 35 years. 

Activities include: onshore and offshore 
ground investigations, water-well 
drilling and testing, earthing and 
cathodic protection borehole drilling, 
geophysical surveys, hydrogeological 
investigations, and mineral resource 
studies. During 2021, ground 
investigations have been performed to 
support engineering design activities for 
various infrastructure and development 
projects. Major onshore and nearshore 
site investigation project related to the 
North Field Expansion in Ras Laffan 
was undertaken, as well as a large 
geotechnical project in the northern 
suburbs of Doha. Works continued on 
the QAR 80Mn, five-year contract to 
install, test and commission 50 no. 400m 
deep well injection systems for Ashghal. 

Water wells, deep injection wells and 
associated monitoring wells, earthing 
and cathodic protection borehole drilling 
works are also routinely carried out.

Laboratory testing services include 
the physical and chemical analysis of 
construction materials such as soil, 
rock, aggregate, cement, concrete, 
steel and asphalt. These services are 
performed at an extensive physical 
testing laboratory located at St.13, 
and chemical, environmental, food 
and oil testing at the facility at St.2 
in the Salwa Industrial Area, as well 
as at project sites where temporary 
laboratory facilities are established. 
On-site material testing laboratories and 
call-off testing services provide ongoing 

involvement in the Shamal area, Ras 
Laffan and various Sewage Treatment 
Plants.

The company also carries out a wide 
range of environmental testing activities 
including chemical and microbiological 
testing of groundwater, seawater, 
potable water, and treated and untreated 
effluent. The services are performed 
either to support initial baseline 
environmental surveys or as part of 
long-term environmental monitoring 
plans. The environmental testing 
laboratory continues to be involved 
with various monitoring and testing 
programmes for Ashghal, Dolphin Gas, 
Pearl GTL, Qatar Petroleum, and a 
number of Ashghal sewage treatment 
plants and groundwater monitoring well 
networks. 

Petroleum testing services are also 
offered, including the physical and 
chemical analyses of transformer and 
lubricant oils. The range of services 
has now been expanded in order to be 
able to provide a comprehensive range 
of diagnostic testing for transformer 
insulating oils. During 2021, Gulf Labs 
maintained their approval as one of 
Kahramaa’s transformer oil testing 
laboratories, one of only 10 in the world 
and the only one in the Gulf Region.

Gulf Laboratories continued to 
expand its food analysis laboratory 
capabilities. The laboratory has the 
facilities to undertake a wide range of 
microbiological and chemical analysis 
of foodstuffs, swab samples for hotels, 
catering companies, labour camps, 
restaurant and supermarkets, as part of 
its food safety monitoring programmes. 

In total, Gulf Laboratories has an area 
of over 1,500m2 of laboratory testing 
space.

The company’s quality and occupational 
health, safety, and environmental 
management systems are certified to 
ISO 9001, OHSAS 18001 and ISO 14001 
standards. The laboratories have over 
470 tests accredited to BS EN ISO 
17025:2005 and continue to add further 
test parameters to the accreditation 
every year.

Gulf Laboratories Co. 
WLL provides ground 
investigation, borehole 
drilling and laboratory 
testing services to 
international and local 
clients within Qatar. 
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Manweir LLC

Manweir completed its 45th year as a 
local service business providing local 
and regional clients with a full range of 
manufacturing capabilities along with 
Mechanical, Electrical, Measurement, 
Instrumentation and manpower 
services. 

2021 continued to be a period weighed 
down with economic uncertainty due to 
COVID-19.

In the oil & gas sector, planned 
execution of projects continued to see 
partial delays due to logistics and supply 
chain disruption. 

Manweir has seen however a number of 
positive results in 2021.

Safety as always, has been the number 
one priority at Manweir. 2021 produced 
an outstanding year with 100% safety 
record showing a Total Recordable 
Incident Rate (TRIR) of zero and passing 
the one million man hours worked 
without injury.

With all the challenges throughout the 
year, the Manweir team continued to 
increase its open order book, thanks 
to a year of increased sales orders 
as compared to the previous year, 
specifically in the areas of Oilfield 
products and Electrical departments. 

2021 saw the inauguration of the 
expanded Electrical workshop allowing 
the full overhaul of medium to large 
voltage motors. This was rewarded with 
a multi-year contract for the overhaul of 
seawater pumps from Qatar Petroleum.

2021 also began to show the benefits of 
gaining the R&U stamp certification for 
pressure vessel fabrication, inclusion 
to QP’s approved vendor’s list, and 
Schlumberger’s global approved 
 vendors list.

The company also succeeded in growing 
its international partnerships, due to 
the addition of such names as WOM 
(Worldwide Oilfield Machinery) – a 
multinational drilling and production 
equipment supplier.

We look forward to 2022 in anticipation 
of increasing business with the 
commencement of the various 
expansion projects in Qatar.

2021 saw Manweir 
gain local and global 
registration and approval 
with major national 
and international 
oil companies as an 
approved workshop 
for manufacturing and 
repair services.

Workshop qualifications:

Authorized repair facility:

Our partners:

Premium connection licenses:
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Qatar Logistics WLL

With our state-of-the-art facilities and 
services in the area of freight forwarding 
and warehousing, as a member of the 
Hellmann Network which is represented 
by 489 offices in 173 countries, we are 
able to offer the right solution for the 
complex logistics requirements of our 
customers.

Resilient 

The year 2021 was an important year 
for Qatar Logistics and also a stress 
test, but Qatar Logistics delivered a 
strong result despite the uncertainties 
of the market. These challenges did 
not slow us down, rather highlighted 
our strengths, our resilience and 
commitment. 

Profitable growth in a challenging 
market environment

Despite difficult market circumstances, 
Qatar Logistics maintained its leading 
position for Chemical Warehousing 
in Qatar, through our committed 
employees and state-of-the-art 
warehouse.

In 2022 Qatar Logistics will continue 
its journey of sustainable growth and 
remain a pioneer in the industry by 
offering integrated logistics solutions 
and expanding into new industry 
verticals such as food and retail.

Qatar Logistics has 
developed into one of 
the largest logistics 
providers in Qatar and 
succeeded to strengthen 
its market position 
across all product areas.
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Home Appliances 
& Electronics Division
The Home Appliances 
and Electronics Division 
(HAED) represents some 
of the world’s leading 
electronics and home 
appliance brands in the 
Qatar market. 

In many aspects, the current 
challenging market situation has 
spurred the growth and progress 
of HAED along with the growth of 
appliances and electronics overall 
in the Qatar market. The HAED 
team have responded with utmost 
professionalism by continuously 
improving and setting new standards 
in the quality of its services 
and support structure, thereby 
successfully meeting customer 
expectations in an environment that 
is rapidly changing and expanding. 

Though having a mainstream 
recognition as a prominent regional 
distributor and retailer of well-known 
global consumer electronics brands, 
HAED has also made its mark as a 
dependable provider of professional 
and commercial electronics and home 
appliances products and services to 
the consumers in Qatar.

In the commercial and professional 
sphere, HAED is able to provide 
products and solutions for small 
and large projects. With a team 
of highly skilled sales personnel, 
technicians, logistics and after-sales 
personnel, HAED has been awarded 
and successfully completed several 
prestigious projects. 

In the retail segment, HAED represents 
global Brands like TCL, Toshiba, 
Moulinex, White-Westinghouse, AEG, 
and Seiko etc., presenting a whole 
range of product categories including 
Audio & Video, Small and Large 
Domestic Appliances, Air Conditioners, 
and Watches among others. 

In alliance with key retailers and our 
dealer network throughout Qatar, 
HAED makes conveniently available 
its products and services to the 
consumer. Supported by well-trained 
sales, technical and logistical teams, 
HAED offers top brands with first-class 
service.
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operations with three daily flights after a 
gap of almost three and half years. The 
number of increased passengers from 
Doha for the year was over 86,000 and 
the gross revenue was over QAR 60M. 
Introduction of the B 737 MAX on the 
Qatar route gave an opportunity for the 
passengers from Qatar to experience a 
new level in business class travel.

On the cargo front, Space Cargo offers 
airport to airport services to all the 
airports around the globe. In this cargo 
segment, door to door services are 
offered to Bangladesh, India, Indonesia, 
Nepal, Philippines, Sri Lanka and 
London (UK).

Even in the difficult times, the Travel 
Division managed to retain its market 
share in all aspects of the travel 
industry. We have always strived to 
retain our position as leading IATA and 
an ISO 9001-2015 certified travel service 
provider in Qatar.

Travel Division

The year 2021 was the year wherein the 
wise policies of the Government saw the 
blockade lifted that had been imposed 
by the neighboring GCC countries upon 
Qatar. From a very challenging year of 
2020, the Travel Division turned the tide 
and ended the year 2021 on a positive 
note.

Despite the pandemic in 2021, many 
governments around the world partially 
opened their borders for travelers and 
many visa missions of countries opened 
their doors to accept visa applications. 
Right from the start, Qatar followed a 
staggered opening approach by initially 
adding few countries to the Visa On 
Arrival facility list. This was followed 
by easing the mandatory Quarantine 

requirements from 10 days to 7 days for 
many Asian countries and abolishing it 
for many other countries. This approach 
boosted passengers’ confidence to 
travel from/to Qatar, and resulted in a 
110% jump in the turnover of the Travel 
Division in 2021 over the previous year.

The five weekly flights of Philippine 
Airlines with a tri-class service to/
from Qatar supported the need of 
the hour during the COVID crisis by 
carrying more passengers from Qatar 
and the neighboring countries despite 
the restrictions imposed by the health 
authorities in the Philippines. This 
boosted the sales to over US$32M while 
facilitating safe passage for over 43,000 
passengers. This also helped in the 
increase of cargo tonnage from Doha to 
470 tons and profit growth of more than 
85% as compared to the year 2020. 

With the uplifting of the blockade by 
the neighboring GCC countries in 
January 2021, Flydubai commenced its 

The most trusted travel 
service provider in 
Qatar.
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Axiom Telecom

• Operator Business - Drive growth 
in Fixed Broadband and Wireless 
Home LTE solution with strategic new 
offerings from our operator partners. 

Hyke - E-Commerce B2B Platform 

Hyke is an E-commerce B2B Platform 
that connects Suppliers with Retailers 
and provides the technology, supply 
chain infrastructure, micro-financing, 
and market reach to help them engage 
and run their business seamlessly and 
efficiently. Unlike traditional distribution 
set-ups, the Hyke platform is fully 
interconnected, cloud-based, scalable, 
and powered by data.

Launched at the beginning of 2020, the 
Hyke Platform has established a solid 
framework that consists of multiple 
digital touch-points that empower both 
sides of the marketplace - retailers and 
suppliers - as well as Hyke internal 
functions; this includes:

• Three digital ordering channels 
with a single view of the customer 
at its center available for Retailer, 
Distributor’s Salesman, and 
Manufacturer Promoters/Field-Force 

• Supplier portal to independently 
manage product pricing and to run 
powerful marketing campaigns 
for incentives or cashback with 
convenient and fast payout to the 
market in the form of wire transfers 
and vouchers 

• Financial institutions as a platform 
concept can manage credit offering 
from distributors and, more 
importantly, offer Hyke’s credit to the 
market. 

• Internal logistics and supply chain 
tools enabled unprecedented product 
tracking and traceability. 

Hyke is built in a modern state-of-
the-art technology using dynamically 
scalable microservices and flexible 
event-driven architecture. As of 
December end, Hyke has over 60 
microservices and produces more than 
50,000 events every day.

The Company has a solid presence 
in the United Arab Emirates & Saudi 
Arabia and is considered among 
the best distributors in the region 
by suppliers. Axiom’s key revenue 
streams include mobile handsets and 
accessories and telecommunications 
services via its partnerships with mobile 
telecommunications operators.

The Company is a strategic partner of 
major telecommunication operators such 
as Du and Virgin Mobile in the UAE and 
Mobily and STC in Saudi Arabia. Axiom 
Telecom sells a full range of products 
from major brands including established 
brands such as Samsung, Huawei, 
and Apple. In addition, Axiom is the 
distributor of choice for emerging brands 
such as Wiko, Vivo, Oppo, and Tecno 
looking for a launchpad in the region.

Axiom also develops, sources, brands 
and markets a range of in-house 
accessories and value-added services 
under the MyCandy and Switch brands. 
These are specifically designed for 
substantial target customer groups in 
our geographies, enriching the margin 
mix and strengthening our product 
portfolio. 

As part of the corporate group strategy, 
Hyke E-commerce B2B Platform was 
introduced to the market in 2020 as a 
new company within the group. Hyke 
strengthens the group’s competitive 
advantage and enables the next phase 
of growth and diversification into 
adjacencies.

Key strengths:

• Middle East handset and telecom 
services market leader supported 
by strategic partnerships with the 
world’s top mobility businesses 

• A multi-brand, omnichannel strategy 
with deep distribution expertise and 
the ability to quickly launch new 
products. 

• Private label business 

• Reputation for product, service, and 
business model innovation. One of 
the critical pilot projects in 2020 as a 
response to pandemic-led lockdowns 
was a direct telesales model to 
independent retailers supported by 
an efficient supply chain and delivery 
mechanism.

Partnerships 

Axiom managed to strengthen strategic 
relationships with key partners in 2021 
through several key initiatives:
• Axiom added the Oppo brand in the 

UAE to their distribution portfolio 
and supported the scale-up of their 
business in UAE. 

• Axiom partnered with Tecno in KSA 
during Q4 2021 to strengthen its 
distribution of Tecno Mobiles from the 
Transsion Group. 

• Axiom partnered with Du to launch 
the Free Tourist SIM project in 
connection with Expo 2020 Dubai at 
all Dubai Airports 

• Axiom added the WIKO brand to its 
distribution portfolio in UAE and KSA 
during Q4 of 2021 

Axiom plans to further strengthen 
its key partnerships in 2022 through 
expanding on all three categories:

• Accessories business - grow the 
Switch & Mycandy brand of the 
Accessories business. 

• Handsets business - pursue key 
partnerships with existing and new 
brands, focusing on 5G products. 

Axiom employs over 
1,200 employees and 
reaches over 7,500 
points of sale across 
the region through 
its direct distribution 
in independent and 
organized retail 
channels, own retail, 
and wholesale channels. 
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that addresses key strategic areas: the 
enablement of a full-fledged marketplace 
model, the digitization of payments, data 
intelligence, and insights to bring further 
automation to our supply chain operation 
as well as customer intelligence for Hyke 
partners, enhancement on the retailers’ 
and suppliers’ experience in the platform, 
and activities at the infrastructure level to 
support the further expansion of Hyke,

Gross Merchandise Value grew +404% 
YoY, 2021 versus 2020

Revenue:

• +3.7x YoY, 2021 versus 2020
• +44% compound growth rate per 

quarter in 2021.

Active retailers: 4299 with a monthly 
conversion rate of 55%.
Average Retailer purchase Value (ARV): 
+AED250k annually Market share in 
Independent Retail Channel, Telecom = 
11% (source: GFK)

Private Label business

Axiom’s private label brands (Mycandy & 
Switch) grew by 78% in revenue in 2021 
versus 2020, driven by solid growth in the 
True Wireless Earbuds, Bluetooth audio, 
and gadget categories. 

In 2021 Hyke continues to empower both 
sides of the marketplace as well as Hyke 
internal functions; this included:

• An omni channel distribution that 
provides retailers an extended reach 
to a wider range of products across 
different markets. 

• Internal logistics and supply chain 
tools that provides efficiency for 
inventory management, shipment 
processing and last mile delivery. 

• Improved resiliency on existing 
functionalities that guarantees 
scalability and avoid potential issues.

In order to tap into the full potential of 
the smartphone category in KSA and 
UAE, Hyke has signed contracts with over 
fifteen channel partners representing the 
leading brands in the category - Apple, 
Samsung, Xiaomi, and Oppo.

In Q4 2021, Hyke started pursuing its 
category expansion strategy, focused on 
the FMCG Industry. In under two months, 
Hyke launched its first pilot in Riyadh, 
Saudi Arabia, onboarding Suppliers, and 
Groceries into the Hyke platform. 

Hyke finished the year with strong 
results and ambitious growth plans for 
2022, supported by a Product roadmap 

2021 also saw the private label team 
embark on an aggressive GTM strategy 
to increase visibility, awareness, 
and demand for Mycandy and Switch 
accessories. The plans consisted of a mix 
of in-store visibility and digital marketing 
campaigns, all of which boosted the 
visibility and profile of Axiom’s private 
label brands. These activities helped 
Mycandy and Switch increase market 
share in the Traditional Trade channel 
and grew the business in the Modern 
Trade channel, including Carrefour, Jarir, 
Extra, Excite, Sharaf DG, Jumbo, and 
Lulu.

In 2022, the focus will be on expanding 
the private label product portfolio 
further by adding new, complementary 
categories such as e-transport, outdoor 
tech, gaming while enhancing key 
growth categories such as true wireless, 
charging, audio, power, and other 
gadgets. We will continue to invest in both 
ATL and BTL marketing and have a robust 
GTM strategy to give our key products and 
brands the best chance of success in sell-
in and, more importantly, sell-out.
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Damas International
Limited

The brand has strengthened its position 
as a market leader, with a focus on 
the message, “from the region to the 
region” by reinforcing its in-house 
design-focused collections and 
innovating through bringing exceptional 
concepts such as the flagship “Bayt 
Damas”, all while preserving its socially 
responsible impact as a brand that 
cares. 

In 2021, Damas was able to stay ahead 
of the curve by focusing on its new 
vision of establishing itself as a design-
led organization while maintaining 
its market leadership position. Over 
33 collections, all designed in-house, 
carrying the Damas DNA at their core 
and focusing on craftsmanship, were 
launched this year with more than 5 
bestsellers, including: Lace, Dome, 
Gaia, Star and many more. With the new 
creative direction, each collection now 
tells more than a story by carrying a 
message of empowerment, femininity, 
and glamour. Previous successful lines 
were revisited and expanded with new 
derived pieces to keep the momentum 
going. The brand’s expansion didn’t 
stop here. 2021 witnessed a diversified 
assortment, with its highlight being 
the launch of the first Damas watch 
collection for men and women.

For the first time in the Middle East, and 
in line with its ongoing transformation 
efforts, Damas introduced Gaia, the 
first collection focusing on man-made 
diamonds, employing the best diamond 
manufacturer - an initiative known to 
have a direct impact protecting the 
planet. As a CSR-focused company 
and a market leader, Damas commits 
to pave the way and raise awareness 
in the region regarding sustainability 
and ethical practices to promote the 

Damas stepped into 
2021 with a renewed and 
powerful image. This is the 
year where Damas pursued 
and owned its continued 
transformation into the 
House of Jewellery Design. 

diamonds of tomorrow. This collection 
is a powerful instigator towards 
championing change.

A pioneer in every aspect, including 
retail innovation, Damas inaugurated 
BAYT DAMAS in May 2021, the region’s 
first lifestyle luxury destination in the 
Middle East, where jewelry, art, and 
fashion are brought under the same 
roof to create a home of exceptional 
creativity and highlight craftsmanship. 
This experiential concept offers clients, 
shoppers, art & design enthusiasts a 
unique experience: it is home to more 
than 20 brands, from Damas’ own 
collections to the world’s most coveted 
international brands such as Graff, 
Fope, Mikimoto, Verdi, Sabyasachi and 
many more. Bayt Damas showcases 
unique and limited-edition pieces in a 
space where privacy and a personalized 
approach are the key differentiating 
factors. The space is designed to create 
a discovery-like journey, starting from 
the Exhibition area – a rotating space 
for fresh talents in art and jewelry 
designers – followed by the Damas 
library by Assouline and ending with 
the elegant Damas Café for a bespoke 
culinary experience.

On the retail innovation strategy front, 
Damas introduced and implemented a 
new creative concept to several stores, 
which complement the new direction 
and DNA of Damas: elevated, modern, 
but still rooted and highly influenced 
by the Middle Eastern culture, taste, 
lifestyle and consumer demand; the 
new concept is already implemented in 
the DIFC, Galleria, Yas Mall and Mall of 
Oman stores as a start.

The Damas’ impressive portfolio of 
international brands include Graff, 
Roberto Coin, Fope, Mikimoto among 
others and keeps growing, with unique, 
fashionable additions and partnerships 
such as Djula Jewellery. Djula, the 
Parisian jewellery house created in 
1994, chose Damas to be the first store 
to carry the exclusive brand in the 
UAE and the region, thanks to Damas’ 
leading and prominent market position 
and consumers’ brand perception. 
Djula is available in The Dubai Mall as 
a mono-brand and in 15 points of sales 

across the region. 2021 also witnessed 
the opening of a second location of the 
prestigious Graff boutique at the Mall of 
the Emirates in the luxury area as part 
of the brand’s expansion.

In 2021, Damas focused on building 
and leading in digital innovation and 
reinforcing the brand’s presence online 
and across social media platforms. 
Damas reached more than 1 million 
followers across social media platforms, 
increasing 20% of its presence vs. 2020 
and was ranked, by the end of 2021, 
as the most visible brand online in the 
GCC amongst the fiercest international 
brands globally. Damas was also ranked 
number 2 in the GCC in terms of share 
of voice, gauging the brand visibility and 
how much it dominates in the market 
compared to competitors.

Additionally, the website has been 
revamped to a contemporary feel, 
designed to enhance the customer 
shopping experience as part of the 
omnichannel vision launched in 2020, 
focusing not only on design, but 
functionality, offering customers a 
personalized touch in fully responsive 
mode from desktop to tablet and mobile 
to enrich their experience. Since its 
revamp, the website has recorded the 
highest number of traffic online, leading 
to impressive sales figures.

Finally, Damas championed new ways 
of engaging with the clients through a 
social augmented reality experience 
with its Snapchat virtual try-on 
experience, allowing users to experience 
the new Damas store concept and 
try on one of Damas’ most popular 
collections, Fireworks. This experience 
is exceptional on many fronts as it builds 
a stronger connection with the brand 
through a fun and unique interaction 
that confirms its positioning and conveys 
its DNA at the same time.

HOPE
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In line with its new and stronger PR 
strategy, Damas revealed its new brand 
ambassador: Nadine Njeim, the multi-
awarded beautiful actress and symbol 
of women empowerment in the Arab 
world. Nadine debuted as the face of 
Damas launching Gaia and continuing 
with the Alif journey, embodying Damas’ 
new direction.

As part of the brand’s commitment to 
encouraging and facilitating career 
growth and development for over 
1200 employees, Damas Academy 
was unveiled earlier in 2021. The 
objective of this initiative is to offer 
unique customized training programs 
to employees, allowing them to expand 

their existing skillsets and benefit from 
online training courses through expert-
led webinars available on “Edamas”, the 
online learning platform, and traditional 
in-class and in-store training sessions. 

In terms of retail partnerships & 
collaborations, one of the most 
successful for this year was with 
Ounass, the number one e-commerce 
platform in the UAE where, in less than 
a few months, the brand became the 
number 1 selling brand in the jewelry 
category and number 2 selling brand 
across all categories, proving once again 
Damas’s strong positioning across the 
market and competition.

In summary, Damas Jewellery has 
made great advancements in its journey 
to positioning and transformation, 
which now can be the steppingstone to 
expansion and growth, further extending 
the brand’s market share in the luxury 
& jewellery industry led by our CEO and 
Chairman Luc Perramond.
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Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Mannai Corporation Q.P.S.C. (“the Company”), and its subsidiaries (together “the 
Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, the consolidated statements of income, 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial 
position of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then 
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section 
of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants 
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code), 
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Group’s consolidated financial statements in the 
State of Qatar, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA 
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on these matters.

Mannai Corporation Q.P.S.C.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Mannai Corporation Q.P.S.C.

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Mannai Corporation Q.P.S.C.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Description of key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
Carrying value of goodwill and other intangible assets 
with indefinite useful life and investments in associates 
companies – refer to note 12 and note 13 to the consolidated 
financial statements

We focused on this area because:

• the Group recognised goodwill and other intangible assets 
with indefinite useful life (“intangibles”) amounting to 
QR 5,010 million (2020: QR 5,173 million) arising due to 
obtaining control of one or more businesses;

• The annual impairment testing of goodwill and other 
intangible assets with indefinite useful life, and the 
impairment testing of one of the investments in 
associate companies in accordance with IAS 36, requires 
management to make significant estimates and judgments 
in determining the assumptions to be used to arrive at the 
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of the Cash 
Generating Units (CGUs) including the investment in one 
of the associate companies, which is based on the higher 
of the value in use or fair value less costs of disposal, has 
been derived from discounted forecast cash flows models; 
and

• these discounted forecast cash flow models use several key 
assumptions, including estimates of growth in future sales, 
operating costs, margins, terminal value growth rates and 
the weighted – average cost of capital (discount rate).

Accordingly, we have considered above as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures in this area included, among others:

• Obtaining the discounted forecast cash flows models 
for all the CGUs, except for one of CGUs (with related 
components) where we obtained fair value less costs of 
disposal;

• Involving our valuation specialists to assist us in:

 › evaluating the appropriateness of the discount rates 
applied, which included comparing the weighted- 
average cost of capital with industry averages for the 
relevant markets in which the CGUs operate;

 › evaluating the appropriateness of the assumptions 
applied in discounted forecast cash flows models to key 
inputs such as, growth rate applied in sales, operating 
costs, margins, terminal growth rates etc., by comparing 
these inputs with externally derived data as well as our 
own assessments based on our knowledge of the client’s 
business and the industry;

 › performing our own sensitivity analysis on assumptions 
applied in discounted forecast cash flows models which 
included assessing the effect of reasonably possible 
reductions in growth rates and forecast cash flows to 
evaluate the impact on the value in use forecast the 
CGUs; 

 › obtaining agreements entered subsequent to the 
reporting date to assess whether carrying values are 
lower than fair value less costs of disposal; and

 › evaluating the adequacy of the financial statements’ 
disclosures, including disclosures of key assumptions, 
judgement, estimates and sensitivities.
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Description of key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

Revenue recognition and impairment of financial and 
contract assets – refer to notes 5(C), 5(L), 8, 24 and 33 to the 
consolidated financial statements

We focused on these areas because:

• the Group generates revenue of QR 14,407 million (2020: 
QR 12,388 million) from the diversified revenue streams 
mainly from information technology, its related services 
(“IT contracts”), luxury goods and automotive; and

• the Group makes significant assumptions / judgements to 
measure and recognise revenue in particular identification 
of performance obligations, allocation of transaction price, 
estimating costs to complete, timing of revenue recognition 
and corresponding receivables from contract assets. 

• the Group’s financial and contract assets subject to 
credit risk were QR 6,104 million as at 31 December 2021 
(2020: QR 5,510 million), hence, a material portion of the 
consolidated statement of financial position.

• expected credit loss assessment for financial and contract 
assets involves:

 › complex accounting requirements, including 
assumptions, estimates and judgements underlying the 
determination of impairment;

 › susceptibility to management bias when making 
estimates and judgements to determine expected credit 
loss outcomes; and

 › complex disclosure requirements

Accordingly, we have considered above as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures in these areas included, among others: 

• obtaining an understanding of the systems, processes 
and controls implemented by the Group for recording and 
computing revenue and the associated contract assets / 
liabilities; 

• evaluating the appropriateness of the selection of 
accounting policies for the new contracts entered during 
the year based on the requirements of IFRS 15 and our 
understanding of the different sources of revenue of the 
Group;

• tested the controls pertaining to contract approvals, 
invoice approvals, allocation of standalone selling prices 
to individual performance obligations and revisions to cost 
estimates;

• assessing the appropriateness of management’s revenue 
recognition under IFRS 15 across significant revenue 
streams for a sample of contracts selected;

• assessing the appropriateness of the key inputs and 
assumptions used by the management to allocate contract 
revenue over performance obligations for a sample of 
contracts selected; 

• assessing the appropriateness of assumptions and 
judgements made to measure and assess the transaction 
price and its allocation over performance obligations for a 
sample of new contracts entered during the year based on 
our experience and industry practice;

• challenging the reasonableness of estimates made 
regarding the cost of completion, profit margins for 
each contract based on our experience and industry 
benchmarks; 

• assessed the appropriateness of work in progress and 
contract assets/liabilities on balance sheet date by 
evaluating the underlying documentation;

• assessing whether the Group’s policies and processes for 
making these estimates are appropriate and are applied 
consistently to all contracts of a similar nature;

• involving valuation specialist to evaluate the 
reasonableness of management’s key judgements and 
estimates made in calculation of expected credit loss;

• evaluating the completeness, accuracy and relevance of 
data used in the expected credit loss calculation; and

• evaluating the adequacy of the financial statement 
disclosures including key assumptions and judgements.

Mannai Corporation Q.P.S.C.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

60 Mannai Corporation Q.P.S.C



Description of key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit 

Existence and valuation of inventories – refer to note 5(G) 
and note 9 to the consolidated financial statements
 
We focused on this area because:

• the consolidated financial statements include inventories of 
QR 1,469 million (2020: QR 1,670 million). This represents 
9.01% (2020: 10.23%) of the Group’s total assets, hence, a 
material portion of the consolidated financial position.

• inventories mainly comprise luxury goods (gold and 
jewelleries), automotive and IT equipment. These 
inventories are held in multiple locations.

• valuation of inventories, in particular gold and jewelleries 
require significant management judgment and estimates.

Accordingly, we have considered above as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures in this area included, among others: 

• understanding the processes and identifying the relevant 
controls including automated controls. 

• testing existence and operating effectiveness of internal 
controls, including the automated controls, on samples of 
transactions based on the frequencies of the controls.

• evaluating the appropriateness of methodology used by the 
Group in estimating the net realisable values for sample of 
inventories.

• observing the inventory counts performed by the 
management for locations selected on sample basis.

• evaluated estimates used by the management in assessing 
provision against slow and/or non-moving inventories; and

• evaluating the adequacy of the financial statement 
disclosures, including disclosures in relation to key 
assumptions and estimates used in the valuation of 
inventories.

Other information 

The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the 
Company’s Annual Report of 2021 but does not include the Company’s consolidated financial statements and our auditors’ report 
thereon. Prior to date of this auditor’s report, we obtained the report of the Board of Directors which forms part of the Annual 
Report, and the remaining sections of the Annual Report are expected to be made available to us after the date. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance or conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated 
financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we have obtained prior to the date of this auditors’ report, 
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing 
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors for the consolidated financial statements 

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with IFRS, and for such internal control as the Board of Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation 
of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis 
of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.

Mannai Corporation Q.P.S.C.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risk, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omission, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal controls.

 
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by the Board of Directors. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation. 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the consolidated financial information of the entities or business 
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

• We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

• We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on 
our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.  

• From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in 
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe 
these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Mannai Corporation Q.P.S.C.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

As required by the Qatar Commercial Companies Law No. 11 of 2015, whose certain provisions were subsequently amended by 
Law No. 8 of 2021 ("amended QCCL"), we also report that :
 
• We have obtained all the information and explanations we considered necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

• The Company has maintained proper accounting records and its consolidated financial statements are in agreement there with. 

• Furthermore, the physical count of the Company’s inventories was carried out in accordance with established principles;

• We are not aware of any violations of the Qatar Commercial Companies Law No. 11 of 2015 or the terms of the Company’s 
Articles of Association and any amendments thereto having occurred during the year which might have had a material effect 
on the Company’s consolidated financial position or performance as at and for the year ended 31 December 2021.

16 March 2022

Doha

State of Qatar

Gopal Balasubramaniam

Qatar Auditors’ Registry Number 251

KPMG

Licensed by QFMA: External Auditor’s

License No. 120153

Mannai Corporation Q.P.S.C.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Notes 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 1 Jan 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000

(Restated)* (Restated)*

ASSETS

Current assets

Bank balances and cash 7 1,039,061 1,150,315 380,362

Accounts receivable and prepayments 8  4,954,683 4,415,893 3,822,375

Inventories 9  1,469,110  1,669,566  1,366,476 

Amounts due from related parties 30(b)  33,813  40,169  46,453 

Total current assets 7,496,667 7,275,943 5,615,666

Non-current assets

Accounts receivable and prepayments 8  374,465 304,298                  283,218

Financial assets - equity instruments 10  11,810 15,069 9,336

Investment in joint venture companies 11  27,150 19,956 20,275

Investment in associate companies 12  953,035 970,506 992,996

Goodwill and other intangible assets 13  5,819,319 6,032,986 4,327,303

Property, plant and equipment 14  911,649 917,885 872,752

Investment properties 15  893 9,940 11,746

Deferred tax assets 16  56,816 108,948 80,896

Right-of-use assets 18  520,812 623,599 605,241

Amounts due from related parties 30(b)  48,602 46,534 62,362

Total non-current assets 8,724,551 9,049,721 7,266,125

Total assets 16,221,218 16,325,664 12,881,791

Mannai Corporation Q.P.S.C.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
As at 31 December 2021

*Refer note 35
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Mannai Corporation Q.P.S.C.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2021

Notes 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 1 Jan 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000

(Restated)* (Restated)*

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities 

Current liabilities

Bank overdrafts 7 313,096       280,613 282,805

Interest bearing loans and borrowings 17 2,742,959 2,001,117 1,873,607

Lease liabilities 18 191,515        192,929 184,992

Accounts payable and accruals 19 5,343,281    5,148,779 3,427,400

Amounts due to related parties 30(b) 4,543           2,945 3,543

Total current liabilities 8,595,394 7,626,383 5,772,347

Non-current liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities 16 24,377 42,631 3,812

Interest bearing loans and borrowings 17 4,541,932    5,706,770       4,159,223

Lease liabilities 18 352,931        445,289  442,838

Accounts payable and accruals 19 86,695         24,190 42,645

Employees’ end of service benefits 20 420,028       429,552 394,837

Total non-current liabilities 5,425,963 6,648,432 5,043,355

Total liabilities 14,021,357 14,274,815 10,815,702

Equity

Share capital 21       456,192 456,192 456,192

Legal reserve 22(a) 1,083,456 1,083,456 1,083,456

Acquisition reserve 22(b) (999,488) (999,488) (999,488)

Other reserve 22(c) (66,379) (64,782) (63,332)

Foreign currency translation reserve 22(d) (156,450) (39,952) (116,994)

Proposed dividends 23 136,858 4,562 91,238

Fair value reserve (32,990) (32,990) (32,990)

Retained earnings 1,774,811 1,642,495 1,645,756

Equity attributable to shareholders of the 
Company 2,196,010 2,049,493 2,063,838

Non-controlling interests 3,851 1,356 2,251

Total equity 2,199,861 2,050,849 2,066,089

Total liabilities and equity 16,221,218 16,325,664 12,881,791

These consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on their behalf by the 
following on 16 March 2022.

…………………………………………… ……………………………………………......

Mohamed Yousef H A Kamal
Director

Khaled Sultan Al Rabban 
Director

*Refer note 35
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Notes 2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

(Restated)*

Revenue 24 14,406,970 12,388,482

Direct costs (11,314,000) (9,742,366)

Gross profit 3,092,970 2,646,116

Share of results and impairment losses from joint ventures 
and associate companies 11,12 23,302 8,393 

Other income 26 80,020 63,659

General and administrative expenses 27 (1,470,289) (1,249,482)

Selling and distribution expenses 28 (476,533) (413,606)

Impairment of financial and contract assets -net 8 (7,265) (70,921)

Profit before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation 1,242,205 984,159

Finance costs (345,091) (389,733)

Depreciation and amortisation 13,14,15,18(a) (496,819) (467,707)

Profit before tax 400,295 126,719

Income tax 16 (124,668) (124,924)  

Net profit for the year 275,627 1,795

Attributable to: 

Shareholders of the Company 276,076 1,659

Non-controlling interests (449) 136

275,627 1,795

Earnings per share:

Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to 
shareholders of the Company (QR) (Restated*) 21, 29 0.605 0.004

Mannai Corporation Q.P.S.C.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME 
For the year ended 31 December 2021      

*Refer note 35
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Mannai Corporation Q.P.S.C.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
For the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

(Restated)*

Net profit for the year 275,627 1,795

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Changes in actuarial differences – net of related taxes 1,870 (2,944)

1,870 (2,944)

Items that are or may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Change in fair value of derivative financial liabilities 6,997 (3,578)

Valuation of share-based payments 11,715 8,939

Foreign currency translation adjustment (116,505) 77,182

Total other comprehensive income for the year (95,923) 79,599 

Total comprehensive income for the year 179,704 81,394

Attributable to:

Shareholders of the Company 180,160 81,118

Non-controlling interests (456) 276

179,704 81,394
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Share capital Legal  
reserve

Acquisition 
reserve

Other  
reserve

Foreign 
currency 

translation 
reserve

Proposed 
dividends

Fair value 
reserve

Retained 
earnings

Equity 
attributable to 
shareholders 

of the Company

Non- 
controlling 

interests

Total

QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000

1 January 2020, as previously reported 456,192 1,083,456 (999,488) (63,332) (116,994) 91,238 (32,990) 1,916,328 2,334,410 2,251 2,336,661

Impact of correction of errors* - - - - - - - (270,572) (270,572) - (270,572)

Restated balance at 1 January 2020 456,192 1,083,456 (999,488) (63,332) (116,994) 91,238 (32,990) 1,645,756 2,063,838 2,251 2,066,089

Total comprehensive income for the year* - - - 2,417 77,042 - - 1,659 81,118 276 81,394

Dividends paid (Note 23) - - - - - (91,238) - - (91,238) - (91,238)

Proposed dividend (Note 23) - - - - - 4,562 - (4,562) - - -

Social and sports contribution for 2020 - - - - - - - (358) (358) - (358)

Other adjustments - - - (3,867) - - - - (3,867) - (3,867)

Change in consolidation scope - - - - - - - - - (1,171) (1,171)

At 31 December 2020 456,192 1,083,456 (999,488) (64,782) (39,952) 4,562 (32,990) 1,642,495 2,049,493 1,356 2,050,849

At 31 December 2020 / At 1 January 2021 456,192 1,083,456 (999,488) (64,782) (39,952) 4,562 (32,990) 1,642,495 2,049,493 1,356 2,050,849

Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 20,582 (116,498) - - 276,076 180,160 (456) 179,704

Dividends paid (Note 23) - - - - - (4,562) - - (4,562) - (4,562)

Proposed dividend (Note 23) - - - - - 136,858 - (136,858) - - -

Social and sports contribution for 2021 - - - - - - - (6,902) (6,902) - (6,902)

Other adjustments - - - (22,179) - - - - (22,179) - (22,179)

Change in consolidation scope - - - - - - - - - 2,951 2,951

At 31 December 2021 456,192 1,083,456 (999,488) (66,379) (156,450) 136,858 (32,990) 1,774,811 2,196,010 3,851 2,199,861

Mannai Corporation Q.P.S.C.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
For the year ended 31 December 2021

*Refer note 35
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Share capital Legal  
reserve

Acquisition 
reserve

Other  
reserve

Foreign 
currency 

translation 
reserve

Proposed 
dividends

Fair value 
reserve

Retained 
earnings

Equity 
attributable to 
shareholders 

of the Company

Non- 
controlling 

interests

Total

QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000

1 January 2020, as previously reported 456,192 1,083,456 (999,488) (63,332) (116,994) 91,238 (32,990) 1,916,328 2,334,410 2,251 2,336,661

Impact of correction of errors* - - - - - - - (270,572) (270,572) - (270,572)

Restated balance at 1 January 2020 456,192 1,083,456 (999,488) (63,332) (116,994) 91,238 (32,990) 1,645,756 2,063,838 2,251 2,066,089

Total comprehensive income for the year* - - - 2,417 77,042 - - 1,659 81,118 276 81,394

Dividends paid (Note 23) - - - - - (91,238) - - (91,238) - (91,238)

Proposed dividend (Note 23) - - - - - 4,562 - (4,562) - - -

Social and sports contribution for 2020 - - - - - - - (358) (358) - (358)

Other adjustments - - - (3,867) - - - - (3,867) - (3,867)

Change in consolidation scope - - - - - - - - - (1,171) (1,171)

At 31 December 2020 456,192 1,083,456 (999,488) (64,782) (39,952) 4,562 (32,990) 1,642,495 2,049,493 1,356 2,050,849

At 31 December 2020 / At 1 January 2021 456,192 1,083,456 (999,488) (64,782) (39,952) 4,562 (32,990) 1,642,495 2,049,493 1,356 2,050,849

Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 20,582 (116,498) - - 276,076 180,160 (456) 179,704

Dividends paid (Note 23) - - - - - (4,562) - - (4,562) - (4,562)

Proposed dividend (Note 23) - - - - - 136,858 - (136,858) - - -

Social and sports contribution for 2021 - - - - - - - (6,902) (6,902) - (6,902)

Other adjustments - - - (22,179) - - - - (22,179) - (22,179)

Change in consolidation scope - - - - - - - - - 2,951 2,951

At 31 December 2021 456,192 1,083,456 (999,488) (66,379) (156,450) 136,858 (32,990) 1,774,811 2,196,010 3,851 2,199,861
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Notes 2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

(Restated)*

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax 400,295 126,719

Adjustments for:

Impairment loss on financial and contract assets -net 8 7,265 70,921

Provision for slow moving inventories, net of write-back 9 12,854 10,191

Share of results and impairment losses from joint ventures and 
associate companies 11,12 (23,302) (8,393)

Depreciation and amortisation 13,14,15, 18(a) 496,819 467,707 

Rent concessions related to COVID-19 18(b) (877) (11,917)

Provision for employees’ end of service benefits 20(a), 20(b) 44,299 45,361

Write back of provisions / liabilities no longer required 26 - (974)

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 26 (2,013) (701)

Gain on sale of investment properties 26 (14,878) (349)

Gain on sale of intangible assets 26 - (6,081)

Write-off and impairment of property, plant and equipment 160 7,254

Gain on derecognition / modification of right of use assets and
lease liabilities (7,480) (4,083)

Finance income (4,247) (4,640)

Finance costs 345,091 389,733

Operating profit before working capital changes 1,253,986 1,080,748 

Working capital changes:

Accounts receivables and prepayments (563,308) 10,221

Inventories 187,602 (159,506)

Amounts due from / to related parties 10,133 26,154 

Accounts payable and accruals 248,586 131,669

Cash generated from operations 1,136,999 1,089,286 

Finance costs paid  (323,458) (351,737)

Employees’ end of service benefits paid 20(a), 20(b)  (39,443) (40,440)

Social and sports contribution paid  (358) (4,833)

Net cash generated from operating activities  773,740 692,276

Mannai Corporation Q.P.S.C.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
For the year ended 31 December 2021
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Mannai Corporation Q.P.S.C.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Notes 2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

(Restated)*

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Disposal / (additions) of financial assets - equity investments 10(b) 2,847 (5,641)

Dividend received from associates and joint venture companies 12 33,753 44,825

Additions to goodwill and other intangible assets 13 (132,055) (125,703)

Additions to property, plant and equipment 14 (144,300) (134,301)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 14,771 24,334

Proceeds from sale of investment properties 23,793 963

Proceeds from sale of other intangible assets - 7,390

Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash acquired (73,542) (958,118)

Contingent consideration paid for prior year’s acquisitions - (120,895)

Net cash used in investing activities (274,733) (1,267,146)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net movements in interest bearing loans and borrowings (422,996) 1,675,057

Payment of lease liabilities 18(b) (215,466) (238,785)

Dividends paid 23 (4,562) (91,238)

Net cash (used in) / generated from  financing activities (643,024) 1,345,034

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (144,017) 770,164

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 867,104 88,632

Effect of movements in exchange rates on cash held 1,743   8,308

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 7 724,830 867,104

*Refer note 35
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Mannai Corporation Q.P.S.C.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2021

Mannai Corporation Q.P.S.C. (the “Company”) is registered as a Qatari Shareholding Company in the State of Qatar with the 
Ministry of Economy and Commerce under Commercial Registration Number 12. The registered office of the Company is 
situated in Doha, State of Qatar. The Company is listed on the Qatar Stock Exchange.

The Company’s parent is Qatar Investment & Projects Development Holding Company WLL.
  
The core activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) include information and 
communication technology, automotive and heavy equipment distribution and service, geotechnical, geological, environmental 
and material testing services, engineering services to the oil and gas sector, logistics and warehousing, office systems, medical 
equipment, building materials, travel and cargo services, home appliances and electronics, trading and representation, facilities 
maintenance and management services and trading in gold and gold jewellery, diamond jewellery, pearls, watches, silver and 
precious stones on wholesale and retail basis.

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its controlled subsidiaries. Set out 
below is a list of local, and foreign material subsidiaries of the Group.

Group’s effective 
shareholding 
percentage

Name of subsidiaries Principal activities Country of 
incorporation

2021  2020

Mannai Trading Company W.L.L. Trading and services Qatar 100 100

Manweir L.L.C. Engineering Qatar 100 100

Gulf Laboratories Company W.L.L. Geotechnical services Qatar 100 100

Space Travel W.L.L. Travel Qatar 100 100

Space Cargo L.L.C. Travel Qatar 100 100

Qatar Logistics W.L.L. Logistics Qatar 100 100

Technical Services Company W.L.L. Representations Qatar 100 100

Mansoft Qatar W.L.L. Information technology Qatar 100 100

Mannai Security Services W.L.L. Security services Qatar 100 100

Mannai Auto Rent W.L.L. Car rental services Qatar 100 100

Best Holidays Online Travel Qatar 100 100

Mannai Air Travel W.L.L. Travel Qatar 100 100

Mannai Holidays and Inbound Tourism W.L.L. Travel Qatar 100 100

Inetum S.A. Holding company France 100 100

Inetum Realdolmen Belgium Services ICT Belgium 100 100

Inetum Polska Sp Zoo Services ICT East of Europe 100 100

Inetum Software France Software France 100 100

1. REPORTING ENTITY 
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Mannai Corporation Q.P.S.C.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2021

Group’s effective 
shareholding 
percentage

Name of subsidiaries Principal activities Country of 
incorporation

2021  2020

Inetum Midmarket Solutions France Consulting and 
outsourcing France 100 100

Inetum Modernisation Solutions Applications Services France 100 100

Inetum Business Solutions France Software France 100 100

Inetum Luxembourg 
Consulting, 
Applications services 
and Business solutions

Luxembourg 100 100

Inetum Mexico Services ICT Mexico 100 100

Inetum Holding Mexico) Services ICT Mexico 100 100

Inetum Servicios Mexico 2 Services ICT Mexico 100 100

Inetum Maroc Services ICT Morocco 100 100

Inetum Consulting Maroc Consulting services Morocco 70 70

Inetum Business Solutions Maroc Services ICT Morocco 100 100

Inetum Peru Outsourcing services 
and IT projects Peru 100 100

Inetum CLSW Software Portugal Software Portugal 100 100

Inetum Tech Portugal (en mars 2021) 
Consulting, 
Applications services 
and Business solutions

Portugal 100 100

Inetum Holding Business Solutions Portugal SAP Portugal 100 100

Inetum Romania Services ICT Romania 100 100

Inetum Espana Services ICT Spain 100 100

Inetum Norte Application services Spain 100 100

Savac Consultores SL Software Spain 100 100

Inetum Suisse S.A. Application services Switzerland 100 100

Inetum Holding Tunisie Consulting and 
outsourcing Tunisia 100 100

Damas L.L.C. Jewellery trading UAE 100 100

Damas Jewellery L.L.C Jewellery trading Oman 100 100
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2021

Group’s effective 
shareholding 
percentage

Name of subsidiaries Principal activities Country of 
incorporation

2021  2020

Damas Company W.L.L. Jewellery trading Bahrain 100 100

Damas Jewellery Kuwait Company W.L.L. Jewellery trading Kuwait 100 100

Damas Saudi Arabia Company Limited Jewellery trading KSA 100 100

Damas Jewellery L.L.C Jewellery trading UAE 100 100

Damas Jewellery D.M.C.C. Jewellery trading UAE 100 100

Damas Jewellery Manufacturing Company L.L.C. Jewellery trading UAE - 100

Premium Investments International L.L.C. Jewellery trading UAE 100 100

The management is in the process of taking necessary actions needed to ensure full compliance with the requirements of 
Qatar Commercial Companies Law No.11 of 2015, whose certain provisions were subsequently amended by Law No. 8 of 2021, 
including amending the Articles of Association of the Company where necessary, and has concluded that any non-compliance, if 
any as at the reporting date does not have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
 
A. Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial reporting Standards 
(IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the applicable provisions of Qatar Commercial 
Companies’ Law No 11 of 2015.

B. Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for financial assets – equity instruments 
and certain fixed assets that are measured at fair value. Details of the Group’s accounting policies are included in Note 5.

3. FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY
 
These consolidated financial statements are presented in Qatari Riyals, which is the Company’s functional and presentation 
currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand or million as appropriate, unless otherwise indicated.

4. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING 
STANDARDS (IFRS)

4.1 New standards, amendments and interpretations effective from 1 January 2021

During the current year, the below amendments to IFRS Standards became effective for annual reporting period beginning on or 
after 1 January 2021:

• Amendments to IFRS 16 “Leases” on COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions. 

• Interest Rate Benchmark Reform – Phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16) 

The adoption of the above amendments to IFRS or standards listed do not have any or material effect on the Group’s 
consolidated financial statements.

1. REPORTING ENTITY (Continued)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2021

4.2 New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not yet effective

The IFRS standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Group’s consolidated 
financial statements are disclosed below. The Group intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they become effective, 
however, these are not expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Effective date New standards or amendments

1 April 2021 • COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 (Amendment to IFRS 16)

Annual period beginning on or 
after 1 January 2022

• Onerous Contracts – Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37)
• Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018–2020
• Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16)
• Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3)

Annual period beginning on or 
after 1 January 2023

• Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (Amendments to IAS 1)
• IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and amendments to IFRS 17 insurance contracts
• Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2)
• Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8)
• Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction (Amendments to 

IAS 12)

Available for optional adoption • Sale or contribution of assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture 
(Amendments to IFRS 10 ad IAS 28).

Management does not expect that the adoption of the above new and amended standards and the interpretation to a standard will 
have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Mannai Corporation Q.P.S.C. and its subsidiaries (together 
referred to as the “Group”). The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in these 
consolidated financial statements, and have been applied consistently by the Group entities, where necessary, adjustments are made 
to the financial statements of the subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with those used by the Group.

A. Basis of consolidation

i. Business combinations

The Group accounts for business combinations using the 
acquisition method when control is transferred to the Group. 
The consideration transferred in the acquisition is generally 
measured at fair value, as are the identifiable net assets 
acquired. Any goodwill that arises is tested annually for 
impairment. Any gain on a bargain purchase is recognised in 
profit or loss immediately. Transaction costs are expensed 
as incurred, except if related to the issue of debt or equity 
securities.

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related 
to the settlement of pre-existing relationships. Such amounts are 
generally recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s 
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to 
its acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss, if 
any, is recognised in the statement of income. 

Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the 
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other 

comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where 
such treatment would be appropriate if that interest were 
disposed off. If the initial accounting for a business combination 
is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the 
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts 
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those 
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement 
period (12 months after the acquisition) to reflect new 
information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed 
at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the 
amounts recognised at that date.

Any contingent consideration is measured at fair value at 
the date of acquisition. If an obligation to pay contingent 
consideration that meets the definition of a financial instrument 
is classified as equity, then it is not remeasured, and settlement 
is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, other contingent 
consideration is remeasured at fair value at each reporting 
date and subsequent changes in the fair value of the contingent 
consideration are recognised in profit or loss.
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ii. Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group 
controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, 
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has 
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the 
entity. The financial information of subsidiaries are included in 
the consolidated financial statements from the date on which 
control commences until the date on which control ceases.  

iii. Non-controlling interests (“NCI”)

NCI are measured initially at their proportionate share of the 
acquiree’s identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition. 
Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do 
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity 
transactions.

iv. Loss of control

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it 
derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, and 
any related NCI and other components of equity. Any resulting 
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. Any interest 
retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair value 
when control is lost.

v. Interests in associate and joint venture companies

The Group’s interests in equity-accounted investees comprise 
interests in associates and joint ventures.

The Group’s interests in equity-accounted investees comprise 
interests in associates and joint ventures.

Associates are those entities in which the Group has 
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over 
the financial and operating policies. A joint venture is an 
arrangement in which the Group has joint control, whereby the 
Group has rights to the net assets of the arrangement, rather 
than rights to its assets and obligations for its liabilities.

Interests in associates and the joint venture are accounted 
for using the equity method. They are initially recognised at 
cost, which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial 
recognition, the consolidated financial statements include the 
Group’s share of the profit or loss and OCI of equity-accounted 
investees, until the date on which significant influence or joint 
control ceases.

vi. Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised 
income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, 
are eliminated. Unrealised gains arising from transactions 
with equity-accounted investees are eliminated against 

the investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the 
investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way 
as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no 
evidence of impairment.

B. Foreign currency 

i. Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the 
respective functional currencies of Group companies at the 
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies are translated into the functional currency at the 
exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and 
liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency 
are translated into the functional currency at the exchange 
rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary 
items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign 
currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of 
the transaction. Foreign currency differences are generally 
recognised in profit or loss.

However, foreign currency differences arising from the 
translation of financial assets – equity instruments are 
recognised in OCI.

ii. Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including 
goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on acquisition, 
are translated into Qatari Riyals at the exchange rates at the 
reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign operations 
are translated into Qatari Riyals at the exchange rates at the 
dates of the transactions.

Foreign currency differences are recognised in OCI and 
accumulated in the translation reserve, except to the extent 
that the translation difference is allocated to NCI.

When a foreign operation is disposed off in its entirety or 
partially such that control, significant influence or joint control 
is lost, the cumulative amount in the translation reserve 
related to that foreign operation is reclassified to profit or loss 
as part of the gain or loss on disposal. If the Group disposes 
off part of its interest in a subsidiary but retains control, 
then the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is 
reattributed to NCI. When the Group disposes off only part 
of an associate or joint venture while retaining significant 
influence or joint control, the relevant proportion of the 
cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss.

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Mannai Corporation Q.P.S.C.
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As at and for the year ended 31 December 2021

76 Mannai Corporation Q.P.S.C



Mannai Corporation Q.P.S.C.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2021

C. Revenue

Revenue is recognised upon the transfer of promised products 
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the 
consideration that the Group expects to receive in exchange 
for those products or services. The amount of revenue 
recognised is adjusted for any rebates. For allocating the 
transaction prices, the Group has measured the revenue in 
respect of each performance obligation of a contract at its 
standalone selling price. The price that is regularly charged 
for an item is the best evidence of its standalone selling price.

i. Information and Communication Technology  
 (ICT Projects or ICT)

Sale of ICT equipment

The customers take control of the items at the time of delivery 
of goods. Invoices are generated and revenue is recognised at 
that point in time.

Sale of software and software support

Revenue is recognised when such sales of software and 
software support provide the customer with a right to use the 
software and the relevant support, and control is transferred 
to the customer at a point in time which is (a) upon installation 
when the Company is required to install the software or the 
software support or (b) upon software or software support 
license authorisation when installation service is not required.

For software development and related services, where the 
license  and implementation is required to be substantially 
customised as part of implementation service, the entire 
arrangement fee for the license and implementation is 
considered to be a single  performance obligation, the 
performance obligation is satisfied over time as and when  the 
services  are rendered since the customer generally obtains  
control  of the work as it progresses and the revenue is 
recognised using the percentage of completion  method as the 
implementation is completed.

Networking ICT projects and related services

Revenue is recognised over time using percentage-of-
completion method (POC method) of accounting with contract 
cost incurred determining the degree of completion of the 
performance obligation. Transfer of control of the service is 
assessed based on the service performed.

Revenue from fixed price contracts where the performance 
obligations are satisfied over time and where there is 
no uncertainty as to measurement or collectability of 
consideration is recognised by reference to the stages of 
completion. Stage of completion is measured by reference 
to labour hours incurred to date as a percentage of total 

estimated labour hours for each contract.  When the contact 
outcome cannot be measure reliably, revenue is recognised 
only to the extent that the expenses incurred are eligible to be 
recovered. 

Revenue from contracts on time and material basis is 
recognised as services are performed. Product maintenance 
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract.

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of 
revenue earned over billings on contracts. Contract assets 
are classified as unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing is 
pending) when there is unconditional right to receive cash, 
and only passage of time is required, as per contractual 
terms. Unearned and deferred revenue ("contract liability’’) is 
recognised when there is billings in excess of revenues. The 
Group presents a single contract asset or liability representing 
the net position of the contract as a whole.

The billing schedules agreed with customers include periodic 
performance-based payments and/or milestone-based 
progress payments. Invoices are payable within contractually 
agreed credit period.

In accordance with IAS 37, the Group recognises an onerous 
contract provision when the unavoidable costs of meeting the 
obligations under a contract exceed the economic benefits to 
be received.

Contracts are subject to modification to account for changes 
in contract specification and requirements. The Group reviews 
modification to contract in conjunction with the original 
contract, on the basis of which the transaction price could 
be allocated to a new performance obligation or transaction 
price of an existing obligation could undergo a change. In the 
event transaction price is revised for existing obligation, a 
cumulative adjustment is accounted for.

ii. Sale of goods

Customers obtain control of products when the goods are 
delivered to and have been accepted by the customers. 
Invoices are generated and revenue is recognised at that point 
in time. Some contracts permit the customer to return an 
item.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised to the extent that 
it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount 
of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur. Therefore, 
the amount of revenue recognised is adjusted for expected 
returns, which are estimated based on the historical data for 
specific type of products. 
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iii. Rendering of services (other than those that forms part of 
ICT projects and services)

Revenue is recognised over time as those services are 
provided since the customer consumes the benefits as 
and when services are rendered by the Group. Invoices are 
usually issued upon completion of the job. Revenue from 
these services is recognised over time based on the stage of 
completion of the projects which is determined based on the 
input method. The related costs are recognised in profit or 
loss when they are incurred.

iv. Commission income from agency services

The Group earns commission income from airline tickets 
and hotel booking services. Customers obtain benefit when 
the services are rendered to and have been accepted by the 
customers. Invoices are generated and revenue is recognised 
on a net basis at that point in time. For contracts that permit 
the customer to revenue is recognised to the extent that it is 
highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of 
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur.

D. Employee benefits

i. Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related 
service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount 
expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or 
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past 
service provided by the employee and the obligation can be 
estimated reliably.

ii. Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans 
are expensed as the related service is provided. Prepaid 
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a 
cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.

iii. Defined benefit plans

The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit 
plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating 
the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in 
the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and 
deducting the fair value of any planned assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed 
annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit 
method. The projected unit credit sees each period of service 
as giving rise to an additional unit of benefit entitlement 
applying the plan’s vesting formula, taking into account the 
linearization effect when the rights do not vest uniformly over 
subsequent vesting periods.

Future payments corresponding to the benefits granted to 
employees are determined using various assumptions (rate 
of increase in salaries, retirement age, mortality, etc.) and 
these defined benefit obligations are then discounted to their 
present value using market yields on high quality corporate 
bonds as the discount rate.

When assumptions are revised, this results in actuarial 
differences that are recognised in the period in which they 
arise, not to profit or loss but directly to equity.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan 
is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to 
past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised 
immediately in profit or loss. The Group recognises gains and 
losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the 
settlement occurs.

iv. Termination benefits

Termination benefits are expensed at the earlier of when 
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits 
and when the Group recognises costs for a restructuring. 
If benefits are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 
months of the reporting date, then they are discounted.

v. Qatari nationals (Defined contribution plans)

With respect to the Qatari nationals, the Company makes 
contributions to Qatar Retirement and Pension Authority as a 
percentage of the employees’ salaries in accordance with the 
requirements of respective local laws pertaining to retirement 
and pensions. The Company’s share of contributions to these 
schemes are charged to profit or loss to the year they relate.

vi. Expatriate employees (Defined benefit plan)

With respect to the expatriate employees in Qatar, the 
Company provides for employees’ end of service benefits 
determined in accordance with the requirements of Qatar 
Labour Law No. 14 of 2004. These unfunded charges are 
made by the Company on the basis of employees’ salaries and 
the number of years of service at the statement of financial 
position date.

E. Finance income and finance costs

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective 
interest method. Interest received under instalment credit 
sale agreement and bank deposits is accounted for on a time 
proportion basis taking into account the principal outstanding 
and interest rate applicable.

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
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F. Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is 
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates 
to a business combination, or items recognised directly in 
equity or in OCI. Interest and penalties related to income taxes, 
including uncertain tax treatments, are accounted for under 
IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

i. Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable 
on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment 
to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. 
The amount of current tax payable or receivable is the best 
estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received 
that reflects uncertainty related to income taxes, if any, and is 
measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at 
the reporting date. Current tax also includes any tax arising 
from dividends.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain 
criteria are met. 

ii. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences 
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for 
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for 
taxation purposes.

Deferred tax is not recognised for:

• temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or 
liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination 
and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss;

• temporary differences related to investments in 
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements to the 
extent that the Group is able to control the timing of the 
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that 
they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

• taxable temporary differences arising on the initial 
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, 
unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to 
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be 
available against which they can be used. Future taxable profits 
are determined based on the reversal of relevant taxable 
temporary differences. If the amount of taxable temporary 
differences is insufficient to recognise a deferred tax asset 
in full, then future taxable profits, adjusted for reversals of 
existing temporary differences, are considered, based on the 
business plans for individual subsidiaries in the Group. 

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date 
and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable 
that the related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions 
are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits 
improves. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed 
at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has 
become probable that future taxable profits will be available 
against which they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to 
be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, using 
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax 
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the 
Group expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the 
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain 
criteria are met. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted to their 
present value and are therefore reported at the nominal value.

G. Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs are those expenses incurred in bringing each 
product to its present location and condition as follows:

Merchandises, spare and tools, and industrial supplies - Purchase cost on a weighted average cost basis
Vehicles - Purchase cost on specific identification basis
Work-in-progress - Cost of direct materials, labour and other direct costs
Diamond jewellery, pearl jewellery, watches and precious stones* - Purchase cost on specific identification basis
Gold and gold jewellery* - Purchase cost on a weighted average cost basis
Others - Purchase cost on a weighted average cost basis

*Making charges related to inventory of own and unfixed gold jewellery is included in inventories. 

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all cost expected to be incurred for completion, sale and/or disposal.
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H. Property, plant and equipment

i. Recognition and measurement 

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less accumulated 
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. The cost of certain items of property, plant and equipment at 1 January 
2005 (the Group’s date of transition to IFRS) was determined with reference to its fair value at that date.

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost. When the asset is ready for intended use, it is transferred from capital work-in-
progress to the appropriate category under property, plant and equipment and depreciated in accordance with the Group’s 
policies.

ii. Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from 
its use. Profits and losses on disposals of items of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds 
from their disposals with their respective carrying amounts and are recognised net within profit or loss.

An item of property, plant and equipment is transferred to inventories at net book values when its value is expected 
to recover through sale.

iii. Subsequent expenditure 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will 
flow to the Group.

iv. Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values 
using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives and is generally recognised in profit or loss. Leased assets are 
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the Group will obtain 
ownership by the end of the lease term. Land and capital work-in-progress are not depreciated.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The estimated useful lives of 
property, plant and equipment for current and comparative periods are as follows: 

Buildings 10-50 years
Plant, machinery and equipment 03-20 years
Furniture and equipment 01-06 years
Motor vehicles 03-05 years
Assets on hire 01-05 years

Maintenance, repairs and minor improvements are charged to the statement of income as and when incurred.  
Major improvements and replacements are capitalised. 

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

v. Reclassification to investment property

When the use of a property changes from owner-occupied to investment property, the property is remeasured to fair value and 
reclassified accordingly. Any gain arising on this remeasurement is recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a 
previous impairment loss on the specific property, with any remaining gain recognised in OCI and presented in the revaluation 
reserve. Any loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Mannai Corporation Q.P.S.C.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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I. Intangible assets and goodwill

i. Recognition and measurement

Goodwill Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Research and 
development

Expenditure on research activities is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Development expenditure is capitalised only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the product or 
process is technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable, and the Group 
intends to and has sufficient resources to complete development and to use or sell the asset. Otherwise, 
it is recognised in profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, development expenditure is 
measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Other intangible

Assets

Other intangible assets, including customer relationships, brands, patents and trademarks, that are 
acquired by the Group and have finite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and 
any accumulated impairment losses.

ii. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to 
which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in profit 
or loss as incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a business combination are reported at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

iii. Amortisation

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values using the straight-line 
method over their estimated useful lives and is generally recognised in profit or loss. Goodwill is not amortised.

The useful lives of goodwill, brand and trade name are for indefinite period whilst the estimated useful lives of other intangible 
assets for current and comparative periods are as follows:

Customer relationship 02-21 years
Order backlog       03 years
Other intangible assets       04 years

J. Investment property

Investment property comprises property held for capital appreciation, rental yields or both, but not for sale in the ordinary 
course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes. Investment property is 
carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Land held for undetermined use is classified as 
investment property and is not depreciated.

When the development of investment property commences, it is transferred to capital work-in-progress until development is 
complete, at which time it is transferred to the respective category, and depreciated on the straight-line method, at the rate 
calculated to reduce the cost of the asset to its estimated residual value over its expected useful life, as follows:

Building  20 years

Any expenditure that results in the maintenance of property to an acceptable standard or specification is treated as repairs and 
maintenance and is expensed in the period in which it is incurred.

Any gain or loss on disposal of investment property (calculated as the difference between the net proceeds from disposal and the 
carrying amount of the item) is recognised in profit or loss. When investment property that was previously classified as property, 
plant and equipment is sold, any related amount included in the revaluation reserve is transferred to retained earnings.
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K. Financial instruments

Recognition and initial measurement

Accounts receivables are initially recognised when they are 
originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities 
are initially recognised when the Group becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset unless it is a trade receivable without a 
significant financing component or financial liability is initially 
measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition. An accounts 
receivable without a significant financing component is initially 
measured at the transaction price.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified at:

• amortised cost – if it meets both of the following conditions and 
is not designated as at FVTPL:

 › it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold 
assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

 › its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash 
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest 
(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

• Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) - if it 
meets both of the following conditions and is not designated 
as at FVTPL:

 › it is held within a business model whose objective achieved 
by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling 
financial assets; and

 › its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash 
flows that are SPPI on the principal amount outstanding.

 › Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) – All financial 
assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or 
FVOCI as described above.

On initial recognition, the Group may irrecoverably designate 
a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be 
measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI, if doing so eliminates 
or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would 
otherwise arise.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial 
recognition unless the Group changes its business model for 
managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial 
assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting 
period following the change in the business model. 

The Group carries out non-recourse factor of part of its 
receivables. Based on the negotiated contract, the factoring 
company takes care of the recovery of the assigned receivables. 
Therefore, the receivables are not maintained in the “Trade 
receivables”. The Group has classified on initial recognition its 
accounts and other receivables, due from related parties and 
its cash at bank at amortised cost. The Group does not hold any 
other financial assets.

Mannai Corporation Q.P.S.C.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial assets – Business model assessment 

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of the business 
model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio level 
because this best reflects the way the business is managed, 
and information is provided to management. The information 
considered includes:

• the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the 
operation of those policies in practice. These include whether 
management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual cash 
flows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

• how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and 
reported to the Group’s management;

• the risks that affect the performance of the business model 
(and the financial assets held within that business model) and 
how those risks are managed;

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that 
do not qualify for derecognition are not considered sales for this 
purpose, consistent with the Group’s continuing recognition of 
the assets.

Financial assets – Assessment whether contractual cash flows are 
Solely Payments of Principal and Interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the 
fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ 
is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for 
the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding 
during a particular period of time and for other basic lending 
risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as 
well as a profit margin. 

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely 
payments of principal and interest, the Group considers the 
contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing 
whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that 
could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows 
such that it would not meet this condition. In making this 
assessment, the Group considers:

• contingent events that would change the amount or timing of 
cash flows;

• prepayment and extension features; and
• terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows from specified 

assets (e.g. non-recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments 
of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment amount 
substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and 
interest on the principal amount outstanding, which may include 
reasonable additional compensation for early termination of 
the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a 
discount or premium to its contractual par amount, a feature that 
permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially 
represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but 
unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable 
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additional compensation for early termination) is treated as 
consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment 
feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

Financial assets - Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

• Financial assets at amortised cost - These assets are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment 
losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses 
and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or 
loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

• Financial assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) 
-These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net 
gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income, 
are recognised in profit or loss. The Group does not hold such 
assets.

• Debt instruments at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive 
Income (FVOCI) - These assets are subsequently measured 
at fair value. Interest income calculated using the effective 
interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and 
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains 
and losses are recognised in OCI. On derecognition, gains and 
losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss. 

• Equity investments at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive 
Income (FVOCI) - These assets are subsequently measured 
at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in profit or 
loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part 
of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are 
recognised in OCI and are never reclassified to profit or loss.

L. Impairment

Non-derivative financial assets 

The Group recognises loss allowances for Expected Credit 
Losses (ECLs) on financial assets measured at amortised cost.

Loss allowances for accounts and other receivables and contract 
assets are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when:

• customer is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group 
in full, without recourse by the Group to actions such as 
realising security (if any is held); or

• the financial asset is more than 365 days past due.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default 
events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default 
events that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting 
date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is 
less than 12 months).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the 
maximum contractual period over which the Group is exposed to 
credit risk.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e. 
the present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life 
of the financial instrument.  The Group uses a provision matrix 
to calculate Expected Credit Loss (ECLs) for its financial and 
contract assets (excluding equity investments). The provision 
rates for accounts receivable and contract assets are based on 
days past due for the Group’s various customer segments that 
have similar loss pattern. The provision matrix is initially based 
on the Group’s historical observed default rates. The Group will 
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience 
with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast 
economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are expected 
to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased 
number of defaults, the historical default rates are adjusted. 
At each reporting date, the historical observed default rates 
are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are 
analysed.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial 
assets carried at amortised cost are credit-impaired. A financial 
asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a 
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the 
financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the 
following observable data:

• significant financial difficulty of the customer or issuer; or
• the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms 

that the Group would not consider otherwise; or
• it is probable that the customer will enter bankruptcy or other 

financial reorganization; or
• the disappearance of an active market for a security because 

of financial difficulties.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial 
position

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost 
are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off 
when the Group has no reasonable expectations of recovering 
a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Group 
individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing 
and amount of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable 
expectation of recovery. The Group expects no significant 
recovery from the amount written off. However, financial assets 
that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities 
in order to comply with the Group’s procedures for recovery of 
amounts due.
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Non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying 
amounts of its non-financial assets (other than inventories) to 
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any 
such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is 
estimated. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the 
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from 
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows 
of other assets or CGUs. Goodwill arising from a business 
combination is allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs that are 
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of 
its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in 
use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to 
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and 
the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an 
asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. They are 
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill 
allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts 
of the other assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For 
other assets, an impairment loss is reversed only to the extent 
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation 
or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

M. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present 
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, 
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount 
of the obligation.

Onerous contracts 

A provision for onerous contracts is measured at the present 
value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating 
the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with 
the contract. Before a provision is established, the Group 
recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with 
that contract. 

N. Leases 

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a 
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, 
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use 
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of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for 
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right 
to control the use of an identified asset, the Group
assesses whether:

• the contract involves the use of an identified asset – this 
may be specified explicitly or implicitly and should be 
physically distinct or represent substantially all the 
capacity of a physically distinct asset. If the supplier has 
a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not 
identified;

• the Group has the right to obtain substantially all the 
economic benefits from use of the asset throughout the 
period of use; and

• the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset. The 
Group has this right when it has the decision-making 
rights that are most relevant to changing how and for 
what purpose the asset is used. In rare cases where the 
decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used 
is predetermined, the Group has the right to direct the use 
of the asset if either:

 › the Group has the right to operate the asset; or

 › the Group designed the asset in a way that 
predetermines how and for what purpose it 
will be used.

Group as a lessee

At commencement or on modification of a contract that 
contains a lease component, the Group allocated the 
consideration in the contract to each lease component 
on the basis of its relative standalone prices. The Group 
recognises a right of use asset and a lease liability at the 
lease commencement date. The right of use asset is initially 
measured at cost which comprises the initial amount of lease 
liability adjusted for any lease payment made at or before the 
commencement date, plus any initial incurred and an estimate 
of the costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset 
or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is 
located, less any lease incentive received.

The right of use asset is subsequently depreciated using the 
straight-line method from the commencement date to the 
end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership 
of the underlying asset to the Group by the end of the lease 
term or the cost of the right of use reflects that the Group 
will exercise a purchase option. In that case, the right of use 
will be depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset 
which is determined on the same basis as that of property and 
equipment. In addition, the right of use asset is periodically 
reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain 
remeasurement of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of 
the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement 
date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease 
or, if that rate cannot readily be determined, the Group ‘s 
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incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Group uses its 
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. The Group 
determines it’s incremental borrowing rate by obtaining 
interest rates from various financing sources and makes 
certain adjustments to reflect the terms of the lease and the 
asset leased. 

Lease payments included in the measurement of lease liability 
comprise the following:

• fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments:
• variable lease payments that depend on an index or a 

rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the 
commencement date;

• amounts expected to be payable under a residual value 
guarantee; and

• the exercise price under a purchase option that the Group 
is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an 
optional renewal period if the Group is reasonably certain 
to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early 
termination of a lease unless the Group is reasonably 
certain not to  terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is a 
change in future lease payments arising from a change in 
an index or rate, if there is a change in the Group’s estimate 
of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value 
guarantee, if the Group changes its assessment of whether it 
will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or if 
there is revised in-substance fixed lease payment.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a 
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount 
of the right of use asset or is recorded in profit or loss if the 
carrying amount of right of use asset has been reduced to zero.

Short term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group has elected not to recognise right of use assets or 
lease liabilities for leases of low-value assets and short-term 
leases. The Group recognises the lease payments associated 
with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over 
the lease term.

COVID-19-related rent concessions

The Group has applied COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions 
– Amendment to IFRS 16. The Group applies the practical 
expedient allowing it not to assess whether eligible rent 
concessions that are a direct consequence of the COVID-19 
pandemic are lease modifications. The Group applies the 
practical expedient consistently to contracts with similar 
characteristics and in similar circumstances. For rent 
concessions in leases to which the Group chooses not to apply 
the practical expedient, or that do not qualify for the practical 
expedient, the Group assesses whether there is a lease 
modification.

Group as a lessor

At inception or on modification of a contract that contains a 
lease component, the Group allocates the consideration in 
the contract to each lease component on the basis of their 
relative standalone prices. When the Group acts as a lessor, it 
determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance 
lease or operating lease.

To classify each lease, the Group makes an overall 
assessment of whether the lease transfers substantially 
all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the 
underlying asset. If this is the case, then the lease is a 
finance lease; if not, then is an operating lease. As part of this 
assessment, the Group considers certain indicators such as 
whether the lease is for the major part of the economic life of 
the asset.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, 
the Group applies IFRS 15 to allocate the consideration in 
the contract. 

The Group applies the derecognition and impairment 
requirements in IFRS 9 to the net investment in the lease. The 
Group further regularly reviews estimated unguaranteed residual 
values used in calculating the gross investment in the lease.

The Group recognises lease payments received under 
operating leases as income on a straight-line basis over the
 lease term. 

6. CRITICAL JUDGMENTS AND 
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION  
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which 
are described in note 5, management is required to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily 
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated 
assumptions are based on historical experience and other 
factors that are relevant. Actual results may differ from 
these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions 
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is 
revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period 
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both 
current and future periods.

Critical judgments and key sources of estimation in applying 
accounting policies

The following are the critical judgments and key sources of 
estimation, that management has made in the process of 
applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have the 
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the 
consolidated financial statements:
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(a) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group is required to undertake an annual test for 
impairment of indefinite lived assets and, for finite lived 
assets, to test for impairment if events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an 
asset may not be recoverable. Impairment testing is an area 
involving management judgment, requiring assessment as 
to whether the carrying value of assets can be supported 
by the net present value of future cash flows derived from 
such assets using cash flow projections which have been 
discounted at an appropriate rate. In calculating the net 
present value of the future cash flows, certain assumptions 
are required to be made in respect of highly uncertain matters, 
including management’s expectations of:

• growth in earnings before financing income/costs, tax, 
depreciation and amortisation, calculated as adjusted 
operating profit before depreciation and amortisation;

• timing and quantum of future capital expenditure;
• long term growth rates range during discrete period and 

terminal period; and
• the selection of discount rates to reflect the risks involved.

The recoverable amount is most sensitive to the discount 
rate used for the discounted cash flow model as well as the 
expected future cash inflows and the growth rate used for 
extrapolation purposes. 

In the case of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite 
lives, at a minimum, such assets are subject to an annual 
impairment test and more frequently whenever there is an 
indication that such asset may be impaired. This requires an 
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to 
which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use 
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future 
cash flows from the cash-generating unit and to choose a 
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value 
of those.

(b) Provision for expected credit losses of financial  and contract 
assets excluding equity investments

The “expected credit loss” (ECL) impairment model requires 
forward looking information, which is based on assumptions 
for the future movement of different economic drivers and 
how these drivers will affect each other. It also requires 
management to assign probability of default to various 
categories of financial assets measured at amortised cost 
(loans receivable, trade and other receivables, receivables 
from related parties, and cash at bank). Probability of default 
constitutes a key input in measuring an ECL and entails 
considerable judgement; it is an estimate of the likelihood 
of default over a given time horizon, the calculation of which 
includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of 
future conditions. The magnitude of the loss in case there is a 
default is also an estimate of the loss arising on default; it is 
based on the difference between the contractual cash flows 
due and those that the Group would expect to receive. 

(c) Impairment of inventories

Inventories are held at the lower of cost and net realisable 
value. When inventories become old or obsolete, an estimate 
is made of their net realisable value. For individually 
significant amounts, this estimation is performed on an 
individual basis. Inventories which are not individually 
significant, but which are old or obsolete, are assessed 
collectively and a provision applied according to the inventory 
type and the degree of ageing or obsolescence, based on 
historical selling prices.

(d) Determination of right of use asset and lease liability

Extension and termination options are included in several 
leases across various classes of right-of-use asset across 
the Group. These terms are used to maximise operational 
flexibility in terms of managing contracts. In cases where 
lease contracts have indefinite term or are subject to auto 
renewal, lease term is determined considering the business 
case and reasonably certain renewal of lease. The present 
value of the lease payments is determined using the discount 
rate representing the incremental borrowing rate that a lessee 
would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a 
similar security, the fund necessary to obtain an asset of a 
similar value to the right-to-use asset in a similar economic 
environment. Estimates and judgements are involved in 
determination of incremental borrowing rate. 

The Group accounts and identifies assets as a portfolio 
based on its similar characteristics and has applied the 
requirements of IFRS 16 on estimates and assumptions that 
reflect the size and composition of that portfolio.

(e) Fair value of financial assets - equity investments

Where the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities 
recorded in the statement of financial position cannot be 
derived from active markets, they are determined using 
valuation techniques including the discounted cash flows 
model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable 
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a 
degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. The 
judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity 
risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about 
these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial 
instruments.

(f) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment, investment 
property and intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful 
lives of its property, plant and equipment, investment 
property and intangible assets for calculating depreciation / 
amortisation. This estimate is determined after considering 
the expected usage of the asset, physical wear and tear, 
technical or commercial obsolescence.
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(g) Provision and contingent liabilities

The Group’s management determines provision on best 
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present 
obligation as a result of the past event at the reporting date.

The Group’s management measures contingent liabilities as 
a possible obligation depending on whether some uncertain 
future event occurs or a present obligation, but payment is not 
probable, or the amount cannot be measured reliably.

(h) Business combinations

The recognition of business combinations requires the excess 
of the purchase price of acquisitions over the net book value of 
assets acquired to be allocated to the assets and liabilities of 
the acquired entity.

The Group makes judgments and estimates in relation to the 
fair value allocation of the purchase price. If any unallocated 
portion is positive it is recognised as goodwill and if negative, 
it is recognised in the consolidated statement of income. 
The Group also makes significant judgments in relation to 
determination of smallest CGUs and allocation of the residual 
goodwill to each CGU.

(i) Revenue from contract with customers

The Group makes judgments in determining the performance 
obligations that exist in contract with the customers. 
Judgments are also applied in determining timing of transfer 
of control at a point in time or over time.

Where the standalone selling price is applicable, management 
uses estimates to determine it based on the cost-plus mark-
up depending on the nature of goods and services to be 
provided to different customers. 

7. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

Bank balances and cash (1) 1,039,061 1,150,315

Less: Fixed and margin deposits under lien (refer note 17(b)) (1,135) (2,598)

1,037,926 1,147,717

Less: Bank overdrafts (313,096) (280,613)

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows 724,830 867,104

(1) The bank balances and cash amounting to QR 962.9 million (2020: QR 1,087.2 million) arises from the Group’s foreign 
subsidiaries.
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(j) Classification of associates, joint ventures and subsidiaries

The appropriate classification of certain investments as 
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures requires significant 
analysis and management judgment as to whether the 
Group exercises control, significant influence or joint control 
over these investments. This may involve consideration of a 
number of factors, including ownership and voting rights, the 
extent of Board representation, contractual arrangements and 
indicators of de fact control.

Changes to these indicators and management’s assessment of 
the power to control or influence may have a material impact 
on the classification of such investments and the Group’s 
consolidated financial position, revenue and results.

(k) Going concern

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared 
on a going concern basis notwithstanding the fact that the 
Group’s total current liabilities exceeded total current assets 
by QR 1,098.7 million (2020: QR 350.4 million) as of reporting 
date. The Group’s ability to continue as a going concern is 
dependent upon its ability to generate sufficient cash flows 
from its future operations and availability of sufficient bank 
facilities. The Group’s management has made an assessment 
of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and is 
satisfied that the Group has the resources to continue in 
business for the foreseeable future. Also, the management 
has forecasted to meet all key covenants exist on all its 
banking facilities and have also forecasted to timely pay or 
refinance instalments falling due on some of its banking 
facilities during the twelve months from the reporting date.  
Furthermore, management is not aware of any material 
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the 
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the 
consolidated financial statements continue to be prepared on 
a going concern basis.
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(2) The Group carries out non-recourse factor of part of its receivables. Based on the negotiated contract, the factoring company 
takes care of the recovery of the assigned receivables. As at 31 December 2021, one of the foreign subsidiaries of the Group, 
has, via factoring contracts, financing lines based on the amount of trade receivables sold. These financing lines, capped at 
147.9 million euros, were fully used as of 31 December 2021 (2020: 150.0 million euros). Consequently, on the basis of the 
factoring contracts subscribed, the Group benefited from an amount of QR 609.0 million (2020: QR 664.5 million) recognised 
in the consolidated statement of financial position under “Cash and cash equivalents”.

8. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND PREPAYMENTS

2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

(Restated)*

Trade accounts receivable 2,019,060 1,963,876

Receivables transferred to factoring companies* 432,064 389,926

Advances to suppliers 59,416 68,815

Notes receivable 224,302 195,897

Prepayments 136,666          137,838

Deposits 19,726 19,298

Contract assets 2,148,318 1,487,582

Tax and social security receivables 375,175 464,691

Others 144,257 228,106

5,558,984 4,956,029

Less: Allowance for impairment of accounts and other receivables 
and contract assets (229,836) (235,838)

5,329,148 4,720,191

*One of the Group’s foreign subsidiaries, Inetum S.A., factors part of its accounts receivable. Depending on the type of contract, 
the factoring company may be responsible for collecting the accounts receivable. Inetum and its subsidiaries have drawing 
rights limited to a certain fraction of the receivables assigned.

Presented in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows:

2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

(Restated)*

Current 4,954,683 4,415,893

Non-current 374,465 304,298

5,329,148 4,720,191

*Refer note 35

7. CASH AND EQUIVALENT (CONTINUED)

88 Mannai Corporation Q.P.S.C



Mannai Corporation Q.P.S.C.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2021

The movement in allowance for impairment of accounts and other receivables and contract assets is as follows:

2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

At 1 January 235,838 112,305

Acquired through business combination 147 53,017

Provision during the year 7,265 70,921

Written off during the year (1,486) (219)

Exchange difference on translation of foreign currency (11,928) (186)

At 31 December 229,836 235,838

9. INVENTORIES

2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

(Restated)*

Gold and other jewellery (i) 943,498 981,580

Work-in-progress 133,680 158,462

Merchandises, spares and tools 395,334 381,128

Vehicles and heavy equipment 127,335 264,902

Industrial supplies  10,742 15,852

Others 4,868 5,041

1,615,457 1,806,965

Less: Provision for obsolete and slow-moving inventories (146,347)    (137,399)

1,469,110 1,669,566

(i) The Group in the normal course of business borrows gold on an unfixed basis which it converts into gold jewellery or trades 
as bullion. This jewellery and bullion are further used as stock in trade and is sold to various customers on a fixed or 
unfixed basis. The Group reduces the exposure to gold price by borrowing gold on an unfixed basis. These are then sold as 
manufactured jewellery or bullion, at which point, the price will be fixed at the spot rate on the sale date. The Group provides 
gold on an unfixed basis to various consignment ventures, debtors, associates, and joint ventures without any margin and to 
certain parties against cash margin.
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Movements in the provision for obsolete and slow-moving inventories are as follows:

2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

At 1 January 137,399 150,476

Acquired through business combination          285 3,838

Provision during the year   12,854 11,656

Write back during the year - (1,465)

Write off during the year         (3,601) (26,378)

Reclassification - (1,215)

Exchange difference on translation of foreign currency (590)                         487

At 31 December 146,347 137,399

10. FINANCIAL ASSETS – EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (a) 8,366 8,392

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (b) 3,444 6,677

11,810 15,069

(a) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

At 1 January 8,392 8,391

Exchange difference on translation of foreign currency (26) 1

At 31 December 8,366 8,392

(b) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

At 1 January 6,677 945

(Disposals) / additions (2,847) 5,641

Exchange difference on translation of foreign currency (361) 91

Impairment (25) -

At 31 December 3,444 6,677
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11. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES

The Group has investments in the following joint venture companies:

Name Country of incorporation Ownership interest

2021 2020

Engie Cofely Mannai Facility Management W.L.L. (i) Qatar 51% 51%

Saint-Gobain Pam and Mannai L.L.C. (ii) Qatar 51% 51%

Roberto Coin Middle East L.L.C. (iii) UAE 51% 51%

Deepu Jewellery DMCC* UAE 51% 51%

Principal activities of the Group’s joint ventures are as follows:

(i) Engie Cofely Mannai Facility Management W.L.L. (previously known as Cofely Besix Mannai Facility Management W.L.L.) is 
engaged in facilities and asset management business.

(ii) Saint-Gobain Pam and Mannai L.L.C. is engaged in distribution of ductile iron pipes, fittings and valves.

(iii) Roberto Coin Middle East L.L.C. is engaged in trading in gold and gold jewellery, diamond jewellery, pearls, watches, silver 
and precious stones

*  Dormant entity and under liquidation

Although the Group holds 51% equity in majority of the above entities, decisions need unanimous consent of both parties 
and as such the investments are classified as joint ventures.  Reconciliation of carrying amounts during the current year and 
comparative year are as follows:

2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

At 1 January 19,956 20,275

Share of results from joint ventures 7,228 (319)

Exchange difference on translation of foreign currency (34) -

At 31 December 27,150 19,956
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12. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

The Group holds investments in the following associate companies:

Name Country of incorporation Ownership interest

2021 2020

LTC International Qatar L.L.C. Qatar 50% 50%

Al Mana Jewellery Co. - Damas W.L.L. Qatar 49% 49%

Axiom Limited (a) UAE 35% 35%

Daiso (Japan) Value Stores L.L.C. UAE 51% 51%

TCO Damas Associates L.L.C. UAE 51% 51%

LTC International General Trading Co. Kuwait 35% 35%

Metamorph Real Estate W.L.L.* Kuwait 30% 30%

Daiso Trading W.L.L. Bahrain 35% 35%

Al Baraka Jewellery W.L.L. Bahrain - 33.33%

Retail World Trading Co. LLC KSA 50% 50%

Creative Brands Enterprise SPC Oman 23.75% -

*  Dormant entity and under liquidation

The reconciliations of carrying amount during the current and comparative year are as follows:

2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

At 1 January 970,506 992,996

Addition during the year 681 13,602

Dividends received (33,753) (44,825)

Share of results from associate companies 19,318 8,712

Impairment loss (3,244) -

Exchange difference on translation of foreign currency (473) 21

At 31 December 953,035 970,506

(a) Axiom Limited

Axiom Limited is engaged in import, retail and wholesale of various brands of mobile phones and related accessories and 
provision of related services.

The Group holds 35% equity in Axiom Limited which is engaged in import, retail and wholesale of various brands of mobile 
phones and related accessories and provision of related services, mainly in UAE and KSA markets. 
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Below is Axiom Limited’s summarised financial information:

2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

Current assets 944,873 935,103

Non-current assets  302,161 307,983

Current liabilities  (1,078,310) (1,023,983)

Non-current liabilities  (80,566) (80,797)

Net assets  88,158 138,306

Proportion of Company’s interest in associate’s net assets 30,855 48,407

Revenue 3,861,085 4,424,344

Loss for the year (49,585) (52,501)

Total comprehensive income for the year (49,585) (52,501)

The Group’s share of loss (17,355) (18,375)

The Group’s share of total comprehensive income (17,355) (18,375)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying amount of the interest in Axiom Limited recognised 
in the consolidated financial statements:

2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

Net assets of the associate 88,158 138,306

Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest 35% 35%

Share of net assets before goodwill 30,855 48,407

Goodwill 741,496 741,496

Less: impairment (171,762) (171,762)

Goodwill, net of impairmentV 569,734 569,734

Other intangible assets identified 170,000 170,000

Other adjustments* 37,357 37,161

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest 807,946 825,302

*Other adjustmnts include purchase price allocation adjustment at acquisition date and minor exchange difference.

The carrying value of Axiom Limited of QR 807,946 as at 31 December 2021 (2020: QR 825,302) is tested for impairment. The 
recoverable amount of this associate is determined based on a value in use calculation which uses discounted cash flow 
projections based on business plan and various scenarios of forecasts approved by the management covering a five-year period 
after which a terminal growth rate (TGR) into perpetuity of 3% from 2026 (2020: 1.5% from 2025) is considered. The present value 
of future cashflows are discounted using a weighted average cost of capital (WACC) of 12% per annum (2020: 9.5% per annum).
 
The associate’s management has prepared Axiom’s business plan which is approved by the Group’s Board of Directors. The 
average budgeted growth rate is assumed to be 17.4% (2020: 5.5%) over the forecast period. The growth rate is based on Board 
of Directors’ strategy and is considered achievable by management considering the nature of the industry, Axiom’s positioning 
and the general growth in the economic activity witnessed in the countries where it operates.
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Any change in key assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based may cause the aggregate carrying amount to exceed 
the aggregate recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit.

(b) Other associates

Although, the Group holds 50% or more equity in Daiso (Japan) Value Stores L.L.C., LTC International Qatar L.L.C. and TCO 
Damas Associates L.L.C., the Group does not have the power to govern the financial and operating activities of these investees 
and thus, does not have control or joint control in these entities. All other associates are engaged in trading of gold and gold 
jewellery, diamond jewellery, pearls, watches, silver and precious stones.

13. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill Trade name Distribution 
rights

Other 
intangible 

assets

Total

QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000

Cost

At 1 January 2020, as previously 
reported 3,382,312 670,000 24,339 1,226,180 5,302,831

Arising from business 
combination (provisional) 1,053,883 - - 211,150 1,265,033

Restatement of goodwill (refer 
(a) and note 35) 240,207 - - - 240,207

Identification of other intangible 
assets (refer (a) and note 35) (137,366) - - 137,366 -

Additions - - - 125,703 125,703

Adjustments 24,797 - - (1,357) 23,440

Disposal - - - (2,143) (2,143)

Exchange difference on 
translation of foreign currency 310,241 - - 125,977 436,218

At 31 December 2020 (restated) 4,874,074 670,000 24,339 1,822,876 7,391,289

Arising from business 
combination (provisional) (a.1) 81,742 - - 39,402 121,144

Additions - - - 132,055 132,055

Adjustments - - - 159,994 159,994

Disposal - - - (118,537) (118,537)

Exchange difference on 
translation of foreign currency (250,190) - (127,150) (377,340)

At 31 December 2021 4,705,626 670,000 24,339 1,908,640 7,308,605

Mannai Corporation Q.P.S.C.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2021

12. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE COMPANIES (CONTINUED)

94 Mannai Corporation Q.P.S.C



Goodwill Trade name Distribution 
rights

Other 
intangible 

assets

Total

QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000

Impairment/ amortisation

At 1 January 2020, as previously 
reported 91,482 - 24,339 589,135 704,956

Restatement* 78,400 192,172 - - 270,572

At 1 January 2020 (restated) 169,882 192,172 24,339 589,135 975,528

Arising from business 
combination – net - - - 178,326 178,326

Charge for the year (restated) - - - 125,593 125,593

Relating to disposal - - - (834) (834)

Exchange difference on 
translation of foreign currency 9,319 - - 70,371 79,690

At 31 December 2020, (restated)* 179,201 192,172 24,339 962,591 1,358,303

Arising from business 
combination - - - 21,185 21,185

Charge for the year - - - 151,751 151,751

Adjustment - - - 159,994  159,994 

Relating to disposal - - - (114,116)  (114,116)

Exchange difference on 
translation of foreign currency (6,141) - - (81,690)  (87,831)

At 31 December 2021 173,060 192,172 24,339 1,099,715 1,489,286

Net carrying amounts

At 31 December 2021 4,532,566 477,828 - 808,925 5,819,319

At 31 December 2020 (restated)* 4,694,873 477,828 - 860,285 6,032,986

At 01 January 2020 (restated)* 3,212,430 477,828 - 637,045 4,327,303

*Refer note 35

a) Acquisition of subsidiaries

(1) During the year, the Group has acquired three entities namely Projixi, Ilex and HLI, through one of its wholly owned 
subsidiaries, Inetum S.A. Upon this acquisition, a provisional goodwill of QR 81.7 million was recognised at Group level. This 
provisional goodwill is subject to finalisation of fair values in accordance with IFRS 3. 

(2) As per the requirements of IFRS 3, management has finalised the provisional fair values pertaining to Inetum Espana 
(formerly IECISA) acquired in 2020. This has resulted in identification of additional net liabilities of QR 240.2 million 
which have been adjusted against goodwill as remeasurement of provisional amounts. Further, the completion of fair 
valuation exercise has led to identification of other intangibles amounting to QR 137.4 million which has been transferred 
from remeasured goodwill. These other intangibles have finite useful lives and consequently the consolidated financial 
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 are restated to record the amortisation of these other intangible assets 
(refer note 35).
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Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed

The following table summarises the finalised amounts of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition.

Finalised fair values

QR ’000

Fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired 550,117

Fair value of the net identifiable liabilities assumed (762,396)

Fair value of total net identifiable liabilities acquired (212,279)

Finalised goodwill on acquisition

Finalised goodwill arising from the acquisition has been recognised as follows.

Finalised goodwill

QR ’000

Total consideration transferred 1,035,540

Non-controlling interest -

Sub-total 1,035,540

Add: Contingent consideration 59,400

Add: Finalised fair value of net identifiable liabilities 212,279

Currency translation impact (13,129)

Finalised goodwill 1,294,090

Residual goodwill being the excess of the cost of the business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the 
identifiable assets and liabilities. It is recognised under "Goodwill" and allocated to each cash-generating unit likely to benefit 
from the business combination. Subsequently, this goodwill is valued at cost less any impairment losses in accordance with the 
method described in the paragraph "Impairment testing of goodwill".
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Impairment testing of goodwill

Cash generating units Carrying value of goodwill
2021

Carrying value of goodwill
2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

(Restated)*

Inetum France 1,519,919 1,514,056

Inetum Spain 1,392,635 1,482,331

Inetum Portugal 166,840 176,264

Inetum Benelux 595,934 640,258

Inetum Switzerland 29,536 30,959

Inetum East of Europe 134,457 142,947

Inetum Latin America 163,280 172,845

Inetum Africa 78,023 83,271

Damas UAE (refer (c)) 451,942 451,942

4,532,566 4,694,873

The Group has 11 CGUs (2020: 11 CGUs), of which 2 CGUs are in France and 2 CGUs are in Spain. 

France bears 34% (2020: 32%) of the Group’s goodwill. This amounted to QR 1,519.9 million as at 31 December 2021 and 
includes QR 1,234.2 million for the "Service Business" CGU and QR 285.7 million for the "Software Business" CGU.

Key assumptions used in value in use calculations (excluding Inetum S.A. and its related CGUs)

The principal assumptions used in the projections relate to revenue, margins, WACC, terminal growth rates and working 
capital. The assumptions are constructed based upon historic experience and management’s best estimate of future trends and 
performance and take into account anticipated efficiency improvements over the forecasted period.

Discount rates

Discount rates reflect management’s estimate of the risks specific to each unit. Discount rates are based on a weighted average 
cost of capital for each CGU.

Growth rate estimates

For the periods beyond that covered by the projections, long-term growth rates are based on management’s best estimates of 
the growth rates. Business projections are based on operating budgets set by management for the 2021 financial year.
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Cash generating units

(Expressed in percentage)

Discount rate Terminal value growth rate

2021 2020 2021 2020

Inetum France* - 9.5% - 2.0%

Inetum Spain* - 10.1% - 2.0%

Inetum Portugal* - 10.2% - 2.0%

Inetum Benelux* - 9.6% - 2.0%

Inetum Switzerland* - 9.5% - 2.0%

Inetum East of Europe* - 10.0% - 2.0%

Inetum Latin America* - 12.0% - 2.0%

Inetum Africa* - 12.2% - 2.0%

Damas UAE (refer (c)) 8.5% - 2.5% -

*Impairment testing for Inetum S.A. and its related CGUS.

Management has used market approach to determine the recoverable amount of its CGUs whose carrying amount is to be 
principally recovered through sale rather than continuing use. Owing to the Board of Director’s approval (refer note 36), over 
entering into exclusive negotiations to dispose of the Group’s entire shareholding in Inetum S.A, management is able to reliably 
determine the recoverable amount of the related CGUs using the fair value less costs of disposal method, which is higher than 
the carrying amount of the related CGUs. Accordingly, in light of requirements of IAS 36 ‘Impairment of assets’, management 
has concluded that no impairment exists.

Sensitivity testing and goodwill impairment losses for each CGUs (excluding Inetum S.A. and its related 
CGUs) 

Management has identified that a reasonably possible change in two key assumptions could cause the carrying amount to 
exceed the recoverable amount. The following table shows the percentage by which these two assumptions would need to 
change individually for the carrying amount to exceed the estimated recoverable amount.

Assumptions Change required 
for carrying 

amount to exceed 
recoverable 

amount

QR ’000

Discount rate 50 basis points

Terminal growth rate 50 basis points
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b) Allocation of trade name to cash generating units for impairment

Trade name was valued using the Relief from Royalty Method (RRM), which assumes that the intangible asset has a fair value 
based on royalty income attributable to it. Royalty income would represent the cost savings by Group where it is not required 
to pay royalties to a third party for the license to use the intangible asset. The recoverable amount of this asset is determined 
based on a value in use calculation which uses royalty projections based on financial budgets approved by the management 
covering a five-year period and terminal value based on Gordon Growth Model and discounted to present value. Any change in 
key assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based may cause the aggregate carrying amount of trade name to exceed 
the aggregate recoverable amount of the asset. The key assumptions used in value in use for the trade name are as follows:

(i) Royalty rate – management applied a royalty rate of 2.5% (2020: 2.5%). 

(i) Budgeted growth rate - the budgeted sales growth rate is assumed to be CAGR of 9% (2020: 9%) over the forecast period. 
The growth rate is considered appropriate by management considering the nature of the industry and the general growth in the 
economic activity witnessed in the countries where these entities operate.

(iii) Terminal value has been derived by reference to the Gordon Growth Model assuming a steady level of operations beyond the 
discrete period. Terminal period cash flows are assumed to grow at a perpetual growth rate of 2.5% (2020: 2.5%) which is based 
on UAE’s long term CPI and GDP growth rates. 

(iv) Discount rate of 9.5% (2020:9.5%) per annum based on CAPM, inclusive of 1% (2020: 1%) premium to cover the inherent risk.

A change in either discount rate or royalty rate by 25 basis points, would cause the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable 
amount of the trade name.

c) Recognition of impairment loss

In connection with the pending impairment testing exercise pertaining to the year 2019 and 2020, for Damas UAE (CGU), the 
carrying amount of QR 1,200.3 million (goodwill of QR 530.3 million and Trade name of QR 670.0 million), was determined to 
be higher than its recoverable amount, hence, accordingly the annual consolidated financial statements as of and for the year 
ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020 were restated to this effect. The recoverable amount of the CGU based on 
value-in-use calculation was subjected to sensitivities for certain key assumptions due to the growth forecasts and instability in 
the economic environment. As part of the impairment exercise, the economic situation and risk profile of the geography in which 
the CGU operates were reflected in growth assumptions. A change in certain key assumptions such as forecasted sales, EBITDA 
margins, terminal growth rate etc. over the prior years caused the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable amount. Hence, 
an impairment loss of QR 270.6 million was recorded against goodwill and other intangible assets (refer note 35).
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Land and 
buildings

Plant and 
machinery 

Furniture and 
equipment

Motor 
vehicles

Assets 
on hire

Capital work-in-
progress

Total

QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000
Cost
At 1 January 2021  854,111 307,595 763,072  48,021 66,552  16,539 2,055,890
Acquired through business combination 20 61 5,667 - - - 5,748
Additions 7,780 29,642 59,469 10,495 14,298 22,616 144,300
Disposals/other adjustments (4,837) (10,368) (16,756) (9,582) (14,977) - (56,520)
Write-offs - (507) (7,873) - - - (8,380)
Reclassifications 3,071 4,303 21,368 - - (28,742) -
Exchange difference on translation of foreign currency (10,167) (10,315) (34,860) (375) 1 270 (55,446)
At 31 December 2021 849,978 320,411 790,087 48,559 65,874 10,683 2,085,592

Accumulated depreciation 
At 1 January 2021  255,798 246,142 579,499  29,087 27,479  -   1,138,005 
Acquired through business combination 19 25 4,509 - - - 4,553
Depreciation charge for the year 23,740 18,326 66,026 4,606 12,426 - 125,124
Relating to disposals /other adjustments (4,837) (10,316) (14,214) (5,276) (9,119) - (43,762)
Write-offs - (507) (7,713) - - - (8,220)
Internal transfer - 197 (214) 17 - - -
Exchange difference on translation of foreign currency (4,775) (8,704) (28,221) (59) 2 - (41,757)
At 31 December 2021 269,945 245,163 599,672 28,375 30,788 - 1,173,943

Net carrying amount
At 31 December 2021 580,033 75,248 190,415 20,184 35,086 10,683 911,649

Land and 
buildings

Plant and 
machinery 

Furniture and 
equipment

Motor 
vehicles

Assets 
on hire

Capital work-in-
progress

Total

QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000
Cost
At 1 January 2020 758,027 212,057 556,134 49,239 73,372 78,678 1,727,507
Acquired through business combination - 60,851 135,768 - - - 196,619
Additions 21,848 21,857 45,955 8,737 27,189 8,715 134,301 
Disposals/other adjustments (9,191) (3,441) (9,513) (9,912) (33,829) (715) (66,601)
Write-offs -   (158) (30,050) -   -   -   (30,208)
Reclassifications 58,471 -   11,789 180 (180) (70,260) -   
Exchange difference on translation of foreign currency  24,956  16,429  52,989  (223)  -    121  94,272 
At 31 December 2020  854,111 307,595 763,072  48,021 66,552  16,539 2,055,890

Accumulated depreciation 
At 1 January 2020 223,516 167,816 401,084 29,940 32,399 - 854,755
Acquired through business combination - 49,368 114,747 - - -  164,115 
Depreciation charge for the year 22,934 13,807 54,537 4,574 12,396 -   108,248 
Impairment -   3,588 147 -   -   -   3,735
Relating to disposals /other adjustments (9,023) (2,477) (8,780) (5,557) (17,131) -   (42,968)

Write-offs (143) (26,546) -   -   -   (26,689)

Exchange difference on translation of foreign currency  18,371 14,183  44,310 130 (185)  -   76,809
At 31 December 2020  255,798 246,142 579,499  29,087 27,479  -   1,138,005 

Net carrying amount
At 31 December 2020 598,313 61,453 183,573 18,934 39,073 16,539 917,885
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Land and 
buildings

Plant and 
machinery 

Furniture and 
equipment

Motor 
vehicles

Assets 
on hire

Capital work-in-
progress

Total

QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000
Cost
At 1 January 2021  854,111 307,595 763,072  48,021 66,552  16,539 2,055,890
Acquired through business combination 20 61 5,667 - - - 5,748
Additions 7,780 29,642 59,469 10,495 14,298 22,616 144,300
Disposals/other adjustments (4,837) (10,368) (16,756) (9,582) (14,977) - (56,520)
Write-offs - (507) (7,873) - - - (8,380)
Reclassifications 3,071 4,303 21,368 - - (28,742) -
Exchange difference on translation of foreign currency (10,167) (10,315) (34,860) (375) 1 270 (55,446)
At 31 December 2021 849,978 320,411 790,087 48,559 65,874 10,683 2,085,592

Accumulated depreciation 
At 1 January 2021  255,798 246,142 579,499  29,087 27,479  -   1,138,005 
Acquired through business combination 19 25 4,509 - - - 4,553
Depreciation charge for the year 23,740 18,326 66,026 4,606 12,426 - 125,124
Relating to disposals /other adjustments (4,837) (10,316) (14,214) (5,276) (9,119) - (43,762)
Write-offs - (507) (7,713) - - - (8,220)
Internal transfer - 197 (214) 17 - - -
Exchange difference on translation of foreign currency (4,775) (8,704) (28,221) (59) 2 - (41,757)
At 31 December 2021 269,945 245,163 599,672 28,375 30,788 - 1,173,943

Net carrying amount
At 31 December 2021 580,033 75,248 190,415 20,184 35,086 10,683 911,649

Land and 
buildings

Plant and 
machinery 

Furniture and 
equipment

Motor 
vehicles

Assets 
on hire

Capital work-in-
progress

Total

QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000
Cost
At 1 January 2020 758,027 212,057 556,134 49,239 73,372 78,678 1,727,507
Acquired through business combination - 60,851 135,768 - - - 196,619
Additions 21,848 21,857 45,955 8,737 27,189 8,715 134,301 
Disposals/other adjustments (9,191) (3,441) (9,513) (9,912) (33,829) (715) (66,601)
Write-offs -   (158) (30,050) -   -   -   (30,208)
Reclassifications 58,471 -   11,789 180 (180) (70,260) -   
Exchange difference on translation of foreign currency  24,956  16,429  52,989  (223)  -    121  94,272 
At 31 December 2020  854,111 307,595 763,072  48,021 66,552  16,539 2,055,890

Accumulated depreciation 
At 1 January 2020 223,516 167,816 401,084 29,940 32,399 - 854,755
Acquired through business combination - 49,368 114,747 - - -  164,115 
Depreciation charge for the year 22,934 13,807 54,537 4,574 12,396 -   108,248 
Impairment -   3,588 147 -   -   -   3,735
Relating to disposals /other adjustments (9,023) (2,477) (8,780) (5,557) (17,131) -   (42,968)

Write-offs (143) (26,546) -   -   -   (26,689)

Exchange difference on translation of foreign currency  18,371 14,183  44,310 130 (185)  -   76,809
At 31 December 2020  255,798 246,142 579,499  29,087 27,479  -   1,138,005 

Net carrying amount
At 31 December 2020 598,313 61,453 183,573 18,934 39,073 16,539 917,885
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2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

Cost

At 1 January 20,774 22,074

Disposals (refer note (b) below) (18,036) (1,300)

Exchange difference on translation of foreign currency (160) -

At 31 December 2,578 20,774

Accumulated depreciation/impairment

At 1 January 10,834 10,328

Charge for the year 210 1,194

Disposals (refer note (b) below) (9,281) (686)

Exchange difference on translation of foreign currency (78) (2)

At 31 December 1,685 10,834

Carrying amount as at 31 December 893 9,940

a) Valuation

The group’s investment properties are stated at historical cost, less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses. The fair value measurements of the group’s land and buildings as at 31 December 2021 was performed internally using 
the market comparable approach or investment value approach that derives value based on expected rental yields. The valuation 
approach is based on an individual assessment for each property type. Based on this it was concluded that the carrying value 
of investment properties was not significantly different from the fair value. The fair value measurement for all investment 
properties has been categorised as a Level 3 fair value based on the inputs to the valuation technique used.

b) Disposal of investment properties

During the year, the Group has sold investment properties having book values of QR 8.8 million (2020: QR 0.6 million) at a 
consideration of QR 23.6 million (2020: QR 0.9 million). Accordingly, gain on sale of investment properties amounting to QR 14.8 
million (2020: QR 0.3 million) has been recognized, which is included in ‘other income’ in the consolidated statement of income 
(refer note 26).

16. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Accounting treatment of French Business Value Added Tax (CVAE)

The CVAE, which according to the Group’s analysis complies with the definition of an income tax asset as set forth in IAS 12, is 
recorded under income tax.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the CVAE amounts to QR 24 million (2020: QR 46 million).

16.1 Reconciliation of theoretical and actual income tax expense
 
Income tax expense from subsidiaries

2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

(Restated)*

Inetum S.A. (i) 120,850 122,689

Other subsidiaries 3,818 2,235

124,668 124,924
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(i) The reconciliation between the tax expense and the product of the accounting profit multiplied by the applicable tax rate is as follows:

2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

(Restated)*

Profit before corporation tax 418,291 211,005

Tax rate 27.5% 31%

Theoretical tax 115,030 65,412

Adjustments (1) 5,820 61,495

Impact of restatement (refer note 35) - (4,218)

Income tax expense 120,850 122,689

Of which: Current tax 97,557 88,326

Deferred taxes 23,293 34,363

120,850 122,689

(1) Adjustments include impact of tax losses not recognised as deferred tax assets, permanent tax differences, impact of CVAE, 
tax savings from non-taxable income and other tax related adjustments.

16.2 Deferred taxes

At 31 December 2021, the sources of deferred taxes were as follows:

2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

Net deferred tax – French companies (Restated)*

Temporary differences arising from tax declarations 2,001 1,090

Temporary differences arising from consolidation adjustments 18,224 31,194

20,225 32,284

Net deferred tax – other foreign companies

Tax timing differences 25,614 24,951

Tax loss carry-forwards recognised 33,874 62,565

Customer relationships (60,028) (39,475)

Assets developed internally and related taxation 24,359 44,442

Net impact of restatement - (109,104)

Others (11,605) 50,654

12,214 34,033

Net deferred tax – foreign companies 32,439 66,317

Presented in the consolidated statement of financial position as:

Deferred tax assets 56,816       108,948 

Deferred tax liabilities (24,377)           (42,631) 

32,439 66,317
*Refer note 35
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2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

Working capital facilities and others (a) 1,979,805 1,817,113

Term loans (b) 4,528,440 5,056,221

Liabilities to bondholders (c) 776,646 834,553

7,284,891 7,707,887

Presented in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows:

2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

Current 2,742,959 2,001,117

Non-current 4,541,932 5,706,770

7,284,891 7,707,887

Notes:

(a) During the year, the Group obtained short term loans from commercial banks mainly to finance working capital 
requirements. These loans carry interest at commercial rates and have a varying maturity between 6 to 12 months.

(b) This represents term loan facilities obtained from commercial banks. These loans carry interest at commercial rates and are 
to be repaid at quarterly or semi-annual basis. Some of these interest-bearing loans and borrowings are secured by:

 › Fixed deposits amounting to QR 1.1 million (2020: QR 2.6 million) (note 7)
 › Negative pledge on all the assets owned by the Group
 ›  Corporate cross guarantees

(c) On 20 May 2020 and 23 December 2020, one of the foreign subsidiaries of the Group, issued two bond loans with nominal 
values of QR 177.2 million and QR 265.8 million respectively. The interest rates of both the bond loans are 4% until 20 May 
2021 and after that interest rates will be based on leverage ratios with a maximum cap of 3.75%. The maturity of both the 
bond loans is 20 May 2027.

  
(d) In addition to the above loans, one of the Group’s foreign subsidiaries has outstanding gold loans as at 31 December 2021 

received from bullion banks on an unfixed basis aggregating to 2,232 Kgs of gold (2020: 2,642 Kgs). As at 31 December 2020, 
the aggregate bank borrowings including the above unfixed gold loans amount to QR 745.7 million (2020: QR 896.8 million). 
These gold loans are covered by way of stand-by-letters of credit issued in favor of these bullion banks which are presented 
as part of the Group’s contingencies and commitments disclosure in note 31. 

(e) For 2021, the Group’s management has obtained waiver from one of the banks before the reporting date in relation to one of 
the covenant breaches related to current ratio which was temporarily in breach.

18. LEASES

The Group leases several assets which includes office buildings, showrooms, warehouses, properties (for accommodation) 
and vehicles. The average lease term is 2 to 5 years with an option to renew the lease after that date. Lease payments are 
renegotiated on regular basis to reflect market rentals. Some leases provide for additional rent payments that are based on 
changes in local price indices. For certain leases, the Group is restricted from entering into any sub-lease arrangements. The 
lease agreements do not impose any covenants, but leased assets may not be used a security for borrowing purposes.

The office buildings, showrooms, warehouses leases were entered into many years ago as combined leases of land and 
buildings. Previously, these leases were classified as operating leases under IAS 17. 

Mannai Corporation Q.P.S.C.
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The Group leases properties for staff accommodation. Majority of these leases are short-term and/or leases of low-value items. 
The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for these leases. Further, the Group leases 
vehicles and equipment on short-term basis where it does not recognise right of use assets and lease liabilities.
 
Information about leases for which the Group is a lessee is presented below. 

a) Right-of-use assets

2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

At 1 January 623,599 605,241

Amortisation charge for the year (219,734) (232,672)

Additions to right-of-use assets during the year 28,897 61,503

Derecognition to right-of-use assets during the year (1,546) (24,951)

Impact from modifications of leases (i) 105,108 76,652

Net additions due to business combinations 7,276 100,711

Exchange difference on translation of foreign currency (22,788) 37,115

At 31 December 520,812 623,599

b) Lease liabilities

2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

At 1 January 638,218 627,830

Additions during the year 28,897 61,503

Derecognition during the year (1,609) (27,120)

Additions due to business combinations 7,483 99,400

Impact from modification of leases (i) 97,691 74,738

Lease concessions related to Covid-19 (ii) (877) (11,917)

Interest expense 19,010 20,801

Payment of lease liabilities (215,466) (238,785)

Exchange difference on translation of foreign currency (28,901) 31,768

544,446 638,218

Presented in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows:

2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

Current  191,515       192,929 

Non-current 352,931       445,289 

544,446 638,218
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 b) Lease liabilities (Continued)

Note (i):

The Group and the respective lessors, in case of certain leases, have agreed to amend the lease considerations while the 
other terms being unchanged. At the effective date of the modification, the Group remeasured the lease liability based on the 
remaining lease term, revised lease rates, and the Group incremental borrowing rate. On the respective modification dates, 
the Group has recognised the difference between the carrying amount of the modified lease liability and the lease liability 
immediately before the modification as an adjustment to the right-of-use assets.

Note (ii):

As a consequence of the COVID -19 pandemic, the Group received lease concessions from certain landlords. There are no other 
changes to the terms and conditions of the lease agreements. The Group decided to apply practical expedient as per IFRS 16 
and elected not to assess whether a COVID-19 related lease concession from the landlord is a lease modification. Accordingly, 
the forgiven lease payments amounting to QR 0.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: QR 11.9 million), were 
recognised as a negative variable lease expense in the profit or loss.

c) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

Interest on lease liabilities 19,010 20,801

Amortisation of right of use assets 219,734 232,672

238,744 253,473

19. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUALS

2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

(Restated)*

Trade accounts payable 1,859,342 1,708,530

Accrued expenses and others 1,826,826 1,344,748

Tax and social security payable 1,387,103 1,524,178

Advances from customers 352,740 583,811

Derivative financial liability - 7,521

Dividend payable 3,965 4,181

5,429,976 5,172,969

Presented in the consolidated financial statements as:

Current portion 5,343,281    5,148,779 

Non-current portion 86,695         24,190 

5,429,976 5,172,969
*Refer Note 35

Mannai Corporation Q.P.S.C.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2021

18. LEASES (CONTINUED)

106 Mannai Corporation Q.P.S.C



Mannai Corporation Q.P.S.C.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2021

20. EMPLOYEES’ END OF SERVICE BENEFITS

2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

Employees’ end of service benefits (a) 133,147 126,961

Retirement benefit plans (b) 286,881 302,591

At 31 December 420,028 429,552

a) Employees’ end of service benefits 

Movement in the provision recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position are as follows:

2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

At 1 January 126,961 129,670

Provided during the year 20,231 21,606

End of service benefits paid (13,760) (24,292)

Exchange difference on translation of foreign currency (285) (23)

At 31 December 133,147 126,961

b) Retirement benefit plans
 
The total value of the Group’s total post-employment indemnities payable in France changed as follows:

2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

Provision for retirement indemnities at 1 January 302,591 265,167

Additions due to business combinations 1,843 -

Cost of services rendered during the year 24,068 23,755

Amount paid for severance / retirement in the year  (25,683) (16,148)

Changes in actuarial differences (1,870) 2,944

Exchange difference on translation of foreign currency  (14,068) 26,873

286,881 302,591

The legal and conventional indemnities are provisioned for each of the salaried employees of the Group present according to 
their theoretical seniority on the date of their retirement, according to IAS 19 revised.

These commitments are based on the assumption that in all cases employees will leave at their own initiative. The calculation of 
the commitments includes:

 › An attendance coefficient based on turnover by age bracket; the average in 2021 was 9% (2020:12%);
 › Average salary increase rate is calculated by age and category.
 › 2015-2017 INSEE mortality tables by gender.
 › The life of the plan is estimated at 11.2 years, the discount rate used is 0.78% (2020: 0.54%).
 › Average rate of social charges applied: 47%.

As regards to sensitivity, a drop in this discount rate of 25 basis point would generate a 3% increase in the commitment.
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21. SHARE CAPITAL

2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

Authorised, issued and fully paid shares of QR 1 each 456,192 456,192

22. RESERVES

(a) Legal reserve

As required by Qatar Commercial Companies Law, 10% of the profit for the year is required to be transferred to a legal reserve, 
until such reserve equals 50% of the issued share capital. The Group has resolved to cease such annual transfers as the legal 
reserve has reached the minimum required level. Further, during 2012, an amount of QR 933.4 million, being the net share 
premium amount arising out of the rights issue was transferred to legal reserve in accordance with requirements of the above 
law. The reserve is not generally available for distribution except in the circumstances stipulated in the above law.

(b) Acquisition reserve

In case of acquisitions or disposal of subsidiaries without change in control, the difference between the decrease/increase in the 
non-controlling interests and the consideration paid or received is recognised as ‘acquisition reserve’ directly in equity attributed 
to the shareholders of the Company.

(c) Other reserve

This includes revaluation reserve amounting to QR 4.6 million (2020: QR 4.6 million), in actuarial differences – net of related tax 
amounting to QR 54.8 million (2020: QR 52.9 million), and other consolidation related adjustments amounting to QR 7.0 million 
(2020: QR 7.3 million).

(d) Foreign currency translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign currency differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of 
foreign operations. 

23. PROPOSED DIVIDENDS

The Board of Directors has proposed a total cash dividend of QR 0.30 per share aggregating to QR 136.86 million for the year 
2021 (2020: QR 0.01 per share totalling to QR 4.56 million), which is subject to the approval of the shareholders at the Annual 
General Assembly. During the year, the dividend paid amounted to QR 4.5 million (2020: QR 91.24 million). 

24. REVENUE

2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

Revenue from contracts with customers 14,406,970 12,388,482

Mannai Corporation Q.P.S.C.
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A. Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers disaggregated by major products and service lines, and primary geographical markets 
is listed in notes 25(a) and 25(b) respectively. The ten top customers of the Group represent nearly 19% of the consolidated 
turnover for 2021. None of these ten customers alone represents more than 10% of the turnover of the Group. 

B. Contract balances

The following table provides information about contract assets and contract liabilities from contracts with customers.

2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

Contract assets 2,148,318 1,487,582

Contract liabilities (756,189) (659,600)

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s rights to consideration for work completed but not billed at the reporting 
date. The amount of contract assets during the year ended 31 December 2021 was impacted by an impairment charge of QR 14.7 
million (2020: QR 13.3 million). The contract assets are transferred to receivables when the rights become unconditional. This 
usually occurs when the Group issues an invoice to the customer.

The contract liabilities primarily relate to the advance consideration received from customers. As at 31 December 2021, the 
amount is QR 756.2 million (2020: QR 659.6 million). This will be recognised as revenue when the obligation to transfer goods or 
services are fulfilled, which is expected to occur over the future.

25. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group classified the reporting segment based on its product and services as follows:

 › Information technology
 › Auto group
 › Energy and industrial markets
 › Geotechnical services
 › Logistics
 › Travel
 › Engineering
 › Jewellery trading
 › Telecom retail
 › Others

Management monitors the operating results of the operating segments to make decisions about resource allocation and 
performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss and is measured consistently 
with operating profit or loss in the consolidated financial statements. Transfer prices between operating segments are on an 
arm’s length basis in a manner similar to transactions with third parties.

Segment assets and liabilities comprise operating assets and liabilities which are directly handled by the operating segment 
and income or expenses that are attributed in line with the assets and liabilities allocated. The following table summarises the 
performance of the operating segments.
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(a) By operating segments

Information 
technology

Auto Group E&I markets Geotechnical 
services

Logistics Travel Engineering Jewellery
Trading

Telecom Retail Others Total

QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000

31 December 2021

Revenue  12,054,986  786,613  224,910  61,320  22,851  24,837  72,233  1,057,562  -    101,658  14,406,970 

Gross profit  2,541,540  141,588  39,542  17,212  12,335  22,526  10,833  262,805  -   44,589   3,092,970

EBITDA1 1,040,100  80,684  21,766  7,038  7,710  11,276  5,786  103,532  (17,356)  (18,331)    1,242,205 

Depreciation and amortisation   (362,990)  (17,631)  (2,042)  (5,030)  (244)  (7,694)  (3,306)  (71,111)  -    (26,771) (496,819)

Income tax (122,482) (489) (4) - (12) - - (1,348) - (333) (124,668)

Segment assets   10,679,625  495,746  91,607  64,366  21,617  47,840  74,308   1,416,637  807,946   2,521,526 16,221,218

Segment liabilities   8,070,957  114,536  51,288  49,191  8,233  19,317  73,309   538,987  -     5,095,539 14,021,357 

Other information

Share of results from joint venture 
and associate companies - - - - - - - 39,571 (17,356) 1,087 23,302

Investments in joint venture and 
associate companies - - - - - - - 155,101 807,946 17,138 980,185

1Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation

Information 
technology

Auto Group E&I markets Geotechnical 
services

Logistics Travel Engineering Jewellery
Trading

Telecom Retail Others Total

QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000

31 December 2020

Revenue  10,538,041  603,836  209,220  42,719  22,584  11,960  74,444  797,561  -    88,117  12,388,482 

Gross profit  2,190,746  125,016  38,637  12,488  12,728  9,559 11,528  196,480  -   48,934  2,646,116 

EBITDA1 (Restated)*  869,438  69,251  21,647  1,694  8,712  (2,115)  2,681  7,129  (18,376) 24,098  984,159 

Depreciation and amortisation 
(Restated)* (337,434)  (20,522)  (2,392)  (3,828)  (481)  (6,793)  (3,999)  (66,754)  -    (25,504) (467,707)

Income tax (Restated)* (124,089) (126) (3) - (11) (5) (2) (228) - (460) (124,924)

Segment assets (Restated)* 10,612,824  641,986  110,155  40,716  24,137  26,819  72,729  1,459,559  825,302 2,511,437   16,325,664

Segment liabilities (Restated)*   8,354,956  210,295  45,052  26,059  10,172  8,097  71,614  585,234  -    4,963,336   14,274,815

Other information 

Share of results from joint venture 
and associate companies - - - - - - -  28,951  (18,376)  (2,182)  8,393 

Investments in joint venture and 
associate companies - - - - - - -  149,109  825,302  16,051  990,462 

*Refer note 35
1Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation

25. SEGMENT INFORMATIONS (CONTINUED)
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(a) By operating segments

Information 
technology

Auto Group E&I markets Geotechnical 
services

Logistics Travel Engineering Jewellery
Trading

Telecom Retail Others Total

QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000

31 December 2021

Revenue  12,054,986  786,613  224,910  61,320  22,851  24,837  72,233  1,057,562  -    101,658  14,406,970 

Gross profit  2,541,540  141,588  39,542  17,212  12,335  22,526  10,833  262,805  -   44,589   3,092,970

EBITDA1 1,040,100  80,684  21,766  7,038  7,710  11,276  5,786  103,532  (17,356)  (18,331)    1,242,205 

Depreciation and amortisation   (362,990)  (17,631)  (2,042)  (5,030)  (244)  (7,694)  (3,306)  (71,111)  -    (26,771) (496,819)

Income tax (122,482) (489) (4) - (12) - - (1,348) - (333) (124,668)

Segment assets   10,679,625  495,746  91,607  64,366  21,617  47,840  74,308   1,416,637  807,946   2,521,526 16,221,218

Segment liabilities   8,070,957  114,536  51,288  49,191  8,233  19,317  73,309   538,987  -     5,095,539 14,021,357 

Other information

Share of results from joint venture 
and associate companies - - - - - - - 39,571 (17,356) 1,087 23,302

Investments in joint venture and 
associate companies - - - - - - - 155,101 807,946 17,138 980,185

1Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation

Information 
technology

Auto Group E&I markets Geotechnical 
services

Logistics Travel Engineering Jewellery
Trading

Telecom Retail Others Total

QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000

31 December 2020

Revenue  10,538,041  603,836  209,220  42,719  22,584  11,960  74,444  797,561  -    88,117  12,388,482 

Gross profit  2,190,746  125,016  38,637  12,488  12,728  9,559 11,528  196,480  -   48,934  2,646,116 

EBITDA1 (Restated)*  869,438  69,251  21,647  1,694  8,712  (2,115)  2,681  7,129  (18,376) 24,098  984,159 

Depreciation and amortisation 
(Restated)* (337,434)  (20,522)  (2,392)  (3,828)  (481)  (6,793)  (3,999)  (66,754)  -    (25,504) (467,707)

Income tax (Restated)* (124,089) (126) (3) - (11) (5) (2) (228) - (460) (124,924)

Segment assets (Restated)* 10,612,824  641,986  110,155  40,716  24,137  26,819  72,729  1,459,559  825,302 2,511,437   16,325,664

Segment liabilities (Restated)*   8,354,956  210,295  45,052  26,059  10,172  8,097  71,614  585,234  -    4,963,336   14,274,815

Other information 

Share of results from joint venture 
and associate companies - - - - - - -  28,951  (18,376)  (2,182)  8,393 

Investments in joint venture and 
associate companies - - - - - - -  149,109  825,302  16,051  990,462 

*Refer note 35
1Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation
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(b) By geography

Qatar Other GCC 
countries

Europe Others Total

QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000

31 December 2021

Revenue 3,779,072 1,057,562 9,543,847 26,489 14,406,970

Gross profit 646,865 262,805 2,176,284 7,016 3,092,970

EBITDA1 381,731 71,177 780,159 9,138 1,242,205

Depreciation and amortisation (88,462) (71,111) (336,896) (350) (496,819)

Income tax  (349)  (1,348)  (120,849)  (2,122)  (124,668)

Segment assets 5,326,010 2,225,875 8,639,506 29,827 16,221,218

Segment liabilities 6,624,798 541,191 6,847,043 8,325 14,021,357

Other information

Share of results from joint venture 
and associate companies 1,087 22,215  -    -   23,302

Investment in joint venture and 
associate companies           17,137 963,048  -    -   980,185

1Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation

Qatar Other GCC 
countries

Europe Others Total

QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000

31 December 2020

Revenue 3,286,853 797,561 8,248,705 55,363 12,388,482

Gross profit 589,920 196,480 1,852,194 7,522 2,646,116

EBITDA 1 (Restated)* 358,983 (11,247) 630,495 5,928 984,159

Depreciation and amortisation 
(Restated)* (89,676) (66,754) (310,926) (351) (467,707)

Income tax (Restated)*  (481)  (228)  (122,687)  (1,528)  (124,924)

Segment assets (Restated)* 5,064,963 2,286,158 8,942,839 31,704 16,325,664

Segment liabilities (Restated)* 6,337,197 587,449 7,342,704 7,465 14,274,815

Other information 

Share of results from joint venture 
and associate companies (2,182) 10,575 - - 8,393

Investment in joint venture and 
associate companies  16,051 974,411 - - 990,462

*Refer note 35

Note: Segment assets include goodwill and other intangibles of QR 4,889.5 million (2020: QR 5,103.2 million allocated to Inetum 
S.A. and QR 929.8 million (2020: QR 929.8 million) allocated to Damas UAE.

25. SEGMENT INFORMATIONS (CONTINUED)
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(c) Reconciliation of reported amounts 

2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

(Restated)*

EBITDA as per operating and geography segments 1,242,205 984,159

Less: Finance costs (i) (ii) (345,091) (389,733)

Less: Depreciation and amortisation (496,819) (467,707)

Profit before tax 400,295 126,719

(i) Information technology 66% (2020: 64%), jewellery trading 8% (2020: 9%), auto group 5% (2020: 5%) and other  
    business units 21% (2020: 22%).

(ii) Qatar including other GCC countries 68% (2020: 71%), Europe 32% (2020: 29%).

26. OTHER INCOME

2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

Gain on sale of intangible assets                   -              6,081 

Gain on sale of property plant and equipment 2,013 701

Write back of provisions / liabilities no longer required -                974 

Reversal of impairment loss / collections from written off other receivables                   -              1,102 

Gain on sale of investment properties (note 15(b))          14,878                   349 

Foreign exchange gain            8,712            6,175 

Miscellaneous income 54,417          48,277 

80,020 63,659
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27. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

Staff costs 704,130 614,676

Legal and professional fees 194,097 146,430

Tax and levies 80,123 74,967

Short term and low value lease rentals 30,746 30,899

Repairs and maintenance expenses 120,822 107,307

Communication expenses 46,188 47,626

Travelling expenses 16,380 15,677

Directors’ remuneration 12,930 -

Insurance expenses 25,834 23,513

Bank charges 15,139 13,613

Printing and stationery expenses 15,082 14,565

Utility charges 15,095 13,536

Other administrative expenses and allowances 193,723 146,673

1,470,289 1,249,482

28. SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

Staff costs 384,719 345,420

Short term and low value lease rentals  17,024 10,780

Advertisement and other promotion expenses  74,790 57,406

 476,533  413,606

29. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the year by the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding during the year.

2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

(Restated)*

Profit / (loss) for the year attributable to the shareholders of the Company 276,076 1,659

Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year (refer note 21) 456,192,000 456,192,000

Basic and diluted earnings per share (QR) (attributable to the shareholders of 
the Company) 0.605 0.004

*Refer note 35
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30. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Related parties represent associated companies, major shareholders, directors and key management personnel of the Group 
and entities in which they are principal owners. Pricing policies and terms of these transactions are approved by the Group’s 
management.

(a) Related party transactions

Transactions with related parties included in the consolidated statement of income are as follows:

Nature Relationship 2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000
 
Sales Affiliates 74,327 63,037

Purchases Affiliates 1,328 2,216

(b) Related party balances

2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

Due from related parties

Receivable from joint venture companies and associates 33,813 40,169

Long term loans to joint venture companies and associates 48,602 46,534

82,415 86,703

Presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

Current 33,813 40,169

Non-current 48,602 46,534

82,415 86,703

Due to related parties

Payable to joint venture companies and associates 4,543 2,945

4,543 2,945

Long term loans to joint venture companies and associates are unsecured and carry interest as per the contractual 
arrangements between the respective counterparties. Th non-current portion of these loans are not expected to be recalled 
within a period of twelve months from the reporting date. 

Outstanding balances at 31 December 2021 and 2020 arose in the normal course of business. 

(c)  Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made at terms equivalent to those that prevail in arms-length transactions. 
Outstanding balances at the reporting date are unsecured, interest free and the settlement occurs in cash. There have been no 
guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables.
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(d) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management personnel during the year is as follows:

2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

Short term benefits 10,965 11,832

Post-employment benefits 606   632

11,571 12,464

Directors’ remuneration 12,930 -

31. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

(a) Contingent liabilities

i)  Contract with one of the customers of the Group’s subsidiary was terminated on 15 June 2019, after the customer expressed 
his willingness to suspend and redesign the project because of low financial results and financial difficulties. The changes 
wanted by the customer would modify the initial contract, thus the subsidiary sent a termination letter to the customer 
including a termination fee of QR 70.9 million (EUR 16 million). Subsequent to this, the subsidiary filed a legal case against 
the customer claiming for QR 87.7 million (EUR 19.8 million) (consisting of termination fees and damages and interests). The 
customer also filed a counter claim amounting to QR 53.2 million (EUR 12.0 million). On 10 September 2020, the customer 
was declared bankrupt and the receivables amounting to QR 61.2 million (EUR 13.9 million) was fully provided for. The case 
is still on-going to recover the claimed amount from the customer. The subsidiary has assigned lawyers to handle this case, 
and it believes that the risk related to customer claims is limited, hence, no provision has been set up regarding these 
claims in the consolidated financial statements.

ii)  In 2017, one of the subsidiaries of the Group, entered into agreement with a consultant for provision of licensing and 
maintenance of a customised IT solution service to a French insurance broker. During the contract period, the consultant 
unilaterally withdrew from the project by descoping its IT teams and stopped any future payments to the subsidiary. 
Following the consultant’s decision, the subsidiary stopped its service delivery in November 2017. The consultant had filed 
a legal case against the subsidiary first time on May 2018 which was rejected and a second time on 12 July 2018 at Paris 
Court claiming an amount of QR 176.2 million from the subsidiary. The court has assigned an expert who will furnish the 
final report in June 2022. Due to the significant uncertainty of the outcome, QR 8.9 million have been provided for by the 
subsidiary’s management. The remaining unprovided receivable balance amounts to QR 6.2 million. 

iii)  As of the reporting date, one of the joint ventures of the Group, is claimant and defendant in a legal proceeding in relation to 
outstanding receivable from one of its customers. The customer has stopped making payments to the joint venture, which 
has delayed the receipt of funds against the carried out work.  The joint venture had filed a legal case, whereby the joint 
venture had claimed a cumulative amount of QR 12.1 million in respect of outstanding receivables. The customer had made a 
counterclaim of QR 10.0 million against the joint venture for non-performance under the contract.

 During the year, the Court of First Instance decided the matter in favor of the joint venture. However, the customer filed an 
appeal against the decision of the Court of First Instance, which is currently pending in the Court of Appeal and position 
against the case is still developing as of the date of authorization of these consolidated financial statements. Based on the 
opinion of legal advisor, legal proceedings so far and the merits of the case, no additional provision has been recorded for 
any potential loss arising from this case as at 31 December 2021.

iv)  Management makes estimates and judgments concerning the future position of the on-going contracts, which includes but 
are not limited to the provisions, arbitrations and claims of particular relevance. For this reporting period, management 
has estimated that the Group will not incur any liquidated damage charge due to delays in completion of certain contracts. 
Management has already applied for extension of time on these on-going contracts wherever required and is confident 
that the extension will be awarded to the Group. Estimates and assumptions are continuously evaluated and are based on 
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the 
current circumstances.

30. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
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v) Under the bank facilities agreement, cross guarantees exist between certain Group companies, which could be enforced 
by the financiers, if the borrowers were to be in default of the finance agreement. Each member of the Group is therefore 
irrevocably, unconditionally and jointly and severally liable as principal obligor. The amount of Group facilities outstanding is 
as follows:

2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

Letters of guarantees   1,381,836 1,260,356

Letters of credit        40,058        32,603

Stand-by letters of credit      672,104      762,300

  2,093,998   2,055,259

The stand-by letters of credit are provided by commercial banks in favour of the suppliers of gold who have loaned gold on an 
unfixed basis to the Group (refer note 17 (d).

(b) Commitments

Capital commitments

2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

Capital work in progress – contracted but not provided for 3,288 16,618

(c) Contingent liabilities and commitments related to joint ventures and associates

2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

Contingent liabilities

- Guarantees 38,372 31,350

- Letters of credit 38,019 51,876

76,391 83,226

Certain operating lease commitments relating to previously held interest in an associate have been reclassified due to 
conversion of associate to subsidiary during the year, hence, they are not comparable.
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments represent any contractual agreement that creates a financial asset, financial liability or an equity 
instrument. The Group’s principal financial liabilities comprise interest bearing loans and borrowings, bank overdrafts, accounts 
payable, amounts due to related parties and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance 
the Group’s operations. The Group’s financial assets comprise bank balances and cash, accounts and retention receivable, 
investments at fair value through profit or loss, investments through OCI, amounts due from related parties and certain other 
receivables that arise directly from its operation.

Fair value measurements

This note provides information about how the Group determines fair values of various financial assets and financial liabilities.

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The 
following table gives information about how the fair values of these financial assets and financial liabilities are determined.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values 
are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as 
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

As at 31 December 2021

Derivative and non-derivative 
financial assets / (financial liabilities)

Classification Carrying value Fair value Fair value
Hierarchy

QR’000 QR’000

Bank balances and cash(1) Amortised cost 1,039,061 - -

Accounts and other receivables(1) Amortised cost 2,839,409 - -

Financial assets at fair value through 
other comprehensive income FVOCI 8,366 8,366 Level 3

Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss FVTPL 3,444 3,444 Level 3

Amount due from related parties(1) Amortised cost 82,415

Bank overdrafts(1) Other financial 
liabilities (313,096) - -

Interest bearing loans and borrowings Other financial 
liabilities (7,284,891) (7,284,891) Level 2

Accounts payable and accruals(1) 

(excluding derivative financial 
liabilities)

Other financial 
liabilities

(3,690,133) - -

Derivative financial liabilities FVOCI - - Level 2

Amount due to related parties(1) Other financial 
liabilities (4,543) - -
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As at 31 December 2020

Derivative and non-derivative financial 
assets / (financial liabilities)

Classification Carrying value Fair value Fair value
Hierarchy

QR’000 QR’000

Bank balances and cash(1) Amortised cost 1,150,315 - -

Accounts and other receivables(1) 

(Restated)*
Amortised cost

2,797,103 - -

Financial assets at fair value through 
other comprehensive income FVOCI 8,392 8,392 Level 3

Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss FVTPL 6,677 6,677 Level 3

Amount due from related parties(1) Amortised cost 86,703 - -

Bank overdrafts(1) Other financial 
liabilities (280,613) - -

Interest bearing loans and borrowings Other financial 
liabilities (7,707,887) (7,707,887) Level 2

Accounts payable and accruals(1) 
(excluding derivative financial 
liabilities) (Restated)*

Other financial 
liabilities

(3,057,459) - -

Derivative financial liabilities FVOCI (7,521) (7,521) Level 2

Amount due to related parties(1) Other financial 
liabilities (2,945) - -

There is no in or out movement from Level 3 fair value measurements. The investments classified under Level 3 category have 
been fair-valued based on information available for each investment.

(1) These financial assets and financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost. The fair values of these financial assets and 
financial liabilities are not materially different from their carrying values in the consolidated statement of financial position, as 
these assets and liabilities are either of short-term maturities or are re-priced frequently based on market movement in interest 
rates.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair values 

Equity instruments

FVOCI FVTPL Total

QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000

At 1 January 2021 8,392 6,677 15,069

Additions - (2,847) (2,847)

Net changes in fair value (26) (386) (412)

At 31 December 2021 8,366 3,444 11,810
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Reconciliation of Level 3 fair values  (Continued)

Equity instruments

FVOCI FVTPL Total

QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000

At 1 January 2020 8,391 945 9,336

Additions - 5,641 5,641

Net changes in fair value 1 91 92

At 31 December 2020 8,392 6,677 15,069

Fair value sensitivity analysis

The following table shows the sensitivity of fair values to 10% increase or decrease as at 31 December:

2021 2020

Basis points +/-1,000 +/-1,000

Effect on equity (QR ’000) +/-1,181 +/-1,507

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risks such as currency risk, price risk and interest rate risk. The 
Group monitors and manages the risks relating to its operations through internal risk reports. The major risks are discussed 
below.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market prices. Market prices comprise four types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk, commodity price risk and other price 
risk, such as equity price risk. 

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank 
balances (call deposits), bank overdraft and interest-bearing loans and borrowings, which bear floating interest rate.

The following summary sets out the Group’s exposure to interest rate risk as of 31 December:

2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

Bank deposits and call accounts  10,201 14,125

Bank overdraft  (313,096) (280,613)

Interest bearing loans and borrowings  (7,284,891) (7,707,887)

(7,587,786)  (7,974,375)

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  (CONTINUED)
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The Group is exposed to interest rate risk as it maintains and borrows funds at floating interest rates. The following table 
demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group’s profit to reasonably possible changes in interest rates, with all other variables held 
constant. The sensitivity of the profit is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rate on the Group’s profit for one year, 
based on the floating rate financial assets and financial liabilities held at 31 December:

2021 2020

Basis points +/- 25 +/- 25

Effect on profit for the year (QR ’000) 18,969 19,936

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the 
Group. The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties. Credit risk on bank balances is limited 
as they are placed with banks having good credit rating. The Group’s exposure to counterparties is continuously monitored. 
Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved by management. The credit terms for 
accounts receivable are 30 days 
to 180 days.
 
With respect to credit risk arising from the financial assets of the Group, the Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from default 
of the counter party, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments as follows:

2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

Bank balances 1,033,965 1,138,309

Accounts receivable and others (excluding contract assets) 2,839,409 2,797,103

Contract assets 2,148,318 1,487,582

Amounts due from related parties 82,415 86,703

6,104,107 5,509,697

Bank balances

The Group held bank balances of QR 1,033,965 thousand at 31 December 2021 (2020: QR 1,138,309 thousand). The balances are 
held with banks, which are rated Aa3- to A3, based on Moody’s ratings.

Impairment on bank balances has been measured on a 12-month expected loss basis and reflects the short maturities of the 
exposures. The Group considers that its bank balances have low credit risk based on the external credit ratings of the banks. 
As at reporting date, none of the bank balances were credit impaired. Expected credit loss on non-credit impaired balance was 
immaterial, hence no provision was recognised in these consolidated financial statements.

Amounts due from related parties

As at reporting date, none of the amounts dues from related parties were credit impaired. Expected credit loss on non-credit 
impaired balance was immaterial, hence no provision was recognised in these consolidated financial statements.

Accounts receivables and others

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, 
management also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk 
associated with the industry and country in which customers operate.
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The Group limits its exposure to credit risk from accounts receivable by: 

• evaluating the creditworthiness of each counter-party prior to entering into contracts;
• establishing maximum payment periods for each customer, which are reviewed regularly; and
• periodically reviewing the collectability of its trade receivables for identification of any impaired amounts.

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk from accounts receivable by establishing a maximum payment period of one and 
three months for corporate customers respectively.

As a result of the above, management believes that there is no significant credit risk, except for the financial and contract assets 
for which impairment has been already recognised by the management.

The movement in the provision for impairment of accounts receivable and contract assets is disclosed in Note 8.

Impairment on accounts and factored receivables, notes receivable and contract assets has been measured on a life-time 
expected loss basis. The Group uses an allowance matrix to measure the ECL on these financial and contract assets. 

Loss rates are calculated using a ‘net flow rate’ method based on the probability of a receivable progressing through successive 
stages of delinquency to write-off.

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and ECLs for accounts receivable (including factored 
receivables), notes receivables and contracts assets as at reporting date.

Weighted average 
loss rate 

Gross carrying 
amount

Loss  
allowance

Credit impaired

QR ’000 QR ’000

31 December 2021

Current (not past due) 0.74% 3,783,518 27,882 No

1-90 days past due 3.94% 468,375 18,435 No

91–180 days past due 11.95% 74,473 8,901 No

181–365 days past due 15.94% 66,457 10,590 No

More than 365 days past due 20.45%   335,491 68,598 Yes

Individual credit impaired balances 100.00% 95,430 95,430 Yes

4,823,744 229,836

Weighted average 
loss rate 

Gross carrying 
amount

Loss  
allowance

Credit impaired

QR ’000 QR ’000

31 December 2020

Current (not past due) 0.81% 2,921,034          23,689 No

1-90 days past due 3.91% 480,167          18,785 No

91–180 days past due 17.31% 199,473          34,525 No

181–365 days past due 18.21% 132,185          24,069 No

More than 365 days past due 20.34% 212,974 43,322 Yes

Individual credit impaired balances 100.00% 91,448 91,448 Yes

4,037,281 235,838

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
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Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience over the past three years. These rates are multiplied by forward looking 
factors to reflect differences between economic conditions during the period over which the historical data has been collected, 
current conditions and the Group’s view of economic conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.

Forward looking factors are based on actual and forecast macro-economic factors (primarily GDP) and is considered to be 
positive.

Past due are those amounts for which either the contractual or the “normal” payment date has passed.

Management believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due are still collectible in full, based on historical payment 
behaviour and extensive analysis of customer credit base. 

Accounts receivables do not bear interest.

The Group does not require collateral as security in respect of its accounts and factored receivables, notes receivables and 
contract assets.

Deposits and other receivables

Impairment on deposits and other receivables has been measured on a 12-month expected loss basis and reflects the short 
maturities of the exposures. As at reporting date, none of deposits and other receivables were credit impaired. Expected 
credit loss on non-credit impaired balance was immaterial, hence no provision was recognised in these consolidated financial 
statements.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. 
The foreign currency exposure is minimal since the Group deals mostly in Qatari Riyal and US Dollars. Balances in other GCC 
currencies, with the exception of Kuwaiti Dinar, do not expose the Group to significant currency risk since they are pegged to 
the US Dollar. The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to an increase or decrease in Qatari Riyal against the relevant 
foreign currencies. 

The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and the impact of a change in 
the exchange rates are as follows:

2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000
NET EXPOSURE ( LIABILITY)

EURO 468,084 145,863

GBP  1,774 16,952

Other currencies  175 148

470,033 162,963

Increase/ decrease 
in Euro, GBP and 

other rates to the QR

Effect on profit 
before tax

2021 +/- 3% +/- 14,101

2020 +/- 3% +/- 4,889
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its obligations as they fall due. The Group’s approach to 
managing liquidity risk is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, 
under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s operations 
and reputation.

The Group limits its liquidity risk by ensuring bank facilities are available. The Group’s terms of sale require amounts to be paid 
within 30-180 days of the date of sale. 

The table below summarises the maturities of the Group’s derivative and non-derivative financial liabilities at 31 December, 
based on contractual payment dates and current market interest rates.

Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total

QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000

At 31 December 2021

Accounts payable and accruals (excluding advances from 
customers)  4,990,541  86,695 5,077,236

Amounts due to related parties  4,543 - 4,543

Interest bearing loans and borrowings  2,742,959  4,541,932 7,284,891

Lease liabilities  191,515  352,931 544,446

Bank overdrafts  313,096 - 313,096

Total 8,242,654 4,981,558 13,224,212

Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total

QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000

At 31 December 2020 (Restated)*

Accounts payable and accruals (excluding advances from 
customers) 4,564,968 24,190 4,589,158

Amounts due to related parties 2,945 - 2,945

Interest bearing loans and borrowings 2,001,117 5,706,770 7,707,887

Lease liabilities 192,929 445,289 638,218

Bank overdrafts 280,613 - 280,613

Total 7,042,572 6,176,249 13,218,821

Capital management 

The Group manages its capital structure to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while maximizing the return 
to shareholders through the optimization of debt and equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from 
2018. The Group monitors its capital using a gearing ratio which is net debt divided by total equity. The Group includes within the 
net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings (included in Note 17) and bank overdraft less bank balances and cash.

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
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Gearing ratio 

The gearing ratio at 31 December is as follows:

2021 2020

QR ’000 QR ’000

(Restated)*

Debt (including bank overdrafts)  7,597,987 7,988,500

Bank balances and cash (1,039,061) (1,150,315)

Net debt  6,558,926 6,838,185

Total equity  2,199,861 2,050,849

Add: acquisition reserve  999,488 999,488

3,199,349 3,050,337

Gearing ratio 2.05:1 2.24:1

34. IMPACT OF COVID-19 

The World Health Organization declared COVID-19 as a pandemic in March 2020. Escalation of COVID-19 has impacted the global 
economic growth and business developments. Most countries have enacted protection measures against COVID-19, with a 
significant impact on the daily life, production and supply chain of goods in these countries and beyond. 

The evolution of COVID-19 as well as its impact on the global economy, and more specifically, on the Group’s business activities, 
is subject to levels of uncertainty, with the full range of possible effects unknown including but not limited to: the success of 
support measures introduced by governments, a smooth supply chain, negotiations with landlords, customer behavioural 
patterns and sentiments, volume and velocity of tourism, ability of the wider economy to recover, timing and manner of the 
easing of restrictions (such as lockdowns and social distancing) and successful vaccination campaigns. 

The Group has proactively introduced comprehensive measures to address and mitigate key operational and financial issues 
arising from the current situation. The Group continues to adopt strict social distancing safety measures and other hygiene 
practices across its stores, enabling it to continue operations with minimal disruptions. 

Management, based on its assessment, believes that the cashflows from operations will allow the Group to continue to operate 
and meet its liabilities whenever they fall due in foreseeable future .

35. COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

(i) Restatement

a) Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets 

In 2019 and 2020, the Group was unable to conclude impairment testing in accordance with IAS 36 in respect of goodwill and 
other intangible assets allocated to one of its Cash Generating Units (CGU) forming part of the Jewellery Trading operating 
segment. The impairment exercise was pending due to the instability in the economy and the sector in which the CGU operates 
coupled with COVID-19 pandemic, due to which the Group was unable to apply reliable assumptions and source external 
benchmarks to develop forecasts for the impairment exercise. During the current year, management was in a position to 
apply more relevant and reliable assumptions owing to stability in the economy following vaccination and opening up of travel 
restrictions which helped management to forecast the key assumptions to be applied for the impairment exercise.
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35. COMPARATIVE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

a) Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets (Continued) 

The impairment exercise during the year has resulted in recording of total impairment loss amounting to QR 270.6 million 
against the goodwill and other intangibles allocated to the CGU. IAS 8 ‘Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and 
errors’ requires to correct material prior period matters or adjustments retrospectively in the period / year to which the matter 
relates, since the pending impairment exercise in connection with the CGU was pending from 2019, management has restated 
the prior years’ consolidated financial statements in accordance with IAS 8 requirements to reflect the completion of pending 
impairment exercise.

b) Restatement due to Purchase Price Allocation of Inetum Espana (formerly IECISA)

As per the requirements of IFRS 3 ‘Business combinations’, management has finalised the provisional fair values pertaining 
to Inetum Espana (formerly IECISA) acquired in 2020. Following the completion of the fair valuation exercise, management 
has allocated goodwill amounting to QR 137.4 million to other intangible assets. These intangible assets have finite useful 
lives and consequently the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 are restated to record the 
amortisation of these other intangible assets.

Summary of the effects of the above restatement on the previously reported figures are as follows:

Previously 
reported 

figures

Restatement 
due to (a) 

above

Restated 
figures

QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000

At 1 January 2020

Consolidated statement of financial position

Goodwill and other intangible assets 4,597,875 (270,572) 4,327,303

Retained earnings 1,916,328 (270,572) 1,645,756

Previously 
reported 

figures

Restatement 
due to (a) 

above

Restatement 
due to (b) 

above

Restated 
figures

QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000

At 31 December 2020

Consolidated statement of financial position

Goodwill and other intangible assets 6,063,351 (270,572) 240,207 6,032,986

Retained earnings 1,925,720 (270,572) (12,653) 1,642,495

Deferred tax assets 184,079 - (75,131) 108,948

Inventories 1,654,930 - 14,636 1,669,566

Accounts receivable and prepayments (current por-
tion) 4,919,527 - (503,634) 4,415,893

Deferred tax liabilities 8,568 - 34,063 42,631

Accounts payable and accruals (non- current portion) 90,654 - (66,464) 24,190

Accounts payable and accruals (current portion) 5,419,966 - (271,187) 5,148,779

Foreign currency translation reserve (39,476) - (476) (39,952)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2021

Previously 
reported 

figures

Restatement 
due to (a) 

above

Restatement 
due to (b) 

above

Restated 
figures

QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000 QR ’000

Consolidated statement of income

Depreciation and amortisation (450,836) - (16,871) (467,707)

Income tax (129,142) - 4,218 (124,924)

Net profit for the year 14,448 - (12,653) 1,795

Earnings per share 0.030 - (0.026) 0.004

All other related changes in the comparative amounts in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in 
equity, cash flows and notes to the consolidated financial statements, are restated to reflect the above restatement.

(ii) Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the presentation in the current period’s consolidated financial 
statements. However, such reclassifications did not have any effect on the profit, total assets and equity of the comparative 
period. Further, due to consolidation of one of the acquired subsidiaries in May 2020, the current year’s consolidated financial 
statements are not fully comparable with the prior year’s consolidated financial statements.

36. SIGNIFICANT ARRANGEMENT SUBSEQUENT TO THE REPORTING DATE

Subsequent to the reporting date, on 18 January 2022, the Board of Directors of the Company approved entering into exclusive 
negotiations with a group of investors, in relation to a potential transaction to dispose of the Group’s entire shareholding in 
Inetum S.A. 

The completion of the potential transaction is conditional upon satisfaction of certain mandatory legal, regulatory and 
shareholders’ approval, and consequently, there remains a possibility that the potential transaction may not materialize in 
absence of such conditions / approvals being secured. Management has exercised significant judgement and has determined 
that not all held for sale criteria in accordance with IFRS 5 ‘Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations’ 
are met for the potential disposal of Inetum S.A. as at the end of the reporting date. Consequently, the Group continues to 
consolidate its subsidiaries in France, Inetum S.A. and its related components and therefore, the same has not been classified 
as "held-for-sale" in these consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2021.
 

37. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

There are no material events subsequent to the reporting date, except as disclosed in note 36, which have a bearing on the 
understanding of these consolidated financial statements. 
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